
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
16 June 2017 

 
AUDIT AND ETHICS COMMITTEE – 29 JUNE 2017 
 
A meeting of the Audit and Ethics Committee will be held at 5.30pm on Tuesday 29 June 
2017 in Committee Room 1 at the Town Hall, Rugby. 
 
Adam Norburn 
Executive Director 
 

A G E N D A 
 

PART 1 – PUBLIC BUSINESS 
 
1. Minutes 
 

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 4 April 2017. 
 

2. Apologies 
 

To receive apologies for absence from the meeting. 
 
3. Declarations of Interest 
 
 To receive declarations of: 
 
 (a) non-pecuniary interests as defined by the Council’s Code of Conduct for 

Councillors; 
 
 (b) pecuniary interests as defined by the Council’s Code of Conduct for Councillors; 

and 
 
 (c) notice under Section 106 Local Government Finance Act 1992 – non-payment  
 of Community Charge or Council Tax. 
 

Note: Members are reminded that they should declare the existence and 
nature of their non-pecuniary interests at the commencement of the meeting 
(or as soon as the interest becomes apparent). If that interest is a pecuniary 
interest the Member must withdraw from the room unless one of the 
exceptions applies.  
 



Membership of Warwickshire County Council or any Parish Council is classed 
as a non-pecuniary interest under the Code of Conduct. A Member does not 
need to declare this interest unless the Member chooses to speak on a matter 
relating to their membership. If the Member does not wish to speak on the 
matter, the Member may still vote on the matter without making a declaration.  
 

4. Draft Statement of Accounts 2016/17 
 

5. Risk Management Strategy 
 

6. Updated Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and Self-Assessment 
 

7. Annual Report of the Corporate Assurance and Improvement Manager 
 

8. Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 
 

9. Motion to Exclude the Public under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972 

 
 To consider passing the following resolution: 
 

“Under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the public be excluded 
from the meeting for the following items on the ground that they involve the likely 
disclosure of information defined in paragraphs 1, 2 and 3 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act.” 
 

PART 2 – EXEMPT INFORMATION 
 
1. Whistle Blowing Incidents - Standing Item - to receive any updates 
 
2. Fraud and Corruption Issues - Standing Item - to receive any updates 
 
Any additional papers or relevant documents for this meeting can be accessed here 
via the website. 
  
Membership of the Committee: 
Mr P Dudfield (Chairman), Mr J Eves (Vice-Chairman), Councillors Miss Lawrence,  
Mistry, Pacey-Day and Roodhouse 
 
If you have any general queries with regard to this agenda please contact Veronika 
Beckova, Democratic Services Officer (01788 533591 or e-mail 
veronika.beckova@rugby.gov.uk). Any specific queries concerning reports should be 
directed to the listed contact officer.  
 
If you wish to attend the meeting and have any special requirements for access please 
contact the Democratic Services Officer named above. 
 



 

 

  

  

 

  

Agenda No 4 

AGENDA MANAGEMENT SHEET  

Report Title: 
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Public or Private: 


Report subject to Call-In:  


Report En-Bloc: 


Forward Plan:  


Corporate Priorities: 


Statutory / Policy Background:
 

Summary:
 

Financial Implications:  


Risk Management Implications: 


Draft Statement of Accounts 2016/17 

Audit and Ethics Committee 

27th June 2017 

Head of Corporate Resources and Chief 
Financial Officer 

ALL 

N/A 

Mannie Ketley, Head of Corporate 
Resources and Chief Financial Officer 

Public 

No 

No 

No 

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 
and, Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 
and The Code of Audit Practice. 

The purpose of this report is to present the 
draft Statement of Accounts for 
consideration by Audit and Ethics Committee 
prior to the audit. 

There are no financial implications for this 
report. 

There are no risk management implications 
for this report. 



 

 

Environmental Implications: 	 There are no environmental implications for 
this report. 

Legal Implications: 	 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 
require that the Council must consider and 
approve the statement of accounts no later 
than 30th September. 

Equality and Diversity:  	 There are no equality and diversity 
implications for this report.  

Options: 

Recommendation: 	 That the Committee notes the Draft 
Statement of Accounts 2016/17, as set out in 
Appendix 1 and makes any comments it 
feels necessary to Officers in advance of the 
audit. 

Reasons for Recommendation:  	 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 
require the approval of the statutory 
Statement of Accounts by 30th September. 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

Agenda No 4 

Audit and Ethics Committee – 27th June 2017 


Draft Statement of Accounts 2016/17 


Report of the Head of Corporate Resources and Chief Financial Officer  


Recommendation 

That the Committee notes the Draft Statement of Accounts 2016/17, as set out in 
Appendix 1 and makes any comments it feels necessary to Officers in advance of the 
audit. 

1. 	 Purpose of Report  

1.1 	 This report presents the draft statutory Statement of Accounts 2016/17 for review by 
the Committee. 

2. 	Background 

2.1 	 The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, require authorities to prepare 
Statement of Accounts in accordance with proper practices. These require that the 
Accounts are prepared by 30th June and approved and published by 30th 

September after the end of the financial year.  

2.2 	 The draft 2016/17 statement of accounts were signed by the Head of Corporate 
Resources and Chief Financial Officers on 31st May 2017 and published on the 
Council’s website. 

2.3 	 They will be available for public inspection by appointment from Monday 3rd July 
2017, in line with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. The inspection period 
will conclude on 14th August 2017, during which, and up to the conclusion of the 
audit, any local government elector within the Rugby Borough is able to question or 
make objections to the Council’s external auditor, Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

2.4 	 The external audit by Grant Thornton will take place during July, after which the 
Statement of Accounts will be formally published and a final report brought to Full 
Council. Any material changes as a result of the audit will be reported to the Audit 
and Ethics Committee and Council at the earliest opportunity once the Accounts 
have been signed off by the External Auditor. 

3. 	Faster Closedown 

3.1 	 For 2017/18 local authorities will be required to approve and publish the accounts 
by 31st May and 31st July respectively (currently 30th June and 30th September). 
This represents a significant change to the Council’s financial operations and a 
substantial challenge for the Financial Services team. 



 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.2 	 Through sound project management and a raft of system and process 
improvements, the Accounts this year have also been produced earlier than in 
previous years and the Council has successfully published the draft 2016/17 
Accounts in-line with next year’s 2017/18 reduced statutory deadlines. 

3.3 	 The Council will continue to explore ways to further enhance and expedite the 
closedown process to ensure the revised statutory deadlines continue to be met in 
future years. 

4. 	 The Statement Accounts 2016/17 

4.1 	 The statement of accounts, which has been circulated separately, comprises of the 
following financial statements; 

i) 	 The Narrative Report - includes financial summaries which detail the actual spend 
and income for the year compared with the original budget; financial and non-
financial performance; risks and a financial outlook 

ii) 	 Expenditure Funding Analysis – this is a new statement for 2016/17 which shows 
how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources (government grants, 
rents, council tax and business rates) by local authorities in comparison with those 
resources consumed or earned by authorities in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting practices. 

iii)	 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement – records all of the 
Council’s income and expenditure for the year, in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting standards. The top half of the statement provides an analysis 
by service area, in-line with the Council’s structure. The bottom half of the statement 
deals with corporate transactions and funding 

The account is prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS), however, regulations allow local authorities to reverse or replace 
certain items of income and expenditure. These items are summarised in the MIRS. 

iv) 	 Movement in Reserves Statement – This shows the amounts transferred to/from 
the various reserves held by the Council in order to provide services throughout the 
year, having taken account of statutory adjustments for financing.  

The statement shows that useable reserves reduced by approximately £2.1 million, 
which was partially due to the planned transfer of £1.0 million of HRA balances for 
capital investment. 

v) 	 Balance Sheet statement is a “snapshot” of the Council’s assets, liabilities, cash 

balances and reserves at the year-end date.  


The Council’s net worth increased from £109.4m to £161.7m mostly due to an £53 
million increase in the valuation of the Council’s housing stock, following the 
completion of the 5 yearly revaluation of this asset class during 2016/17. 

vi) 	 Cash Flow Statement – details the main revenue, capital, investment and financing 
cash movements during the year. Additional information is included within the notes 
to the accounts. 



 

 
 

 
 

vii) 	 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Statements – In accordance with the statutory 
ring-fence, these show the income and expenditure relating to the provision of 
Council housing and also the overall amount taken from/contributed to HRA 
balances for the year. 

viii)	 Collection Fund Statement – shows the transactions relating to business rates 
and council tax and illustrates the way in which they have been distributed between 
the Council, Central Government, Warwickshire County Council, Warwickshire 
Police and Parish Councils. 

4.2 	 The notes of the main financial statements provide additional information to the 
readers on the figures included within the statements.  



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Name of Meeting: Audit and Ethics Committee 

Date of Meeting: 27th June 2017 

Subject Matter: Draft Statement of Accounts 2016/17 

Originating Department: Corporate Resources 



 

  
  
  
  
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

List of Background Papers 

Document No. Date Description of Document  Officer's Reference  File Reference 
1. 

* The background papers relating to reports on planning applications and which are open 
to public inspection under Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972, consist of the 
planning applications, referred to in the reports, and all written responses to consultations 
made by the Local Planning Authority, in connection with those applications. 

* Exempt information is contained in the following documents: 

Document No. Relevant Paragraph of Schedule 12A 

* There are no background papers relating to this item. 

(*Delete if not applicable)  
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NARRATIVE REPORT 
Narrative Report of the Head of Corporate Resources and Chief Financial Officer 
Financial Year ended 31st March 2016 

Introduction 

Dear Reader, 

I am pleased to present the Rugby Borough Council Statement of Accounts (the Accounts) for the financial 
year 2016/17 and I hope you will find them of interest.    

The purpose of the Accounts is to summarise the financial performance for the year 2016/17 and the overall 
financial position of the Council.  It is intended that these Accounts will provide a useful and important source 
of financial information for the community, stakeholders, council members and other interested parties. 

The style and format of the Accounts, complies with Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy 
(CIPFA) standards and have been updated this year to be presented in a more user-friendly and accessible 
fashion.    The Accounts this year have also been produced earlier than in previous years and the Council has 
successfully published the draft 2016/17 Accounts in-line with next year’s 2017/18 reduced statutory deadlines. 

The Narrative Report provides information about Rugby, including the key issues affecting the Council and its 
Accounts. It also provides a summary of the financial position at 31st March 2017 and is structured as below: 

1. About Rugby 

2. About Rugby Borough Council 

3. Our Priorities 

4. World Rugby Hall of Fame 

5. How your Council is performing 

6. Financial Overview of 2016/17 

7. Financial Performance in 2016/17 

8. Future Financial Outlook 

9. Risks 

10. Explanation of the Financial Statements    

11. Further Information  

Mannie Ketley 
Head of Corporate Resources and Chief Financial Officer 
31st May 2017 
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1. About Rugby 

Lying near the centre of England and stretching 
from Coventry to the west and to the county 
borders of Northamptonshire and Leicestershire in 
the east, the borough of Rugby covers the town of 
Rugby and 40 rural parishes, with a total 
population of just over one hundred thousand and 
covering an area of 88,000 acres. The borough is 
one of the fastest growing in England, with further 
growth expected with the delivery of Houlton, a 
new community development on the site of the 
old Rugby Radio Station. 

Population 
Office for National Statistics Mid-year estimates for 2014 reported that Rugby’s estimated population was 
102,500 with the age profile as presented below. 

Composition of Rugby Population 
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19.70% 
(20,193) 

58.80% 
(60,270) 

21.50% 
(22,038) 

0‐15 Years 

16‐64 Years 

65 Years & Older 



 

 
 

 
   

 
 

    
  

 
 
 

  
   

    

  

 

 
 

 

 
 

   

 

 

 

 
 

 

   

       
     

     
   

   
   

   

   
   

2. About Rugby Borough Council 

Rugby is the primary local authority for the borough, providing popular services such as waste collection, 
housing, leisure and culture, and development control. The Council is an active partner in the Coventry and 
Warwickshire Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) and the Coventry, Warwickshire and Hinckley and Bosworth 
joint committee for economic growth and prosperity, and is a non-constituent member of the West Midlands 
Combined Authority. The Council uses its influence within these organisations to facilitate benefits for the 
borough including investment in jobs and infrastructure. 

Political Structure in the 2016/17 Municipal Year 
Rugby has 16 wards and the Council consists of 42 Councillors and following the local election on 5th May 
2016 the political make-up of the Council was: 

Conservative Group 21 
Liberal Democrat Group 9 
Labour Group 9 
Independent Group  2 
Independent 1 

The result of the local election did not change the overall membership of the Council, with representatives 
from the Conservative, Liberal Democrat, Labour and the Independent Groups alongside an Independent 
Councillor holding seats. 

Management Structure 
Supporting the work of Councillors is the organisational structure of the Council headed by the Senior 
Management Team, led by Executive Director Adam Norburn. 

Executive Director 

Head of Growth & 
Investment 

Head of Corporate 
Resources & Chief 
Financial Officer 

Head of 
Enivroment & 
Public Realm 

Head of 
Communities & 

Homes 
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Council Employees 

At the start of April 2016 the Council employed 500 people. By 
March 2017 this had increased by 15 (3.0%) to 515. The Council has 
recently been developing its Corporate Values which recognises 
the value and importance of Council staff in every aspect of the 
Council’s work, sets out processes and procedures for staff 
engagement and development. 

3. Our Priorities 

On the 25th April 2017 the Council approved the Corporate Strategy 2017-20, setting out our priorities for the 
next three years.   Our new strapline, “proud of our past, fit for the future,” will help us to focus on providing 
facilities and growth that give us a strong and prosperous future while preserving and celebrating the best of 
our past. 

Under our new strapline we have set three overarching corporate priorities that reflect the need for public 
services to change and reform. 

These are: 
 Provide excellent, value for money services and sustainable growth 
 Achieve financial self-sufficiency by 2020 
 Enable our residents to live healthy, independent lives 

We have also created four new portfolios, each with their own priorities. These portfolios, allied with the “can 
do” approach of our workforce, will allow us to deliver services that will help us be proud of our past, and fit 
for the future. 

More information on our Corporate Strategy can be found at: 
https://www.rugby.gov.uk/info/20082/performance_and_strategy/339/corporate_strategy_2017-2020 
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However, the previous Corporate Strategy covered the period 2012-16 with a view to ending its useful life at 
the end of the 2016/17 financial year.  Therefore, it is the previous Corporate Strategy 2012-16 that covers the 
period relevant to these Accounts.  The Corporate Strategy 2012-16 set out the Council’s priorities to achieve 
outcomes for people, for business, for the environment, and for how the Council operates. All this pointing to 
our overall objective: a borough that is Clean, Green and Safe.  Our priorities for 2016/17 were to: 

PEOPLE 
 Support wider participation in decision making and help communities to deliver services. 
 Facilitate the provision and upkeep of good quality housing to meet local needs and to cater for the 

growth of Rugby. 
 Provide leisure facilities and support independent and healthy living. 
 Work with partners to reduce crime and antisocial behaviour. 
 Provide safe and attractive streets. 

BUSINESS 
 Actively encourage parish councils and community bodies in neighbourhood development planning. 
 Establish an environment that will attract new businesses into the borough and enable existing 

businesses to flourish. 
 Support training in new technologies and promote apprenticeship opportunities. 
 Work with developers to provide new housing and infrastructure. 
 Facilitate the expansion of Rugby town by identifying and removing barriers to growth. 

ENVIRONMENT 
 Promote the highest standards of sustainability. 
 Actively progress energy-saving initiatives within the Council and by residents and businesses. 
 Provide new burial and cremation facilities. 
 Increase biodiversity across the borough. 
 Promote and maintain high levels of waste recycling. 
 Minimise the impact of litter and fly tipping. 

COUNCIL 
 Increase the availability of information that will help residents and businesses. 
 Improve service delivery via customer-focused reviews and the development of our staff. 
 Engage in partnerships to meet local needs, reduce costs and increase efficiency. 
 Actively seek revenue-generating opportunities and apply charges in order to meet our costs. 
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4. World Rugby Hall of Fame 

The undoubted highlight of 2016/17 for Council came in 
November 2016 when the inspiring, interactive, immersive World 
Rugby Hall of Fame opened in the existing Rugby Art Gallery & 
Museum.  

The World Rugby Hall of Fame opened on 17 November, with an 
induction ceremony for some of the top talent of the sport 
including Jonny Wilkinson, Shane Williams and Heather Moyse. 
The new, state-of-the art visitor attraction gives people the 
opportunity to experience rugby's greats and the moments that 
defined the sport in physical location for the first time. 

The cost of the works to install the World Rugby Hall of Fame and reconfigure the entrance foyer and atrium 
was £1.2m (million), which has been underwritten by Rugby Borough Council. 

In the first sixth months of opening, approximately 12,000 people visited the World Rugby Hall of Fame. The 
partnership with World Rugby, the sport’s governing body, is enabling a number of marketing activities to take 
place at local, regional, national and international levels, promoting the town’s unique selling point as the 
birthplace of the game to a greater extent than previously possible. 

A new pricing strategy has been implemented and came into effect at the start of April 2017. This includes 
admission charges for adults, children, concessions and families. Group packages have also been 
developed, incorporating the wider rugby town centre offer, including Rugby School, the Webb Ellis Museum, 
Art Gallery and Museum and guided tours. These were launched at a number of travel and trade exhibitions 
in early 2017. 

A series of events will take place during the year to increase footfall and raise awareness of the attraction, 
including an annual induction ceremony. It has recently been announced that the World Rugby Hall of Fame 
will be the future starting location for all future Men’s, Women’s and Sevens Rugby World Cup Trophy Tours. A 
number of free admission days will be promoted during the year, open to all visitors but also specially targeted 
at local residents. 

An education programme is being delivered for Key stages 1, 2 & 3, including additional activities within the 
Rugby Art Gallery & Museum, whilst there is a plan to engage with local rugby clubs for the new season 
starting in August 2017. 

9 




 

 

 
 

    
 

 
 

 
 

 

  
  

 
  

 
   

      
   

     
 

     

 
  

    

 
 
     

 

   
 

 
 

   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

5. How your Council is performing  

Aside from the achievements associated with the Hall of Fame, the Council’s other key performance 
information of note for 2016/17 include: 

PEOPLE 

Housing 
The Council continues to invest in its Housing stock, including: 

 In the second year of the three-year window and door replacement programme the Council has 
completed over 1,350 properties, investing £4.3m.
 

 126 gas central heating installations were completed during the year costing £350,000. 

 123 new kitchens were installed during 2016/2017, costing £412,000.
 

The roll out of Universal Credit has contributed to an increase in the number of our tenants in arrears, due to 
the time it is taking for DWP to process the claims. There were approximately 400 tenants in receipt of universal 
credit at the end of March 2017 and the rent arrears exceeded total £330,000. 

The Council leased its first Private Sector Leasing scheme property via a private landlord in June 2016. Since 
then 23 units of private sector accommodation have been secured, which will house local people in housing 
need.  It is anticipated that as a result, the Bed & Breakfast spend will reduce in 2017/18 by over £125,000. 

Rugby Borough Council led a partnership bid from the Warwickshire Together Homelessness Early Intervention 
Project to secure a £855,000 grant from the Department for Communities and Local Government's 
Homelessness Prevention Trailblazers fund. 

Crime and Disorder 
Through our on-going Crime and Disorder initiatives, the following was evidenced: 

 Serious Violent crime was reduced by 7.5 per cent 
 Domestic burglary was reduced by 9 per cent 
 Personal Anti-Social Behaviour - every victim that we supported saw a reduction in their vulnerability 

Overall the social and economic costs of those priority crime types were reduced by £1,686,700 having spent 
£57,000 in crime reduction initiatives. Representing a borough wide saving of £29.59 for every £1 spent. 

Leisure and Independent and Healthy Living 
The Council’s commitment to providing leisure facilities and supporting healthy and independent living is 
demonstrated by: 

 Averaging 36,000 contacts per quarter with children and young people aged 5-19 
 Retention of 2000+ Swim School members accessing swimming lessons at The Queen’s Diamond 

Jubilee Centre 
 In partnership with Hill Street Youth Centre, securing 3 years’ youth funding for On Track & Play Services 

totalling £90,000 
 Securing additional £145,000 for Year 3 of Public Health Warwickshire funding for ‘Change Makers’ 

10 
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In January 2017 work to improve a flood-prone stretch of the Great Central Way started, thanks to a grant 
from the Veolia Environmental Trust.  Rugby Borough Council secured the £52,000 grant, awarded through 
the Landfill Communities Fund, to tackle flooding on the footpath and cycle way between the Clifton Road 
bridge and Hillmorton's Pytchley Road. 

BUSINESS 

Public Realm and Town Centre 
A number of improvements were made to enhance 
the public realm of the town centre, including the 
following: 

	 The replacement and refurbishing of timber 

benches is ongoing and the programme is now
 
working towards the periphery of the town 

centre 


	 Town centre car park lighting has been
 
upgraded to energy efficient LED lamp heads 


	 Town centre car park pay & display machines 

have either been totally replaced or had new 

tops fitted on them
 

Growth and Investment 
The Council’s pro-growth agenda continued to facilitate investment and growth in Rugby, as evidenced by: 

 Commencement of development at the Houlton site, a new community development on the site of 
the old Rugby Radio Station. 

 Phase 2 Elliot Fields is situated immediately west of the recent Elliott’s Field regeneration, totaling 
150,000sqft retailing. Due to open October 2017. 

	 Rugby Borough Council was awarded the Best ‘Small Business Friendly’ campaign award as part of 
the Federation of Small Business’ annual Local Authority Awards.  The award was for the Council's work 
on generating wealth for the economy before, during and after the Rugby World Cup 

	 In 2016 the Council launched “The Rugby Town” promotional branding and website for the town 
centre, to assist with destination marketing. See www.therugbytown.co.uk. 

Encourage parish councils and community bodies in neighbourhood development planning 
Wolvey, Wolston, Ryton on Dunsmore and Brandon and Bretford Parish Council have all commenced the 
neighbourhood plan process and now all have Neighbourhood Area Designation status. 

Apprenticeships 
The Council introduced a Corporate Apprenticeship scheme in 2012, to date there have been twenty-four 
apprentices since the scheme started. Our apprentices provide a range of valuable support to a number of 
different services across the Council and have, at times, filled essential gaps that can appear at times when 
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ENVIRONMENT 

Parks and Open Spaces 
2016/17 was also a successful year for the Council’s parks and open spaces, with recognition for: 

	 Rugby gaining a Gold award in both the regional Heart of 

England in Bloom and the National Britain in Bloom 

campaigns. 


	 Gained a Green Flag award for both Caldecott Park and
 
Centenary Park. 


	 In addition, Centenary Park has been recognised officially
 
as the most improved park in the country, by the Fields in
 
Trust
 

	 Successfully gained funding via the Woodland Trust to plant 

over 28,000 trees on our parks and open spaces.
 

	 Successfully worked with our communities to transform
 
Millennium Green and Gladstone Green as part of the 

Government’s Pocket Parks programme 


 Successfully secured £182,000 from the Landfill tax scheme 

to improve our parks and open spaces 


 Supported over 8,000hrs of volunteering on our green
 
spaces.
 

 Supported the creation of the second National Hedgehog 

improvement area around Rugby 


Minimise the impact of litter and fly tipping 

A pile of rubbish was dumped in Caldecott Park on 21st 

March 2017 to mark the launch of a new campaign to 
crackdown on fly-tipping.  The Council staged the fly-
tipping stunt to promote the launch of 
#CrimeNotToCare, a nationwide campaign 
coordinated by Keep Britain Tidy.  In 2016, the Council 
dealt with more than 1,400 fly-tipping incidents, leaving 
the taxpayer to foot a clean-up bill of nearly £57,000 
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COUNCIL 

Increased Availability of Information 
The Visitor Centre has made the shortlist of three for the Visitor Information Provider of the Year Award, which 
honours quality customer service and satisfaction at the country's leading tourist destinations.  Based at Rugby 
Art Gallery and Museum - home of the World Rugby Hall of Fame - the Visitor Centre was judged on a range 
of criteria, including the quality of information on offer, the staff's knowledge and enthusiasm, use of social 
media, and the products sold in the centre's shop. 

2016 also saw the launch of the Rugby Multilink project, offering free advice and support to the borough's 
Polish-speaking community.  The project links established Polish-speaking residents with new residents in need 
of help and support through a Polish Facebook page and Polish language online form. 
https://www.rugby.gov.uk/info/20053/community_development/334/rugby_multi-link 

Partnership working 
 During 2016/17 Rugby Borough Council became a non-constituent member of the West Midlands 

Combined Authority. 
 Renewal of the Warwickshire Direct Partnership, resulting in service improvement and cost savings. 
 Member of the Warwickshire Counter-Fraud Partnership, working with other authorities in Warwickshire 

to reduce the incidence and cost of fraud. 
 The Council also continues to work in partnership with the community and voluntary sector to great 

effect across a wide and varied range of services. 

Further details of the Council’s partnership working can be found within Note 36 Related Party Transactions. 

Improved Service Deliveries via Customer Focused Reviews 
An end-to-end review of void HRA properties was completed, leading to a reduced void levels which now 
stand at 28 days for 2016-17, a significant reduction from 39 days in 2015-16. This reduction equates to an 
increased rental income for the Council of approximately £50,000 per annum. 
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6. Financial Overview 

Local authorities have taken the biggest hit in terms of central government cuts since 2010.  The Council has 
seen significant reductions in some of its core funding streams since 2010, for example our Revenue Support 
Grant has reduced from £3.2m in 2013/14 to £1.1m in 2016/17. 

Even with these cash funding reductions, the Council was able to set a balanced budget for 2016/17.  The 
2016/17 balanced budget position was underpinned by the Council’s strong track-record of delivering 
organisational transformation and efficiency savings, to meet the challenges of the national deficit reduction 
programme. Through sound financial management and an embedded culture of organisational efficiency, 
as demonstrated through our service reviews and systems thinking methodology, the Council has protected 
front-line services whilst also keeping council tax low for residents. 

The Council has also benefited from additional income from retained business rates and New Homes Bonus 
(NHB).  It has been well publicised that Rugby is one of the fastest growing towns in the country and the fastest 
in the West Midlands and this was reflected in the level of income the Council budgeted to receive from 
these schemes.  The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) forecast that the Council would retain an extra 
£329,000 of business rates in 2016/17 and a further £426,000 in 2017/18. In terms of NHB, the Council’s “going 
for growth” agenda has led to further increase in income with an additional £782,000 budgeted in 2016/17. 

Partially offsetting the strong business rates growth, was the need to significantly increase the provision for 
losses against appeals, relating to potential reductions in the rateable value of a number of key sites, including 
supermarkets, warehouses and distributions depots, in addition to losses from the national claim on GP 
surgeries.   The Council’s 40% share of this loss equates to around £1.4m which under regulatory provisions had 
to be budgeted for in 2016/17 as a collection fund deficit.  This loss was met in the 2016/17 budget by a 
contribution from the Business Rates Equalisation reserve. 

Throughout the budget setting process, the intention was to raise council tax by 1.99%, however following the 
Final Settlement announcement, Members made the decision to increase council tax by £5 on the average 
Band D.  This was the first time that a council tax rate increase had been seen in Rugby since 2010. 

However, despite the balanced budget position for 2016/17, the budget setting process concluded with the 
Council standing in a mixed and uncertain medium term financial position.  This uncertainty centred around 
the future of local government finance system, most notably the reform of NHB and 100% Retained Business 
Rates.  Due to the aforementioned uncertainty, the future years’ projections produced in the 2016-20 Medium 
Term Financial Plan (MTFP) were identified as to be treated as indicative figures only, with potential shortfalls 
of approximately £1.9m in 2018/19 and £2.1m in 2019/20. 
For the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) a number of policy and other changes emerged following the 2015 
election. The most significant for the budget was the requirement reduce rents by 1% each year from 2016/17 
until 2019/20. 

The substantial loss of rental income under the new regulations meant the HRA would fall into an illegal deficit 
within 2 years. To mitigate this, a detailed review of balances was undertaken and recommended reducing 
HRA balances by £1.350m and a HRA savings target of £800,000 was also incorporated into the 2016/17 
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budget and the HRA medium term financial plan. 



 

 

 
 

 
   

 

  
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
   

   
  
   
   

   
 

   
 

 
    
  
  
 

 

 
 

 
     

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

  
   

   
 

 
 
 

7. Financial Performance in 2016/17 

General Fund 
In 2016/17 the Council had total Portfolio expenditure of £15.167m against a revised budget, of £15.433m 
resulting in an underspend of £266,000.   Net revenue expenditure budgets include service specific income, 
such as fees and charges and specific grants.   

The year-end position on portfolio net expenditure is set out in the table below. 

Portfolio Revised 
Budget 
£’000 

Actual 

£’000 

Variance 

£’000 
Growth & Investment 3,107 3,224 117 
Corporate Resources  2,126 2,156 30 
Environmental & Public Realm 7,467 7,083 (384) 
Communities and Homes 1,083 1,066 (17) 
Executive Director 1,650 1,638 (12) 
Net Portfolio Expenditure 15,433 15,167 (266) 
Corporate items 260 106 (154) 
Total Net Revenue Expenditure 15,693 15,273 (420) 

Some of the key variances included: 
 £200,000 of budgeted sponsorship income for the Hall of Fame will be recognised in future years 
 A £55,000 saving following the contract revision for Town Centre & CCTV Management. 
 £40,000 of additional burial and licence income for the Cemeteries service. 
 A reduction in budgeted costs for the Recycling Gate fee of £110,000, due to reduced unit costs 

charged by the contractor. 
	 Increased costs for the provision of temporary accommodation of £50,000 following an increase in 

demand locally.  New Universal Credit procedures also means the level of income we have been 
able to recover is now reduced. 

The sources of income from which the Council’s net revenue expenditure was financed, together with the 
final expenditure position against the revised budget is set out in the table below. 
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Revised 
Budget 
£’000 

Actual 

£’000 

Variance 

£’000 
Revenue Support Grant (1,098) (1,098) -
Retained Business Rates (4,226) (4,175) 51 
Council Tax (6,746) (6,746) -
New Homes Bonus Grant (3,221) (3,221) -
Other Grants (427) (446) (19) 
Collection Fund Deficit 1,365 1,365 -
Other (1,243) (1,243) -
Total Funding (15,596) (15,564) 32 
NET POSITION 97 (291) (388) 



 

 

 
  

 
 

 
  

    
 

 
 

    
   

   

   
   

   
  
    

 
 

 
     

   
  

 
 

    
     

 

 
    

 
   

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The table above shows that the final position was an underspend of £388,000 and after accounting for carry 
forward requests and other in-year budget adjustments the net position of £291,000 was added to General 
Fund balances. 

General Fund Balances 
After accounting for all in-year budget adjustments and reserve transfers, £291,000 will be added to General 
Fund revenue balances to leave a total in balances of £2.159m at the end of 2016/17. 

Corporate Savings 
Included within this year-end position is £488,000 of savings achieved against the Council’s revised annual 
corporate savings target of £405,000, as a result of greater efficiencies realised throughout the year. 
Key savings contributing to the achievement of this target include: 

 A further £120,000 saving from Refuse and Recycling, in relation to savings achieved through reduced 
gate fee charges 

 A restructure of the Council’s Democratic Services function, which realised on-going annual savings 
of approximately £40,000 per year.
 

 Software savings from better procurement in the region of £20,000
 
 £12,000 saving from the re-negotiation of the Warwickshire Direct Partnership
 
 Salary savings from vacant posts exceeding £80,000
 

Budget Stability Reserve 
£269,000 was taken from the reserve in 2016/17 to fund the Local Plan & CIL programme (£49,000) and also 
items included in the 2016/17 budget resolution (£210,000).  This contribution was offset by a transfer to the 
reserve of £192,000 from the overachievement of Planning income, leaving the balance in the budget stability 
reserve will be £75,000 at year-end.  There are no immediate plans in 2017/18 to use this reserve but the 
balance is to be set aside to mitigate future budget volatility. 

Business Rates Equalisation Reserve 
The opening balance on the reserve was £1.353m, however £914,000 was budgeted to be used in 2016/17 to 
meet the actual 2015/16 Collection Fund deficit. The closing balance on this reserve in 2016/17 is £439,000. 

Other Reserves 
In addition to the transfers set out above, a further £637,000 has been added to other General Fund 
earmarked reserves in 2016/17, giving a net transfer of £348,000 to be taken reserves. 

At 31st March 2017 the Council had total earmarked General Fund reserves of £3.409m. 

Note 13 details the movements in these earmarked reserves for 2016/17. 
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Collection Fund 

Council Tax 

The amount credited to the General Fund in 2016/17 for council tax income is fixed to the budgeted amount 
of Council Tax billed during the year, not the cash actual collected. Any difference between the actual 
amount collected and the forecast will feed through into a surplus or deficit on the Collection Fund, to be 
met from or credited to future year’s budgets. 

For 2016/17 the actual cash position for council tax was an overall surplus of £837,000 on council tax.  This will 
be distributed between Rugby Borough Council, Warwickshire County Council and The Office of the Police 
and Crime Commissioner for Warwickshire in the relevant shares.  The Council’s share of the surplus is £99,000 
and this will be credited to the General Fund budget in 2018/19. 

Business Rates 

The impact on the General Fund for business rates partially follows the council tax collection fund model, in 
that only some of the transactions go through the Collection Fund, whereas others are a direct charge for the 
General Fund. 

The actual business rates income collected, does go through the Collection Fund and in 2016/17 we have 
achieved in year surplus of £209,000.  This will be distributed between Rugby Borough Council, Warwickshire 
County Council and Central Government in the relevant shares.  The Council’s share of the surplus is £84,000 
and this will be credited to the General Fund budget in 2018/19. 

The Council has to make a levy payment to Government each year, which is equivalent to 50% of its share in 
the growth of local business rates. However, this levy payment is based on actual cash performance each 
year, bi-passing the Collection Fund, and is therefore a direct charge to the General Fund in-year. 

As a result of improved performance and additional growth in business rates in 2016/17, as set out above, the 
Council will have to make a larger levy payment to Government than budgeted. A net levy of £1.8m has 
been charged to the General Fund and this has resulted in a shortfall of £50,000 compared to the original 
business rates budget in year. 

In summary, as a result of this partial Collection Fund model for business rates, there is an adverse variance 
against budget even though the actual 2016/17 cash performance was positive.  The benefit of this 
favourable performance will be credited to the 2018/19 budget. 
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Housing Revenue Account 
The original budget approved in March 2016 recommended reducing HRA balances by £1.350m, maintaining 
a prudent overall balance, whilst mitigating the impact of the 1% rent reduction instigated by Government 
for the period 2016/17 to 2019/20. During the year further net budget changes of £65,000 were approved to 
be taken from balances. The following table shows how the actual net surplus compared to the revised 
budget: 

Revised 
Budget 
£’000 

Actual 

£’000 

Variance 

£’000 
Expenditure 18,280 17,060 (1,220) 
Income (18,325) (18,217) 108 
Net cost of HRA Services (45) (1,157) (1,112) 
Corporate items 110 1,204 1,094 
Surplus ( ) / Deficit for year 65 47 (18) 

In overall terms £1.397m was taken HRA revenue balances to leave a total of £1.431m at 31st March 2017. 

The HRA also held £16.693m in earmarked reserves at 31st March 2017, in addition to £2.463m in the Major 
Repairs Reserve. 

Capital 
Capital expenditure is defined as expenditure on the purchase, improvement or enhancement of assets, the 
benefit of which impacts for longer than the year in which the expenditure is incurred. Capital expenditure 
for the year was £10.465m. The expenditure analysed by portfolio was: 

Portfolio Revised 
Budget 
£’000 

Actual 

£’000 

Variance 

£’000 
Corporate Resources  7,576 6,916 (660) 
Growth & Investment 1,336 1,355 19 
Environmental & Public Realm 1,744 1,299 (445) 
Communities & Homes 1,436 895 (541) 

12,092 10,465 (1,627) 

Some of the main reasons for the budget underspend of £1.6m were: 
 Ongoing contract roll-out for CSW superfast broadband (£160,000) 
 Energy Efficiency external cladding at Long Lawford (completed April 2017) (£294,000); 
 Delayed implementation of Route Optimiser system (£127,000); 
 Ongoing commitment of Carbon Management Plan - Phase 4 Solar Panel installation (£265,000) 
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At 31st March 2017 the Council held £7.9m of capital receipts and £0.7m capital grants that had not yet been 
applied for financing expenditure. 

The graphs below show how the money was spent and how it was financed. 
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The capital expenditure was funded from a variety of sources including the following: 

Capital Financing 2016/17 
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Pension Fund 
The Accounts shows that the Pension Fund now has a deficit of £40.2m, this is an increase in the deficit of 
£6.8m since last year.  The main reason for the decrease in the deficit was due to £5.1m of actuarial losses 
from changes in financial assumptions.  Actuarial losses are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure; however, they have no impact on General Fund Balances in 2016/17.  Statutory arrangements 
for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the Council remains healthy.  The deficit on the 
Local Government Pension Scheme will be made good over 19 years by increased contributions over the 
remaining working life of employees, as assessed by the scheme actuary. 

Current Borrowing and Capital Resources 
All of the borrowing disclosed in the balance sheet relates to the financing of capital expenditure incurred in 
2016/17, earlier years, and for future years. The balance currently stands at £101.8m (both short and long term 
borrowing) as shown on the balance sheet. Future capital expenditure will be financed from borrowing, 
revenue contributions, sale of surplus fixed assets, capital grants and contributions, and relevant funds within 
earmarked reserves. 

Investments in Iceland 
Early in October 2008, the Icelandic banks Landsbanki and Glitnir collapsed. The Council had £3m deposited 
across these institutions. During 2013/14 the Council sold its remaining claim in Landsbanki via auction in 
conjunction with the majority of other local authorities affected by this matter. The Glitnir claims were paid in 
full in 2011/12, although a proportion of the disbursement remains held in Icelandic Krona until such time as 
currency controls are lifted. Details of the remaining funds held in escrow are included at Note 9. 
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8. Future Financial Outlook 

The Council is committed to achieving financial self-sufficiency and recognises that whilst the Council has 
responded successfully to the challenge so far, the Council will have to continue to adapt and alter its 
operations over the medium term in order to meet its objective of becoming financially self-sufficient by 2020. 
With this objective in mind the Council has taken a pro-active approach and took early and decisive action 
to address the gaps in the MTFP that was presented to Cabinet in February 2016. 

In May 2016 the Council completed its restructure of the senior management team, moving from two 
Executive Directors and six Heads of Service to one Executive Director and four Heads of Service, resulting in 
savings of approximately £200,000 per year for the General Fund. 

Following a series of employee briefings over the spring and summer of 2016, where Senior Management set 
out the financial position to the wider workforce, staff were invited to express an interest in taking voluntary 
redundancy.  Proposals from nine officers were accepted, at a cost of £205,000, but providing annual year-
on-year savings of £222,000 and therefore paying back the initial costs within twelve months. 

Senior Management also continued to apply recruitment restrictions to vacant posts and as a result identified 
a number of them for disestablishment, providing savings of £100,000 in the 2017/18 budgets. 

Our Digitalisation transformation project is underway, which will harness improved use of IT for delivering 
services to our customers and improving efficiency. Examples of initiatives underway include the introduction 
of “route optimisation” software, for the waste service and the use of electronic forms for Benefit claims. 
Across the medium term it is expected that digitalisation will produce annual efficiency savings for the Council 
in the region of £250,000. 

The Council is also continuing to explore opportunities for income generation and alternative service delivery 
models including commercial opportunities, social enterprises and trusts. Within the 2017-20 MTFP a prudent 
£200,000 is programmed in for achievement from such sources from 2019/20. 
However, despite the savings realised from these transformation programmes, the Council still had to consider 
and implement a number of key policy changes in order to set a balanced budget for 2017/18 and reduce 
the budget deficits in the later years of the MTFP. 

Firstly, on 7th February 2017 Council approved the introduction of a charged for garden waste collection 
service from the 1st April 2017/18.  The budget forecast for 2017/18 was based on 10,000 subscriptions 
providing an income of £400,000 for the Council. However, by the end of May 2017 more than 19,500 residents 
had subscribed to the garden waste collection service, generating an income of more than £700,000. This 
outstanding take-up puts the Council in a stronger position to close the budget gaps in our MTFP. 

At the same Council meeting the introduction of a charge for entry to the Hall of Fame was also approved. 
An annual income of £165,000 has been included in the budget from this charge. Finally, later in February, 
Council approved a £5 increase in the council tax for 2017/18 providing an additional £50,000 for the financial 
year. 

Despite this positive progress in transforming the organisation and its finances, from a funding perspective the 
landscape for the local government sector remains challenging.  Although some of the uncertainty 
surrounding the future of NHB has been resolved, crucially there continues to be substantial uncertainty 
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surrounding the shape of the 100% retained business rates. 



 

 

  
  

       
      

  

 
  

 
      

    
      

 
  

   
 

      
  

   
   

   
 

  
   

   
    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fundamental changes to the NHB scheme were announced within the 2017/18 Local Government Finance 
Settlement.   Including a reduction in the number of years that NHB is allocated for, reducing from 6 years to 
4 years, and the introduction of a “deadweight” factor that means that NHB will not be received for 
approximately the first 150 homes that are delivered each year in Rugby.    Consequently, Rugby stands to 
lose approximately £3.8m over the remaining three years of the settlement period, compared to the initial 
scheme design.  Furthermore, when coupled with a similar reduction in Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and 
further reductions in other government grants, Rugby has seen a £1.2m cash reduction in grant funding in 
2016/17, equivalent to a 7.5% reduction in the net revenue budget. 

Prior to the announcement of the General Election, the Government had set out to implement 100% Business 
Rates scheme by 2020/21, however this timetable may now shift under a newly formed government.  The 
move to 100% business rate retention will build on the current rate-retention system, introduced in 2013/14, 
where local government retains 50% of business rates.   The Government is consulting on how the new system 
will work and the Council responded to a number of consultations, most recently in May 2017.  The main risk 
the Council faces from the move to 100%, is a potential full reset of the system at the point of implementation, 
resulting in a redistribution of the growth generated since 2013/14 across authorities nationally.  This approach 
could mean that Rugby Borough Council would not be able to retain the £2m growth generated since 
2013/14.  The loss of £2m in our base budget would be extremely challenging for the Council. 

The Council has provided a strong response to the consultations so far and will continue to argue in further 
consultations that authorities that have taken a proactive approach to generate growth in their local 
economies should be sufficiently rewarded by the system. 

In summary, the Council has taken a pro-active approach and made sound progress in addressing the 
budget gaps in its MTFP.  This action has seen the deficits fall to £350,000 in 2018/19 and £500,000 in 2019/20. 
However, the reform to business rates poses a significant risk to the Council’s finances in the medium terms 
and there is still work to be done to achieve our objective of becoming financially self-sufficient by 2020.  
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9. Risks 

The Risk Management Strategy is a foundation for embedding effective risk management within the day-to-
day work of the Council. The Strategy is formally reviewed, endorsed and approved by Cabinet on an annual 
basis to ensure it remains fit for purpose. 

The Council monitors and manages its corporate risks through the Strategic Risk Register.  The Strategic Risk 
Register is focussed to reflect the risks associated with delivery of the Corporate Strategy and the corporate 
priorities that it identifies. The Strategic Risk Management Group review the register on a quarterly basis, 
ensuring that it remains valid and up to date, as part of a broader review of Risk Management within Rugby 
Borough Council. 

The Strategic Risk Register is subsequently endorsed by Cabinet on an annual basis, and is subject to scrutiny 
and review by the Audit & Ethics Committee.  The current risk register will be issued for endorsement by 
Cabinet in June 2017. 

The rolling programme of operational risk register reviews is continuing, and following approval of the 
Council’s new Corporate Strategy a full formal review will be completed by September 2017.  All managers 
and service heads are aware that operational risk registers are subject to ongoing review. 

10. Financial Statements 

The Accounts sets out the Council’s income and expenditure for the year, and its financial position at 31st 

March 2017. It comprises core and supplementary statements, together with disclosure notes. The format and 
content of the financial statements is prescribed by the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17, which in turn is underpinned by International Financial Reporting 
Standards; A Glossary of key terms can be found at the end of this publication. 

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources 
(government grants, rents, council tax and business rates) by local authorities in comparison with those 
resources consumed or earned by authorities in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
practices.  It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the 
Council’s portfolios.  Income and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting 
practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement records all of the Council’s income and expenditure 
for the year, in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards. The top half of the statement 
provides an analysis by service area, in-line with the Council’s structure. The bottom half of the statement 
deals with corporate transactions and funding. Expenditure represents a combination of: 

 services and activities that the Council is required to carry out by law (statutory duties) such as street 
cleaning, planning and waste collection; and, 

 discretionary expenditure focussed on local priorities and needs. 

A Movement in Reserves Statement is a summary of the changes to the Council’s reserves over the course of 
the year. Reserves are divided into “useable”, which can be invested in capital projects or service 
improvements, and “unusable” which must be set aside for specific purposes. 
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The Balance Sheet statement is a “snapshot” of the Council’s assets, liabilities, cash balances and reserves at 
the year-end date. 

The Cash Flow Statement shows the reason for changes in the Council’s cash balances during the year, and 
whether that change is due to operating activities, new investment, or financing activities (such as repayment 
of borrowing and other long term liabilities). 

Notes to support the primary statements provide more detail about the Council’s accounting policies and 
individual transactions. 

The Housing Revenue Account reflects the statutory obligation to maintain a revenue account for local 
authority housing provision. It includes the debit and credit items required to be taken into account in 
determining the surplus or deficit on the HRA for the year. The HRA is incorporated into the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement 

The Collection Fund Statement includes transactions relating to council tax and business rates income.  Rugby 
Borough Council is responsible for collecting local taxes on behalf of Warwickshire County Council, Office of 
the Police and Crime Commissioner for Warwickshire, Parish Councils and the Borough Council itself, these 
are all accounted for within the Collection Fund. 

The Annual Governance Statement sets out the governance structures of the Council and its key internal 
controls. 

Main Changes to the Accounts 
Following the completion of the ‘Telling the Story’ review by CIPFA on improving the presentation of local 
authority financial statements, the 2016/17 Code changed the segmental reporting arrangements for the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and introduced the Expenditure and Funding Analysis. 

The new Expenditure and Funding Analysis brings together local authority performance reported on the basis 
of expenditure measured under proper accounting practices with statutorily defined charges to the General 
Fund and HRA. Both the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the Expenditure and 
Funding Analysis include a segmental analysis which requires local authorities to report performance on the 
basis of how they are structured and how they operate, monitor and manage financial performance. 

Therefore, local authorities are no longer required to report the cost of individual services in their 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in accordance with the format specified in Section 3 of 
SeRCOP and its formal definition of Total Cost in Section.  

The 2016/17 Code also introduces a new streamlined MiRS which: 
 presents the Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure from the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement as one line - on the basis that the columnar analysis of the usable and 
unusable reserves automatically separates the movements between the Surplus and Deficit on the 
Provision of Services and Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure, and 

 excludes the transfers between earmarked reserves and the columnar analysis of earmarked reserves 
as these are not a formal part of financial reporting and are not required by statutory prescription 
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11. Further Information 

If you would like to receive further information about the Accounts please contact the Financial Services 
Team at Town Hall, Evreux Way, Rugby, CV21 2RR. 
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Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts 

The Council's Responsibilities 
The Council is required: 
	 to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of 

its officers has the responsibility of those affairs.  In Rugby Borough Council, this is the Head of Corporate 
Resources and Chief Financial Officer; 

 to manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its 
assets; and 

 to approve the Statement of Accounts. 

The Head of Corporate Resources and Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibilities 
The Head of Corporate Resources and Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the 
Council’s Statement of Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance and Accountancy 2016/17 Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom (the Code). 

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Head of Corporate Resources and Chief Financial Officer has: 
 selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently; 
 made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; 
 complied with the Code of Practice; 

The Head of Corporate Resources and Chief Financial Officer has also: 
 kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and 
 taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

Head of Corporate Resources and Chief Financial Officer’s certificate 
I certify that this Statement of Accounts has been prepared in accordance with proper practices, and 
presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council at 31st March 2017 and its expenditure 
and income for the year then ended. 

Mannie Ketley 
Head of Corporate Resources and Chief Financial Officer 
Date: 

Approval of Statement of Accounts 
In accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, I certify that the Statement of Accounts was 
approved by the Council. 
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Michael Stokes 
Leader of the Council 
Date: 



 

 

 
 

 
  

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

  

 

 
 

 

     

  

      

    

   

       

       

  
 

 
   

       

Expenditure and Funding Analysis 
The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources 
(government grants, rents, council tax and business rates) by local authorities in comparison with those 
resources consumed or earned by authorities in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. 
It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the council’s portfolios. 
Income and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is presented more 
fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

2015/16 
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2016/17 

Net 
Expenditure 

Chargeable to 
the General 

Fund and HRA 
Balances 

Adjustments 
Between the 
Funding and 
Accounting 

Basis 

Net Expenditure 
in the 

Comprehensive 
Income and 
Expenditure 
Statement 

Net Expenditure 
Chargeable to 

the General 
Fund and HRA 

Balances 

Adjustments 
Between the 
Funding and 
Accounting 

Basis 

Net Expenditure 
in the 

Comprehensive 
Income and 
Expenditure 
Statement 

£’000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

2,341 909 3,250 Growth and Investment 2,003 1,057 3,060 

5,685 1,882 7,567 Environmental and 
Public Realm 5,714 1,640 7,354 

603 950 1,553 Communities and Homes 
General Fund 410 443 853 

(10,972) (2,486) (13,458) Communities and Homes  
HRA (10,375) (40,782) (51,157) 

1,589 (46) 1,543 Corporate Resources 1,928 51 1,979 

2,235 50 2,285 Executive Directors Office 1,626 32 1,658 

952 - 952 Rugby World Cup - - -

2,433 1,259 3,692 Net Cost of Services 1,306 (37,559) (36,253) 

(7,751) (2,527) (10,278) Other Income and 
Expenditure 786 (11,024) (10,238) 

(5,318) (1,268) (6,586) Surplus or Deficit 2,092 (48,583) (46,491) 

(20,466) Opening General Fund and 
HRA Balance (25,784) 

(5,318) 
Plus / Less Surplus (-) or 

Deficit on General Fund 
and HRA Balance in Year 

2,092 

(25,784) Closing General Fund and 
HRA Balance at 31st March (23,692) 



 

 

 
    

      
  
 

 
 

 
       

     
     
    
      
       
    
 

    

       

       

       

       

      

        

   
    

    
     

       

    
    

 
   
 

 

 
 
 
 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation or rents. Authorities raise 
taxation and rents to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the 
accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis and the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. 
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31st March 2016 31st March 2017 
Exp 
£000 

Inc 
£000 

Net 
£000 

Exp 
£000 

Inc 
£000 

Net 
£000 

5,381 (2,131) 3,250 Growth and Investment 5,332 (2,272) 3,060 
18,483 (10,916) 7,567 Environmental and Public Realm 16,583 (9,229) 7,354 
2,686 (1,133) 1,553 Communities and Homes – General Fund 2,578 (1,725) 853 
5,138 (18,596) (13,458) Communities and Homes - HRA (32,939) (18,218) (51,157) 
26,019 (24,476) 1,543 Corporate Resources 22,816 (20,837) 1,979 
2,466 (181) 2,285 Executive Directors Office 1,944 (286) 1,658 
1,066 (114) 952 Rugby World Cup - - -

61,239 (57,547) 3,692 Cost of services 16,314 (52,567) (36,253) 

2,716 Other operating expenditure (Note 14) 3,197 

2,996 Financing and investment income and 
expenditure (Note 15) 2,746 

(15,990) Taxation and non-specific grant income 
(Note 16) (16,181) 

(6,586) Surplus (-) / Deficit on provision of services (46,491) 

(42) Gains (-) / Losses on hedging instruments 
(Note 40) (268) 

(18,180) Surplus (-) / Deficit on revaluation of 
property, plant & equipment (Note 22) (10,605) 

(155) Downward valuation of financial 
instruments (Note 42) (58) 

(11,772) Re-measurements of the net defined 
benefit liability (Note 37) 5,091 

(30,149) Other comprehensive income (-) and 
expenditure (5,840) 

(36,735) Total comprehensive income (-) and 
expenditure (52,331) 

The 2015/16 gross income and expenditure figures within Cost of Services and also Other Operating 
Expenditure have been restated to reflect a change in accounting policy following the introduction of the 
Expenditure and Financing Analysis (EFA).  There is no impact upon the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of 
Services and further details are provided within Note 6 Prior Period Adjustment, Changes in Accounting 
Policies and Estimates and Errors. 



 

 

 
  

     
 

 
 

      
   

  
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
   

   
 

 
 
 
 
 

Movement in Reserves Statement 

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Council, analysed into 
‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other 
‘unusable reserves’. 

The statement shows how the movements in year of the Council’s reserves are broken down between gains 
and losses incurred in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and the statutory 
adjustments required to return to the amounts chargeable to council tax or rents for the year.  The Net 
Increase/Decrease line shows the statutory General Fund Balance and Housing Revenue Account Balance 
movements in the year following the adjustments. 

The graph below shows how the Council’s usable reserves have changed during 2016/17. 

2016/17 Usable Reserves 
 25,000 

-

 5,000

 10,000

 15,000

 20,000

£,
00

0 

General Fund Housing Revenue Capital Receipts Major Repairs Capital Grants
 
Balance Account Reserves Reserve Unapplied
 

As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016 

The reasons for the movement on some of the reserves is as follows: 

General Fund Balance 
The General Fund Balance at 31st March 2017 consists of £2.159m within the general balance and £3.409m 
within earmarked reserves, totalling £5.568m at year-end.  In 2016/17 a total of £291,000 was added to general 
balances at year-end, however this includes a net transfer of £348,000 from earmarked reserves in 2016/17 to 
support General Fund services and mitigate budget volatility, resulting in an aggregated reduction of £52,000 
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on total General Fund balances compared to 2015/16.  Details of the £348,000 earmarked reserve transfers 
can be seen in Note 13.



 

 

 
    

 
   

    
  

  
 

   
 

        
    
  

 

 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HRA Reserves 
The HRA Balance at 31st March 2017 consists of £1.431m within the revenue balance, £954,000 within the 
Housing Repairs Account, and balances held for capital investment of £15.687m.  In 2016/17 a total of £2.037m 
was taken from balances at year-end. Within this figure, £1.397m was taken from the revenue balance to 
mitigate the impact of the 1% rent reduction; £323,000 was added to the Housing Repairs Account to ensure 
resilience for responsive and planned repairs in future years; and £1.014m was taken from capital investment 
balances.  The latter provides resources to fund new build properties, strategic land acquisition, and suitable 
properties from the open market. Up to 30% of the cost of such acquisitions can be met from Right-to-Buy 
receipts (see Capital Receipts Reserve) 

Capital Receipts Reserves 
The Council sold 26 properties under the Right-to –Buy scheme in 2016/17 generating net receipts (after 
pooling) of £1.6m which will be utilised to fund replacement properties (up to 30% of cost) in future years. The 
level of acquisitions is forecast to rise in future years to provide one-for-one replacement subject to market 
conditions. 

Major Repairs Reserve 
The Council is currently mid-way through a total door and window replacement programme of £12m for its 
housing stock. It is anticipated that the level of the reserve will fall from 2015/16 until 2017/18 when this 
programme of works is completed. 
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£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Balance at 31st March 2016 (5,624) (20,160) (6,539) (3,839) (709) (36,871) (72,533) (109,404) 

Movement in reserves 
during 2016/17 
Total Comprehensive 
Income & Expenditure 1,397 (47,888) - - - (46,491) (5,840) (52,331) 

Adjustments between 
accounting basis & funding 
basis under regulations 

(1,341) 49,924 (1,382) 1,376 20 48,597 (48,597) -

(Increase) or Decrease in 
2016/17 56 2,036 (1,382) 1,376 20 2,106 (54,437) (52,331) 

Balance at 31st March 2017 
carried forward (5,568) (18,124) (7,921) (2,463) (689) (34,765) (126,970) (161,735) 
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£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Balance at 31st March 2015 (5,365) (15,101) (5,299) (5,109) (574) (31,448) (41,221) (72,669) 

Movement in reserves 
during 2015/16 

Total Comprehensive 
Income & Expenditure 4,100 (10,686) - - - (6,586) (30,149) (36,735) 

Adjustments between 
accounting basis & funding 
basis under regulations 

(4,359) 5,627 (1,240) 1,270 (135) 1,163 (1,163) -

(Increase) or Decrease in 
2015/16 (259) (5,059) (1,240) 1,270 (135) (5,423) (31,312) (36,735) 

Balance at 31st March 2016 
carried forward (5,624) (20,160) (6,539) (3,839) (709) (36,871) (72,533) (109,404) 



 

 

   
    

  

     
     

 
  

    
   

  

   
   

  
  

    
   

 
    

   
    

 
   
    

 
  
 
 

   
   
    

 
 

   
    
  
   
   

 

 
   

                     
 

Balance Sheet 
The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by 
the Council. The net assets of the Council (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the 
Council. 

Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that may 
be used to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory 
limitations on their use. The second category of reserves cannot be used to provide services, such as reserves 
that hold unrecognised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts only become 
available if assets are sold, and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement line ‘Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’. 
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31st March 
2016 
£000 

Notes 
31st March 

2017 
£000 

175,979 Property, Plant & Equipment 18 229,490 
20,857 Heritage Assets 25 21,753 

695 Investment Property 19 695 
427 Intangible Assets 370 

9,499 Long Term Investments 39 9,834 
1,067 Long Term Advances 27 1,066 
202 Long Term Debtors 28 208 

208,726 Long Term Assets 263,416 
15,619 Short term Investments 39 35,560 

23 Assets Held for Sale less than 1 year 20 76 
234 Inventories 171 

5,024 Short Term Debtors 28 5,195 
17,009 Cash and Cash Equivalents 30 12,315 
37,909 Current Assets 53,317 
(7,329) Short Term Borrowings 39 (19,668) 
(3,828) Short Term Creditors 29 (9,462) 
(436) Short  Term Provisions 43 (1,058) 

(11,593) Current Liabilities (30,188) 
(89,585) Long Term Borrowing 39 (82,109) 
(33,394) Pension Liability Account 37 (40,174) 
(1,487) Capital / Revenue Grants Receipts in Advance 17 (1,521) 
(1,172) Long Term Provisions 43 (1,006) 

(125,638) Long Term Liabilities (124,810) 
109,404 Net Assets 161,735 
(36,871) Usable reserves MIRS (34,765) 
(72,533) Unusable reserves MIRS (126,970) 
(109,404) Total Reserves (161,735) 

Signed Date Dd/mm/yy 

M Ketley, CPFA, Head of Corporate Resources and Chief Financial Officer 
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Cash Flow Statement 
The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during the reporting 
period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying 
cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating 
activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Council are funded by way of taxation 
and grant income or from the recipients of the services provided by the Council.  Investing activities represent 
the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the 
Council’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on 
future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Council. 

2015/16 
£’000 Notes 2016/17 

£’000 
(7,877) Operating Activities 31 (13,869) 
4,949 Investing Activities 32 26,825 
492 Financing Activities 33 (8,262) 

(2,436) Net increase ( ) or decrease in cash and cash equivalents 4,694 
14,573 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 30 17,009 
17,009 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 30 12,315 

Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 
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£12.315m 

Within the above figure includes: 

Cash held by the Council 

Money Market Funds 

£17.009m
 

Within the above figure includes: 


Cash held by the Council 


Money Market Funds 


Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 



 

 

 
 

 
   

 

 

 

  
   

  
     

  

 
  

 
  

   
      

  
    

  

  
    

  
 

 
    

          
  

 
 

 

 

Note 1. Basis for Preparation 

The notes to the financial statements on the following pages are in order of significance, primarily based on 
aiding an understanding of the key drivers of the financial position of the Council, whilst maintaining the 
grouping of notes between the income and expenditure statement and the balance sheet where 
appropriate. The notes relating to specific financial statement lines include the corresponding accounting 
policy. As a result, there is not a separate principal accounting policies note. However, Note 2 details general 
accounting policies where there are not any accompanying notes. 

Details of the order of the notes can be found in the index. 

Note 2. General Accounting Policies (where there is no accompanying note) 

General 
The Statement of Accounts (the Accounts) summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2016/17 financial 
year and its position at the year-end of 31st March 2017. The Council is required to prepare annual Accounts 
by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, which require the Accounts to be prepared in accordance with 
proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17 (the Code), supported by International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS).  

The accounting convention adopted in the Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by the revaluation 
of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. 

Accruals of Income and Expenditure 
The Council's revenue and capital activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, by including sums 
due to or from the Council in the year, not simply when cash payments are made or received. 

Where material income and expenditure amounts have been recognised but cash has not been received or 
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where debts may not 
be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might 
not be collected (bad debts). 

This concept is not applied to electricity and gas supplies and other routine on-going business expenses. 
However, the Accounts do reflect twelve months' supply in each year and this does not have a material 
effect on the Accounts. 

Fair Value Measurement 
The Council measures some of its assets and liabilities at fair value at the end of the reporting period. Fair 
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability at the measurement 
date. The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes 
place either: 
a) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
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b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 



 

 

      
 

 

  
  

   
  

   

 
 

    
   

    
    

 

   
     

  
  

  

  

    

 

 
 

   

  

  

     
 

  
   

 
 
 
 

The Council uses external Valuers to provide a valuation of its assets and liabilities in line with the highest and 

best use definition within the accounting standard. The highest and best use of the asset or liability being 

valued is considered from the perspective of a market participant.
 

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of the Council’s fair value measurement of its assets and
 
liabilities are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as follows: 

Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Council can 

access at the measurement date.
 
Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
 
either directly or indirectly. 

Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 


Intangible Assets 
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance are identifiable and controlled by 
the Council is capitalised when it is expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from 
the intangible asset to the Council. Normal examples are those of software or software licences, which have 
a value, but over a fairly short life of 3 –10 years and are therefore written down over that useful life. 

Joint Operations 
Joint operations are arrangements where the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights 
to the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the arrangement.  The activities undertaken by the 
Council in conjunction with other joint operators involve the use of the assets and resources of those joint 
operators.  In relation to its interest in a joint operation, the Council as a joint operator recognises: 

	 Its assets, including any held jointly 

	 Its liabilities, including any share of any liabilities incurred jointly 

	 Its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation 

	 Its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly 

The Council has a 50% interest in the Rainsbrook Crematorium Joint Committee with the other 50% relating to 
Daventry District Council. The decision making and operational arrangements of the Joint Committee fulfil 
the features associated with a jointly controlled operation in that: 

	 Each operator incurs its own expenses and liabilities and raises its own finance, which represent its own 
obligations; and 

	 The joint operation agreement provides a means by which the revenue from the service and any 
expenses incurred in common are shared among the operators. 

Therefore, in line with the contractual arrangements set out in the joint agreement, the Council recognises its 
share of the operational assets and liabilities of the Joint Committee on its Balance Sheet and also debits and 
credits the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement with 50% of the expenditure and income of 
the Joint Committee. This is also recognised in the Movement in Reserves Statement and the Cash Flow 
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Statement as appropriate.  Further detail on this Joint Operation is also provided in Note 36 Related Party 
Transactions. 



 

 

 

 
 

   

  
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Overheads and Support Services 
The cost of overheads and support services are charged to the Council’s Portfolios in accordance with the 
Council’s arrangements for accountability and financial performance. 

Inventories and Long-term Contracts 
Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Long-term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services with the value of works and services received under the contract during the financial year. 

Value Added Tax (VAT) 
VAT is included in service revenue or capital income and expenditure accounts only when it is not 
recoverable. 
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Note 3. Accounting Standards that have been Issued but have not yet been Adopted 

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) requires the disclosure 
of information relating to the expected impact of an accounting change that will be required by a new 
standard that has been issued but not yet adopted. 

The 2017/18 Code consultation includes two standards that will apply from 1st April 2018, i.e. in the 2018/19 
Code: IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. 

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 
IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. It includes: 
 a single classification approach for financial assets driven by cash flow characteristics and how an 

instrument is managed 
 a forward looking ‘expected loss’ model for impairment rather than the ‘incurred loss’ model under 

IAS 39, and 
 new provisions on hedge accounting. 

There is a possibility that the changes introduced by the standard will have a timing and budgetary impact 
on local authorities, depending on the individual circumstances of each authority. 

Early adoption will not be permitted and there is therefore no impact on the 2016/17 Accounts. 

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
IFRS 15 replaces IAS 18 Revenue and IAS 11 Construction Contracts and their associated interpretations. The 
core principle in IFRS 15 for local authorities is that they should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of 
promised goods or services to the service recipient or customer in an amount that reflects the consideration 
to which the Council expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. 

Early adoption will not be permitted and there is therefore no impact on the 2016/17 Accounts. 

Note 4. Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies 

There is a high degree of uncertainty about future funding for Local Government. However, the Council has 
determined that this uncertainty is not sufficient to provide an indication that the assets of the Council might 
be impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce levels of service provision. 
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Note 5. Assumptions made about the Future and other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 

The Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the Council about the 
future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current 
trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual 
results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates. 

The items in the Council’s Balance Sheet at 31st March 2017 for which there is a significant risk of material 
adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows: 

Item Uncertainties Effect if Actual Results Differ from Assumptions 
Provision for 
Business Rate 
Appeals 

The possible refund from a 
business rate appeal can vary 
depending on factors such as; 
the type of appeal and type of 
property, together with its 
geographical location and the 
probability of appeal success. 

Following a comprehensive assessment of the 
outstanding business rates appeals at 31st March 2017, 
a total provision of £4.9m was made for potential 
future appeal refunds. Rugby Borough Council's 40% 
share of this provision is £1.9m.  The effect of a change 
in the provision is as follows: 

25% higher/lower:  £494,250 
50% higher/lower:  £988,500 

Pensions 
Liability 

Estimation of the net liability to 
pay pensions depends on a 
number of complex judgements 
relating to the discount rate used, 
the rate at which salaries are 
expected to increase, change in 
retirement ages, mortality rates 
and expected returns on pension 
fund assets. Warwickshire County 
Council utilise consulting 
actuaries to provide all 
Warwickshire authorities with 
expert advice about the 
assumptions to be applied. 

The effect on the pension net liability of changes in 
individual assumptions can be measured. For 
instance, a 0.5% increase in the discount rate would 
result in a decrease in the pension liability of 
£13.079m. However, the assumptions interact in 
complex ways and actuaries model thousands of 
possible outcomes in order to establish what the 
world might look like over the long term. 

As per our accounting policy, other estimation techniques are used for the purposes of producing the 
Accounts. 
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Note 6. Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors 

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material error. 
Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years 
affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment. 

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the change 
provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions 
on the Council’s financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is applied 
retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the 
prior period as if the new policy had always been applied. 

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening 
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 

Trading Operations 
As part of the adoption of the changes to the presentation of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement for this year’s Accounts, a detailed review of the content  of each line was undertaken.  In  
accordance with the Code’s requirements gross income and expenditure from the Council’s trading 
operations for 2016/17 have been included within the relevant line within Cost of Services.  

However, previously the net surplus from the operation of the Council’s Works Services Unit has been 
presented within the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line.  Therefore, the 2015/16 gross 
income and expenditure figures within Cost of Services and also the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line have been restated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to reflect this 
change in accounting policy.  There is no impact upon the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services, or any 
other of the Core Statements.  Note 15 for Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure has also been 
updated accordingly. 

Furthermore, the content and presentation of Note 34 Trading Operations has been updated to reflect the 
requirements of the Code to disclose all material activities that are subject to commercial or trading risks. 
Previously, this note included the surplus generated from the Works Services Unit, but has now been revised to 
include income and expenditure from Trade Waste, the Crematorium, Car Parking and the Benn Hall.  The 
2015/16 surplus or deficits for these services have been included for comparative purposes. 

39
 



 

 

 
 

      
 

  
   

 
 

   
 

  
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

    

      

     

     

     

     

     

     

      

      

 

     

     

 

 

   

      

 

    

     

 

 

Note 7. Officers Remuneration 

Benefits payable during employment 
Short term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. They include 
salaries, wages and other employment related payments and are recognised as an expense in the year in 
which the service is rendered by the employees. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements 
earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can carry forward into the 
following financial year. 

The remuneration of the Council’s senior employees is as follows: 
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Post Holder Salary 

£ 

Fees 
Expense 

Allowances 

£ 

Benefits 
in Kind 

£ 

Remuneration 
excluding 
pension 

contributions 
£ 

Pension 
Contributions 

£ 

Remuneration 
including 
pension 

contributions 
£ 

Notes 

Executive 
Director (A) 

2016/17 32,160 - - 32,160 3,810 35,970 1 

2015/16 69,240 50 770 70,060 9,830 79,890 

Executive 
Director (B) 

2016/17 88,440 690 - 89,130 13,270 102,400 

2015/16 78,990 270 - 79,260 11,220 90,480 

Head of 
Communities 
& Homes 

2016/17 63,320 - - 63,320 9,500 72,820 

2015/16 61,650 - - 61,650 8,750 70,400 

Head of 
Corporate 
Resources 

2016/17 64,120 190 - 64,310 9,480 73,790 

2015/16 40,260 - - 40,260 8,260 48,520 

Head of 
Environment & 
Public Realm 

2016/17 63,320 110 1,940 65,370 9,500 74,870 

2015/16 61,650 - 2,600 64,250 8,750 73,000 

Head of 
Growth & 
Investment 

2016/17 63,320 - - 63,320 9,500 72,820 

2015/16 61,650 - - 61,650 8,750 70,400 

Head of 
Business 
Transformation 

2016/17 14,350 - - 14,350 - 14,350 2 

2015/16 61,650 80 - 61,730 8,750 70,480 

Head of 
Housing & 
Property 

2016/17 22,430 10 - 22,440 780 23,220 3 

2015/16 61,650 190 - 61,840 8,750 70,590 



 

 

 

   
  

 

      
 

    
    

 

 

   

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
  

 
   

  
   

 

   
     

 
   

 

 

 

     
  
   
 
  

    
 
 
 
 
 
 

1)  As part of a Senior Management Restructure the Executive Director (A) took voluntary redundancy in 
August 2016.  The officer’s remuneration for 2016/17 is set out in the table above and the costs to the Council 
associated with voluntary redundancy are included within the Termination Benefit note below.  

2) The Head of Business Transformation took voluntary redundancy at the end of the financial year in 2015/16, 
the salary in 2016/17 relates to pay in lieu of notice and leave adjustments. 

3) Head of Housing & Property was made redundant in April 2016.  The officer’s remuneration for 2016/17 is 
set out in the table above and the costs to the Council associated with voluntary redundancy are included 
within the Termination Benefit note below. 

The Council’s other employees receiving more than £50,000 remuneration for the year (excluding employer’s 
pension contributions) were paid the following amounts. 

Remuneration Band 2015/16 
Number of employees 

2016/17 
Number of employees 

£50,000 - £54,999 2 2 

Termination Benefits 
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of the Council’s decision to terminate an officer’s 
employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy. 
These are charged on an accruals basis to the relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure Statement when the Council is demonstrably committed to the termination of the employment 
of an officer or group of officers or making an offer to encourage voluntary redundancy. 

Rugby Borough Council terminated the contracts of 25 employees in 2016/17, incurring liabilities of £505,000 
(£66,000 in 2015/16).  The number of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory 
and other redundancies are set out in the table below: 
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Exit package cost 
bands (including 
special payments) 

Number of 
compulsory 

redundancies 

Number of 
agreed other 

departures 

Total number of 
exit packages by 

cost band 

Total cost of exit 
packages in each cost 

band 

2015/16 

2016/17 

2015/16 

2016/17 

2015/16 

2016/17 

2015/16 

2016/17 

£0 - £20,000 2 - - 17 2 17 £16,480 £195,450 
£20,001 - £40,000 - - - 5 - 5 - £129,740 
£40,001 - £60,000 - 1 1 1 1 2 £49,820 £99,510 
£60,001 - £80,000 - - - - - - - -
£80,001 - £100,000 - - - 1 - 1 - £80,470 

Total 2 1 1 24 3 25 £66,300 £505,170 



 

 

 
 

 
 

   
   
   
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
  

  

 

 

   
 

  
    

  
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Note 8.  Members Allowances 

The total costs of Members’ allowances paid in the year were as follows: 

2015/16 
£ 

2016/17 
£ 

342,440 Allowances 334,460 
7,810 Employers’ National Insurance 5,940 
13,390 Expenses 12,420 

363,640 Total 352,820 

Note 9.  Deposits in Icelandic Banks 

During 2008 the Icelandic banking system collapsed. At the time of the crisis, the Council had £3m invested 
with Icelandic institutions in receivership as detailed below: 

Bank Investment Start 
Date 

Planned Maturity 
Date 

Original 
Investment 

£’000 

Outstanding 
Amount # 

£’000 
Glitnir Bank 27/11/2006 27/11/2008 2,000 540 
Landsbanki Islands 
HF 

13/08/2007 13/07/2009 1,000 0 

# including amounts held in escrow 

Glitnir 
Following a decision by the Icelandic Supreme Court to grant UK Local Authorities priority status, the Winding 
Up Board made a full distribution to creditors in a basket of currencies in March 2012. 

An element of the distribution (£446,000) was made in Icelandic Kroner (£540,000 as at 31st March 2017) which 
has been placed in an escrow account in Iceland. This element of the distribution has been retained in 
Iceland due to currency controls and as a result is subject to exchange rate risk over which the Council has 
no control. 

Landsbanki 
During 2013/14 the Council, in conjunction with other local authority creditors arranged for the sale of its 
outstanding claim with the Landsbanki Winding Up Board (WUB). 

The Landsbanki administration process was completed in 2013/14. 
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Note 10. Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis 
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Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis 2016/17 

Adjustments from General Fund to arrive 
at the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement amounts 

Adjustments for 
Capital 

Purposes 
(Note 1) 

Net change for 
the Pensions 
Adjustments 

(Note 2) 

Other 
Differences 

(Note 3) 

Total 
Adjustments 

£000 £000 £000 £000 
Growth and Investment 981 76 - 1,057 

Environmental and Public Realm 1,441 199 - 1,640 
Communities and Homes General Fund 356 87 - 443 

Communities and Homes  HRA (40,880) 98 - (40,782) 
Corporate Resources 23 28 - 51 

Executive Directors Office 7 25 - 32 
Rugby World Cup - - - -

Net Cost of Services (38,072) 513 - (37,559) 
Other income and expenditure from the 

Expenditure and Funding Analysis (10,553) 1,177 (1,648) (11,024) 

Difference between General Fund 
surplus or deficit and Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 

Services 

(48,625) 1,690 (1,648) (48,583) 

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis 2015/16 

Adjustments from General Fund to arrive 
at the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement amounts 

Adjustments for 
Capital 

Purposes 
(Note 1) 

Net change for 
the Pensions 
Adjustments 

(Note 2) 

Other 
Differences 

(Note 3) 

Total 
Adjustments 

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Growth and Investment 755 148 6 909 

Environmental and Public Realm 1,448 443 (9) 1,882 

Communities and Homes General Fund 774 179 (3) 950 

Communities and Homes  HRA (2,706) 212 8 (2,486) 

Corporate Resources (87) 44 (3) (46) 

Executive Directors Office 3 54 (7) 50 

Rugby World Cup - - - -

Net Cost of Services 187 1,080 (8) 1,259 
Other income and expenditure from the 

Expenditure and Funding Analysis (5,062) 1,384 1,151 (2,527) 

Difference between General Fund surplus 
or deficit and Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement Surplus or 

Deficit on the Provision of Services 

(4,875) 2,464 1,143 (1,268) 



 

 

 
 

  

   

 
 

  

  
 

 
 

    
  

   
 

 

  
  

 
 

   
   

  

  

  
 

  
   

  
 

   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1)	 Adjustments for Capital Purposes 
Adjustments for capital purposes – this column adds in depreciation and impairment and revaluation 
gains and losses in the services line, and for: 

	 Other operating expenditure – adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income on disposal of 
assets and the amounts written off for those assets. 

	 Financing and investment income and expenditure – the statutory charges for capital financing 
(i.e. Minimum Revenue Provision and other revenue contributions) are deducted from other 
income and expenditure as these are not chargeable under generally accepted accounting 
practices. 

	 Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure – capital grants are adjusted for income 
not chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices.  The Taxation and Non Specific 
Grant Income and Expenditure line is credited with capital grants receivable in the year without 
conditions or for which conditions were satisfied in the year. 

2) Net Change for the Pensions Adjustments 
Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of IAS19 Employee Benefits pension 
related expenditure and income: 

	 For services this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the 
Council as allowed by statute and the replacement with current service costs and past services 
costs. 

	 For Financing and investment income and expenditure the net interest on the defined benefit 
liability is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

3)	 Other Differences 
Other differences between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement and amounts payable/receivable to be recognised under statute: 

	 For services an adjustment is made for the amount by which officer remuneration charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis is different from 
remuneration chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory requirements. 

	 For Financing and investment income and expenditure adjustments are made the for movement 
in the fair value of the Council’s investment properties. 

	 The charge under Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure represents the 
difference between what is chargeable under statutory regulations for council tax and business 
rates that was projected to be received at the start of the year and the income recognised under 
generally accepted accounting practices in the Code.  This is a timing difference as any 
difference will be brought forward in the Surpluses or Deficits on the Collection Fund. 
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Note 11. Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature 

The Council’s expenditure and income is analysed as follows: 

2015/16 
£000 

2016/17 
£000 

Expenditure 
Employee benefits expenses 17,557 17,290 

Other service expenses 41,291 36,465 

Depreciation, amortisation, impairment (16) (37,440) 

Interest payments 3,631 3,512 

Precepts and levies 696 715 

Payments to Housing Capital Receipts Pool 662 497 

Gain on the disposal of assets 1,374 1,983 

Total expenditure 65,195 23,022 

Income 
Fees, charges and other service income (14,897) (15,383) 

HRA dwelling rents (16,732) (16,322) 

Interest and investment income (502) (766) 

Income from council tax, non-domestic rates (9,289) (10,641) 

Government grants and contributions (30,361) (26,402) 

Total income (71,781) (69,514) 

Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services (6,586) (46,492) 

The downwards movement in both the Other services expenses and Government grants and contributions 
lines is primarily due to a reduction in housing benefit payments and related subsidy income in 2016/17 
compared to 2015/16.  This reduction has occurred due to an increase in claimants being transferred from 
Housing Benefit to Universal Credit. 
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Note 12. Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis Under Regulations 

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure 
recognised by the Council in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to arrive at the 
resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Council to meet future capital 
and revenue expenditure.  The following sets out a description of the reserves that the adjustments are made 
against. 

General Fund Balance 
The General Fund is the statutory fund into which all the receipts of the Council are required to be paid and 
out of which all liabilities of the Council are to be met, except to the extent that statutory rules might provide 
otherwise.  These rules can also specify the financial year in which liabilities and payments should impact on 
the General Fund Balance, which is not necessarily in accordance with proper accounting practice.  The 
General Fund Balance therefore summarises the resource that the Council is statutorily empowered to spend 
on its services or on capital investment (or the deficit of resources that the Council is required to recover) at 
the end of the financial years.  The balance however, is not available to be applied to funding HRA activities. 

Housing Revenue Account 
The Housing Revenue Account Balance reflects the statutory obligation to maintain a revenue account for 
local authority council housing provision in accordance with part VI of the Local Government and Housing 
Act 1989.  It contains the balance of income and expenditure as defined by the 1989 Act that is available to 
fund future expenditure in connection with the Council’s landlord function or where in deficit is required to 
be recovered from tenants in future years. 

Major Repairs Reserve 
The Council is required to maintain the Major Repairs Reserve, which controls an element of the capital 
resources limited to being used on capital expenditure on HRA assets or the financing of historical capital 
expenditure by the HRA.  The balance shows the capital resources that have yet to be applied at the year-
end. 

Capital Receipts Reserve 
The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets, which are restricted 
by statue from being used other than to fund new capital expenditure or to be set aside to finance historical 
capital expenditure.  The balance on the reserve shows the resources that have yet to be applied for these 
purposes at the year-end. 

Capital Grants Unapplied 
The Capital Grants Unapplied Account holds the grants and contributions received towards capital projects 
for which the Council has met the conditions that would otherwise require repayment of the monies but 
which have yet to be applied to meet the expenditure.  The balance is restricted by grant terms as to the 
capital expenditure against which it can be applied and/or the financial year in which this can take place. 
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2016/17 Usable Reserves 

G
eneral

Fund
Balances

Housing 
Revenue 
A

ccount

C
apital

Receipts
Reserve

M
ajor

Repairs
Reserve

C
apital

G
rants

Unapplied
 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Amounts involving the Capital Adjustment Account 

Depreciation and impairment of non-current assets (2,165) (2,703) - - -
Revaluation losses on property plant and equipment (457) 43,601 - - -
Movements in the fair value of investment properties - - - - -
Amortisation of intangible assets (136) (69) - - -
Capital grants and contributions applied 724 51 - - -
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (606) - - - -
Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of 
the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 

(9) (4,121) - - -

Insertion of items not debited or credited to the CIES 
Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment 1,215 6,453 - - -
Capital expenditure charged against revenue balances 266 1,014 - - -

Adjustments involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account 
Interest credited to Section 106’s  2 - - - (2) 
Capital grants and contributions unapplied credited to the CIES 24 - - - (24) 
Application of grants to capital financing transferred to the Capital 
Adjustment Account - - - - 46 

Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts Reserve 
Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on 
disposal/unattached receipts to the CIES 43 2,103 (2,146) - -

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital 
expenditure - - 267 - -

Contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance payments 
to the government capital receipts pool (497) - 497 - -

Transfer from the Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of 
cash - - - - -

Adjustments involving the Major Repairs Reserve (MRR) 
Interest credited to MRR 31 - - (31) -
Reversal of Major Repairs Allowance credited to the HRA - 3,893 - (3,893) -
Use of the MRR to finance new capital expenditure - - - 5,301 -

Adjustments involving the Pension Reserve 
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits (3,500) (582) - - -
Employers pension contributions and direct payments to pensioners 
payable in the year 2,109 284 - - -

Adjustments involving the Collection Fund Adjustments Account 
Amount by which council tax and business rates income credited to 
the CIES is different from income calculated in the year in 
accordance with statutory requirements 

1,615 - - - -

Adjustments involving Accumulated Absences Account 
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the CIES on an 
accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the year in 
accordance with statutory requirements 

- - - - -

Total Adjustments (1,341) 49,924 (1,382) 1,376 20 
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2015/16 Usable Reserves 

G
eneral

Fund
Balances

Housing 
Revenue 
A

ccount

C
apital

Receipts
Reserve

M
ajor

Repairs
Reserve

C
apital

G
rants

Unapplied
 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Amounts involving the Capital Adjustment Account 

Depreciation and impairment of non-current assets (2,180) (1,966) - - -
Revaluation losses on property plant and equipment (252) 4,687 - - -
Movements in the fair value of investment properties 97 - - - -
Amortisation of intangible assets (133) (24) - - -
Capital grants and contributions applied 1,310 9 - - -
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (607) - - - -
Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of 
the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 

(29) (3,606) - - -

Insertion of items not debited or credited to the CIES 
Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment 974 - - - -
Capital expenditure charged against revenue balances 124 988 - - -

Adjustments involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account 
Interest credited to Section 106’s  2 - - - (2) 
Capital grants and contributions unapplied credited to the CIES 208 - - - (208) 
Application of grants to capital financing transferred to the Capital 
Adjustment Account - - - - 75 

Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts Reserve 
Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on 
disposal/unattached receipts to the CIES 36 2,241 (2,277) - -

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital 
expenditure - - 383 - -

Contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance payments 
to the government capital receipts pool (662) - 662 - -

Transfer from the Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of 
cash - - (8) - -

Adjustments involving the Major Repairs Reserve (MRR) 
Interest credited to MRR 47 - - (47) -
Reversal of Major Repairs Allowance credited to the HRA - 3,759 - (3,759) -
Use of the MRR to finance new capital expenditure - - - 5,076 -

Adjustments involving the Pension Reserve 
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits (3,963) (737) - - -
Employers pension contributions and direct payments to pensioners 
payable in the year 1,951 284 - - -

Adjustments involving the Collection Fund Adjustments Account 
Amount by which council tax and business rates income credited to 
the CIES is different from income calculated in the year in 
accordance with statutory requirements 

(1,297) - - - -

Adjustments involving Accumulated Absences Account 
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the CIES on an 
accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the year in 
accordance with statutory requirements 

15 (8) - - -

Total Adjustments (4,359) 5,627 (1,240) 1,270 (135) 
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Note 13.  Transfers to / from (-) Earmarked Reserves 

This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund and HRA balances in earmarked reserves to 
provide financing for future expenditure plans and the amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to 
meet General Fund and HRA expenditure in 2016/17. 

Balance 
at 1st April 

2015 

£’000 

Transfers 
Out 

2015/16 

£’000 

Transfers 
in ( ) 

2015/16 

£’000 

Balance 
at 31st 

March 
2016 
£’000 

Transfers 
Out 

2016/17 

£’000 

Transfers 
in ( ) 

2016/17 

£’000 

Balance 
at 31st 

March 
2017 
£’000 

Business Rates 
Equalisation Reserve (319) 238 (1,272) (1,353) 914 - (439) 

Budget Stability 
Reserve (635) 636 (142) (141) 259 (192) (74) 

Section 106 
(Developer 
Contributions) 

(1,552) 132 (88) (1,508) 111 (36) (1,433) 

New Homes Bonus 
Reserve (209) 139 - (70) 70 - -

Revenue Grants & 
Contributions from 
3rd Parties 

(191) 59 (70) (202) 46 (386) (542) 

Hall of Fame Reserve - - - - - (300) (300) 
Works Services Unit 
Operational Reserve (35) - (72) (107) 35 (55) (127) 

Other smaller 
reserves (352) 59 (83) (376) 83 (201) (494) 

Total GF 
Earmarked Reserves (3,293) 1,263 (1,727) (3,757) 1,518 (1,170) (3,409) 

Housing Repairs 
Account (842) 3,329 (3,118) (631) 3,007 (3,330) (954) 

Capital Investment 
Balances (11,534) 988 (6,155) (16,701) 1,014 - (15,687) 

Sheltered 
Accommodation - - - - - (52) (52) 

Total HRA Earmarked 
Reserves (12,376) 4,317 (9,273) (17,332) 4,021 (3,382) (16,693) 
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Earmarked Reserves 

Business Rates Equalisation Reserve 
This reserve was established in 2013/14 in order to allow mitigation of fluctuations in the business rates base 
and resultant income.  £914,000 has been taken from this reserve in 2016/17 to part-fund the cost of the 
budgeted collection fund deficit on business rates. 

Budget Stability Reserve 
This was also created in 2013/14 to allow short term contributions towards balancing the budget.  There are 
various items within the Council’s budget that are subject to significant degrees of volatility or variation from 
one year to another, often due to factors that are outside the Council’s control or influence; this reserve assists 
the mitigation of such volatility by allowing the Council to call upon it in years where budget overspends 
occur and conversely replenish it in years where underspends arise. 

£192,000 has been added to the reserve in 2016/17 from the overachievement of planning fee income, 
whereas £259,000 has been taken from it to fund expenditure related to items included in the 2016/17 budget 
resolution in addition to the production of the Local Plan. 

Section 106 Developer Contributions 
These represent amounts of money paid to the Council during development for specific projects and 
agreements with developers for the provision of additional facilities as and when land or schemes become 
available to provide those facilities. 

Revenue Grants & Contributions from 3rd Parties 
These are grant payments and contributions from 3rd parties where either the grant conditions have been 
met or no conditions exist.  The monies are held in this reserve until required to fund expenditure in future years. 

Hall of Fame Reserve 
The cost of the works to install the World Rugby Hall of Fame and reconfigure the entrance foyer and atrium 
was £1.2m.  The Council has a four-year licence for the operation of the Hall of Fame from 2016/17 to 2020/21. 
However, this capital outlay will be financed from revenue budgets in the form of four £300,000 Minimum 
Revenue Provision (MRP) payments from 2017/18 to 2021/22, resulting in a timing difference between the 
operational budgets and financing requirements.  To address this difference, £300,000 has been contributed 
to an earmarked reserve in 2016/17 to give a more accurate reflection of the Hall of Fame’s financial 
performance for the year within the service’s revenue budget.  This £300,000 balance will be maintained until 
2020/21 when it will be called upon to meet the final MRP instalment. 

New Homes Bonus Reserve 
The New Homes Bonus reserve was initially set up in the first year of receipt of New Homes Bonus funding in 
2011/12 and has been used to finance one-off schemes and initiatives.  The Council receives grant funding 
each year based on additional new and affordable homes in the Borough. Since the first year however and 
following the on-going reduction in core government funding, subsequent allocations have been used as 
part of the Council’s mainstream income. 
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Works Services Unit Operational Reserve 
The primary purpose of this reserve is to mitigate any budget volatility from the Works Services Unit’s trading 
activities from one year to the next, with annual surplus and deficits being transferred to and from the reserve 
respectively.  The secondary purpose is to utilise any accumulated balances for the funding of one-off 
investment in the Works Services Unit, for example funding will be employed in 2017/18 for the implementation 
of the Route Optimiser software for the Waste Collection Service. 

Other Smaller Reserves E.g. Plant & Equipment Reserves 
Plant and equipment reserves are typically set aside to either fund specific capital expenditure or for the 
maintenance of existing assets. 

Housing Repairs Account and HRA Capital Investment Balances 
Annually transfers are made from these reserves towards  the cost of  in year  council house repairs and 
maintenance or capital projects.  In addition, transfers are made to these reserves from income generated 
within the Housing Revenue Account towards the cost of future repairs and maintenance or capital schemes. 
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Note 14. Other Operating Expenditure 

2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 

696 Parish council precepts 715 
662 Payments to the Government Housing Capital Receipts Pool 497 
(16) Other income – unattached receipts (43) 

1,374 Gains (-) / Losses on the disposal of non-current assets 2,028 
2,716 Total 3,197 

Note 15. Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 

2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 

2,247 Interest payable and similar charges 2,322 
1,384 Net interest on the net defined benefit liability 1,177 
(502) Interest receivable and similar income (718) 

(143) Income and expenditure in relation to investment properties and 
changes in their fair value (47) 

42 Loss on forward contract 12 
(32) Gain(-) / Impairment of financial assets -

2,996 Total 2,746 

Note 16. Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income 

2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 

(6,524) Council tax income (6,850) 
(16,421) Retained business rates (17,561) 
13,656 Business rates tariff payment 13,770 
(5,454) Non-ring fenced government grants (5,296) 
(1,247) Capital grants and contributions (244) 
(15,990) Total (16,181) 
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Note 17. Grant Income 

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party contributions and 
donations are recognised as due to the Council and credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement when there is reasonable assurance that: 

 the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments; and 
 the grants or contributions will be received. 

Monies advanced as grants or contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in the 
Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant 
service line or Taxation and Non Specific Grant line in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement. 

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are 
reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where it has been applied 
to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Where the grant has yet to 
be applied, it is posted to the Capital Grant Unapplied reserve.  Amounts in the Capital Grant Unapplied 
reserve are subsequently transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been used to fund 
capital expenditure. 

Rugby Borough Council credited the following grants, contributions and 
donations to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 

Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income 
Revenue Support Grant 1,775 1,098 
New Homes Bonus 2,446 3,221 
Business Rates Section 31 Grants 769 531 
Other Non-Specific Revenue Grants 484 446 
Non ring-fenced government grants 5,454 5,296 

Section 106 Capital Funding 272 1 
Local Public Service Agreement Property Purchases Funding 43 55 
Play Areas Contribution from SitaTrust 35 80 
Play Areas Contribution from DCLG 20 -
Play Areas Contribution from Veolia Environmental Trust 100 52 
Play Areas Contribution from WREN Community Action Fund 75 50 
Homes & Communities Agency funding for Woodside Park 692 -
Other grants (Less than £25,000) 10 6 
Capital grants and contributions 1,247 244 

Total Grants Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income 6,701 5,540 
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2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 

Credited to Services 
DWP - Housing Benefits Rent Allowances Subsidy 13,214 10,691 
DWP - Housing Benefits Rent Rebates Subsidy 9,592 8,677 
DWP- Trailblazer Homelessness Early Intervention Prevention - 285 
DWP -  Discretionary Housing Allowance Subsidy 104 112 
DWP – Local Authority Data Share - 26 
DCLG - Preventing Homelessness 117 67 
The Cabinet Office - Individual Electoral Registration 45 46 
Warwickshire Police & Crime Commissioner - Safer and Stronger 
Communities 

35 35 

Sport England ESC Lottery Grant - 29 
Warwickshire County Council  Partnership Grant for Green Waste 
Collection 

- 25 

The Arts Council  - Museum Resilience 69 -
Section 106 Revenue Funding utilised for the Rugby World Cup 47 -
Other Revenue Grants (Less than £25,000) 116 182 
Other Section 106 Revenue Funding 81 131 
Revenue Grants 23,420 20,306 

DCLG - Disabled Facilities Grant 275 493 
Section 106 Capital Funding 6 63 
Capital Grants 281 556 

Total Grants Credited to Services 23,701 20,862 

The Council has received the following grants and contributions that have yet to be recognised as income 
as there are conditions attached to them that require the monies to be returned to the awarding body if 
unspent on relevant expenditure. The balances at the year-end are as follows: 
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2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 

Revenue Section 106 Funding 686 704 
Amounts Held in Perpetuity / Specific Reasons 145 145 
Dept. Energy & Climate Change - District Heating Network 33 33 
DCLG - Preventing Homelessness 67 -
Other Revenue grants (Less than £25,000) 54 57 
Revenue Receipts Held in Advance 985 939 

Capital Section 106 funding 434 582 
Local Public Service Agreement Property Purchases Funding 55 -
Other Capital grants (Less than £25,000) 13 -
Capital Receipts Held in Advance 502 582 

Total Receipts Held in Advance 1,487 1,521 



 

 

 
  

 
 

 
   

      
       

  
  

 
    

 

 
       

 

    
   

    
   

 
     

     
  

        
 

 
 

    
   

     
 

     
    

  
    

     

 
 
 
 

Note 18. Property Plant and Equipment 

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for 
rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one 
financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment. 

Recognition 
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised on 
an accruals basis provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential 
associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits or 
service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as a revenue expense when it is incurred. The 
Council has established a de-minimis level of £10,000.  Expenditure on assets under this level is not capitalised 
within the Accounts and the assets are fully depreciated within the year. 

Measurement 
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising: 
 the purchase price 
 any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be 

capable of operating in the manner intended by management 

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the acquisition does 
not have any commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash flows of the Council). In the 
latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of 
the asset given up by the Council. 

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases: 
 Infrastructure assets, community assets and assets under construction are carried at historic cost, net 

of depreciation where appropriate. 
 surplus assets – the current value measurement base is fair value, estimated at highest and best use 

from a market participant’s perspective; 
 all other assets – current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing 

use (existing use value – EUV). 

Where there is no market based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an asset, 
depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of fair value.  This includes assets such as the 
Queen’s Diamond Jubilee Leisure Centre, Benn Hall and the John Barford Car Park. 

Where non-property assets have short useful lives and/or low values, such vehicles and IT equipment, they are 
measured at depreciated historical cost as a proxy for fair value. 

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that their 
carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value at the year-end, but as a minimum every five 
years. Land and building assets under £10,000 are not revalued with the exception of investment properties. 
Increases in valuation are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains, or 
may be credited to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement to reverse a previous downward 
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revaluation. 



 

 

 
   

     

    
   

 
 

   
 

 
 

  
  

      
  

 

      
 

  
 

 

 
 

    
  

   
 

  

   
    
 

     
  

   
 

 
 

  
 

 
 
 

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for: 
 Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation reserve, the carrying 

amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated 
gains) 

 Where there is no balance in the Revaluation reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount 
of the asset is written down against the relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure Statement. 

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1st April 2007 only, the date of its formal 
implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment 
Account. 

Impairment 
Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. 
Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount 
of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is 
recognised for the shortfall. Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for as per decreases 
in value noted above. 

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service line(s) in the 
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for 
depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised. 

Impairment Losses 
No impairments were recognised in the year following a review of asset compliance with our 
componentisation policy. 

Depreciation 
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic allocation of their 
depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a determinable useful life 
(i.e. freehold land and Community Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under 
construction). 

Where depreciation is provided for, assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following 
periods: 
 Dwellings and other buildings – 5-60 yrs. 
 Vehicles, plant and equipment – 3-25 yrs. 
 Infrastructure – 7-40 yrs. 

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value 
depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their 
historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. 

Componentisation 
Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has major components whose cost is significant in relation 
to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately. The Council has established a 
threshold of £500,000 for determining whether an asset needs to be componentised and an individual asset 
cost of more than 25% to determine whether an asset is considered as a component. 
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Subsequent Expenditure on Property Plant and Equipment 
Subsequent costs incurred on an asset previously recognised as Property, Plant and Equipment will only be 
capitalised if they result in items with physical substance and meet the recognition principle that 
 It is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to 

the Council; and 
 The cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

Exceptions to the general approach of comparing the outcome of expenditure compared to previously 
assessed levels of performance: 
 Where subsequent expenditure will actually increase the level of performance of an asset in 

generating economic benefits or providing service potential but does not increase the level of 
performance previously assessed by the Council for that asset, then the assessment can be updated 
(through a revaluation adjustment) and the new expenditure capitalised 

 Where subsequent expenditure represents the replacement of a component of an existing asset 
provided that the old component can be written out of the Balance Sheet 

Disposals 
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet is 
written off to the Income and Expenditure Account as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from 
disposal are credited to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the 
time of disposal). Any revaluation gains in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment 
Account. 

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts, whereas amounts 
below are classed as revenue income. A proportion of receipts relating to Right-to-Buy housing disposals are 
payable to the Government. The balance of receipts is required to be credited to the Capital Receipts 
Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital investment. Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve 
from the General Fund or HRA Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

The writing off of the remaining net book value of assets which are disposed of is not a charge against council 
tax, as the cost of non-current assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. 
Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. 

Valuations 
Council dwellings have been included on the basis of their valuation by an external professional valuer, Mr A 
George (MRICS) of George & Company Chartered Surveyors, as at 1st April 2016. All valuations (formal and 
desktop) are carried out on a 5 year rolling programme basis in accordance with the Guidance on Stock 
Valuation for Resource Accounting (the Valuation Guidance). 

In addition, as per last year, a desktop review was carried out in 2016/17 using house price indexation for the 
West Midlands to assess any general market changes in value.  The result was an increase in value of 
approximately £7.7m.  This approach was reviewed by Mr A George (MRICS) of George & Company 
Chartered Surveyors, whose own data suggests a similar result to the increase in values at a local level.  Further 
to the potential issue with the varying shifts in value between flats and houses highlighted in previous years, 
Mr George notes that over the year the values between the different housing styles have again remained at 
a comparative level. 
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Other land and buildings owned by both the General Fund and the Housing Revenue Account have also 
been valued on the basis of a five year rolling programme by the Council’s contracted external valuer, Mr P 
Mawson (FRICS) of Godfrey-Payton, Chartered Surveyors. 

In January 2017 Mr Mawson valued a number of properties for 2016/17 totalling £8.2m giving a land and 
buildings split, an estimated useful life and assuming a residual value for depreciation purposes. A further 
programme of valuations will continue in 2017/18 to maintain the five-year rolling programme. 

Where the revaluations resulted in a lower value for assets than previously held, they were assessed for 
impairment.  This results in a charge being made to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
where there are insufficient balances in the Revaluation Reserve. However, it should be noted that this does 
not impact on council tax as this charge is reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

In addition to land and buildings noted above, Mr Mawson was also asked to review and confirm that the 
carrying value of all other land and buildings at the 31st March 2017 did not differ materially from the fair value 
of those assets at the end of the reporting period. 

Each year guidance is sought from the Valuer in order to identify the appropriate bases for valuation; these 
are disclosed within the accounting policies in addition to the bases for depreciation calculations. 
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Total 

Cost or Valuation £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 

At 1st April 2016 131,161 31,786 11,500 5,761 798 5,624 707 187,337 

Additions 5,743 363 1,363 294 46 2 615 8,426 

Derecognition – disposals (1,482) - (254) (2) - - - (1,738) 

Derecognition - componentisation (2,635) - - - - - - (2,635) 

Reclassification (174) 647 - - - - (647) (174) 

Revaluation increases / decreases (-) 
recognised in the revaluation reserve 10,459 144 - - - - - 10,603 

Revaluation increases / decreases (-) 
recognised in the surplus / deficit on the 
provision of services 

41,946 (1,661) - - - - - 40,285 

Other movements in cost or valuation - - - - - - - -

At 31st March 2017 185,018 31,279 12,609 6,053 844 5,626 675 242,104 

Depreciation and impairments 

At 1st April 2016 (1,868) (1,340) (6,815) (1,312) (20) (3) - (11,358) 

Charge for 2016/17 (2,633) (471) (1,068) (302) - (4) - (4,478) 

Derecognition – disposals 21 - 243 1 - - - 265 

Reclassification 3 - - - - - - 3 

Depreciation written out to the surplus / 
deficit on the provision of services due 
to revaluation 

1,854 1,100 - - - - - 2,954 

Impairment losses / reversals (-) 
recognised in the surplus / deficit on the 
provision of services 

- - - - - - - -

At 31st March 2017 (2,623) (711) (7,640) (1,613) (20) (7) (12,614) 

Balance Sheet at 31st March 2017 182,395 30,568 4,969 4,440 824 5,619 675 229,490 
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Total 

Cost or Valuation £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 

At 1st April 2015 126,203 31,388 10,600 5,000 798 3,283 504 177,776 

Additions 5,337 1,104 1,522 671 - 41 702 9,377 

Derecognition – disposals (1,105) - (754) - - - - (1,859) 

Derecognition - componentisation (2,305) - - - - - - (2,305) 

Reclassification 9 237 132 133 - (8) (499) 4 

Revaluation increases / decreases (-) 
recognised in the revaluation reserve 68 203 - - - 2174 - 2,445 

Revaluation increases / decreases (-) 
recognised in the surplus / deficit on the 
provision of services 

2,954 (1,146) - (43) - 139 - 1,904 

Other movements in cost or valuation - - - - - (5) - (5) 

At 31st March 2016 131,161 31,786 11,500 5,761 798 5,624 707 187,337 

Depreciation and impairments 

At 1st April 2015 (1,815) (1,391) (6,444) (1,040) (20) (64) - (10,774) 

Charge for 2015/16 (1,871) (626) (1,095) (275) - (3) - (3,870) 

Derecognition – disposals 32 - 724 - - - - 756 

Reclassification - - - - - - - -

Depreciation written out to the surplus / 
deficit on the provision of services due 
to revaluation 

1,786 677 - 3 - 64 - 2,530 

Impairment losses / reversals (-) 
recognised in the surplus / deficit on the 
provision of services 

- - - - - - - -

At 31st March 2016 (1,868) (1,340) (6,815) (1,312) (20) (3) (11,358) 

Balance Sheet at 31st March 2017 129,293 30,446 4,685 4,449 778 5,621 707 175,979 
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O
perational assets
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ent N
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O

perational assets

A
ssets held for sale

Total non-current
assets carried

 at 
current value

A
ssets carried

 at other
value 

Total V
aluation (A

ll 
A

ssets) 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Valued at 
historical cost - 15 - - - 15 10,570 10,585 

Valued at 
current cost in: 

2016/17 182,395 8,801 - - 76 191,272 - 191,272 
2015/16 - 1,686 5,619 695 - 8,000 - 8,000 
2014/15 - 5,165 - - - 5,165 89 5,254 

2013/14 - 9,855 - - - 9,855 249 10,104 

2012/13 - 5,046 - - - 5,046 - 5,046 
Total 182,395 30,568 5,619 695 76 219,353 10,908 230,261 

The above statement shows the progress of the Council’s rolling programme for the revaluation of current 
assets. The Council’s housing stock was revalued as at 1st April 2016 by George & Co. Surveyors, although a 
desktop exercise has been undertaken in 2016/17 by George & Co. Surveyors to restate the asset values in 
light of market conditions. 
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Note 19.  Investment Properties 

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. The 
definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or production of 
goods or is held for sale. 

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the amount at 
which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm’s length. Properties are not 
depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses on 
revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income & Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal. 

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment Income 
line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses 
are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and 
losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and 
posted to the Capital Adjustments Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital 
Receipts Reserve. 

Fair Value Hierarchy 
All the Council’s investment properties have been value assessed as Level 2 on the fair value hierarchy for 
valuation purposes (see criteria in Note 2 General Accounting Policies) 

Valuation Techniques Used to Determine Level 2 Fair Values for Investment Property 
The fair value of investment property has been measured using a market approach, which takes into account 
quoted prices for similar assets in active markets, existing lease terms and rentals, research into market 
evidence including market rentals and yields, the covenant strength for existing tenants, and data and 
market knowledge gained in managing the Council’s Investment Asset portfolio. Market conditions are such 
that similar properties are actively purchased and sold and the level of observable inputs are significant, 
leading to the properties being categorised as level 2 on the fair value hierarchy. 

There has been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year for investment properties. 

The following table shows there has been no net movement in the fair value of investment properties over 
the 2016/17. 
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2015/16 2016/17 

£’000 £’000 

Balance at start of the year 598 695 

Net gains/(losses) from fair value 
adjustments 97 -

Balance of end the year 695 695 



 

 

    
   

   
      

  
    

 
 

  
    

  
 

 

  

  

   

 

 

    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Note 20. Assets Held for Sale 

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a sale 
transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is 
revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less 
costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other 
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are 
recognised only up to the amount of any previous losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of 
Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale. 

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back to non-
current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as held for sale, 
adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been 
classified as held for sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision to sell. 

2015/16 2016/17 

£’000 £’000 

Balance outstanding at star of 
year 272 23 

Revaluation losses (13) (95) 

Assets sold (227) (23) 

Reclassification  (9) 171 

Balance outstanding at year-end 23 76 
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Note 21. Capital Expenditure and Financing 

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the next table, together with the 
resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by 
charges to revenue as assets are used by the Council, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital 
Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the Council that 
has yet to be financed.  The CFR is analysed in the second part of this note. 

Government Grants and Contributions 
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are 
reversed out of the General Fund or HRA Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where it has been 
used to finance capital expenditure it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Where the grant has yet 
to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve. Amounts in 
the Capital Grant Unapplied reserve are subsequently transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once 
they have been applied to fund capital expenditure. 

Revenue Expenditure funded from Capital under Statute 
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be funded from capital financing sources under statutory 
provisions, but does not result in the creation of non-current assets for the Council is charged to the relevant 
service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. In the main this relates to 
expenditure on Disabled Facilities Grants and other Home Improvement Loans. Where the cost of this 
expenditure is met from existing capital resources a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the 
General Fund or HRA Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account reverses out the amounts charged so that 
there is no impact on the level of council tax. 

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 
The Council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses or 
amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue towards the reduction in 
its overall borrowing requirement, equal to either an amount calculated on a prudent basis or as determined 
by the Council in accordance with statutory guidance.  

Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by the 
contribution in the General Fund Balance (MRP or loans fund principal), by way of an adjusting transaction 
within the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between 
the two. This ensures that depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations have no overall 
effect on council tax or housing rent levels. 

The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2008, require 
local authorities to approve an MRP policy at the beginning of each financial year on setting aside a sum of 
money from revenue for the repayment of principal on outstanding debt. During 2015/16 the Council 
approved a policy such that, for capital expenditure incurred before 1st April 2008, the MRP is based on 2% 
straight-line method of the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement for the General Fund. For General Fund 
capital expenditure incurred after 1st April 2008, the MRP is based upon the estimated life of those assets where 
the financing was provided by borrowing. 

There is no equivalent requirement for the Housing Revenue Account but voluntary contributions may be 

64 

made for debt repayment. 
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2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 

Opening Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 90,025 91,503 
Capital Investment: 
Property, Plant, and Equipment 9,377 8,427 
Heritage Assets 27 1,285 
Intangible Assets 406 147 
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 607 606 
Long Term Debtors - -
Capital Investment Total 10,417 10,465 

Sources of Financing: 
Capital Receipts (383) (267) 
Government Grants & Other Contributions (1,394) (822) 
Sums Set Aside from Revenue (1,112) (1,280) 
Earmarked Reserves (5,076) (5,301) 
Minimum Revenue Provision / Voluntary Revenue Provision  (974) (7,668) 
Financing Total (8,939) (15,338) 
Closing Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 91,503 86,630 

Explanation of movements in year: 
Increase in underlying need to borrow (unsupported by government 
financial assistance) 1,478 (4,873) 

Increase / decrease ( ) in Capital Financing Requirement 1,478 (4,873) 

Capital commitments 
Capital commitments as at 31st March 2017 amounted to £4.0m. This amounts to the contractual 
arrangements to deliver doors and windows replacement. Capital commitments as at 31st March 2016 
amounted to £8.1m. 
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Note 22. Revaluation Reserve 

This reserve represents mainly the balance of the gains and losses arising on the periodic revaluation of current 
assets. 

2015/16 Total 
£’000 

General Fund 
£’000 

HRA 
£’000 

2016/17 Total 
£’000 

(11,427) Balance as at 1st April (28,373) (915) (29,288) 
(18,464) Upward revaluation of assets (194) (10,476) (10,670) 

284 

Downward revaluation of assets & 
impairment losses not charged to 

the surplus / deficit on the 
provision of services 

50 17 67 

(29,607) 

Surplus on revaluation of non-
current assets not posted to the 
surplus or deficit on the provision 

of services 

(28,517) (11,374) (39,891) 

319 
Difference between fair value 

depreciation and historical cost 
depreciation 

299 114 413 

- Accumulated gains on assets sold 
or scrapped - 142 142 

(29,288) Balance as at 31st March (28,218) (11,118) (39,336) 
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Note 23. Capital Adjustment Account 

This account represents the amounts set aside from revenue resources or capital receipts to finance 
expenditure on non-current assets or for the repayment of loans as well as other capital financing transactions 
as required by the Accounting Code of Practice. 
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2015/16 2016/17 
£’000 £’000 £’000 

(72,966) Balance as at 1st April (78,211) 
Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure 

debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement: 

2,180 General Fund charges for depreciation of non-
current assets 2,165 

1,966 HRA charges for depreciation of non-current assets 2,703 

(4,435) Revaluation and impairment loss: Property, Plant 
and Equipment (43,144) 

157 Amortisation of intangible assets reversal 205 

607 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under 
Statute written down 606 

3,635 

Amounts of non-current assets written off on 
disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal 

to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 
Statement 

4,130 

4,110 (33,335) 

(319) Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation 
Reserve (555) 

(69,175) Net written out amount of the cost of non-current 
assets consumed in the year (112,101) 

Capital financing applied in the year: 

(383) Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new 
capital expenditure (267) 

(1,112) Capital expenditure charged against the General 
Fund & HRA balances (1,280) 

(5,076) Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance new 
capital expenditure (5,301) 

(1,394) 
Capital grants & contributions credited to the 

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement 
that have been applied to capital financing 

(822) 

(974) 
Statutory provision for the financing of capital 

investment charged against the General Fund and 
HRA balances 

(7,668) 

(8,939) (15,338) 

(97) 

Movements in the market value of Investment 
Properties debited or credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement 

-

(78,211) Balance at 31st March (127,439) 



 

 

 
 

      
 

  
 

 

 
 

 
   

    
   

 
 

 
     

 

 
 

 
  
  
 

 
 

   
   

      
  

    
 

   
    

    
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Note 24.  Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 

The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non-current assets but 
for which cash settlement has yet to take place. Under statutory arrangements, the Council does not treat 
these gains as usable for financing new capital expenditure until they are backed by cash receipts.  These 
arise from mortgages on sales of council houses which are included under Long Term Advances – Loans 
Outstanding. When the deferred cash settlement takes place, amounts are transferred to the Capital 
Receipts Reserve. 

2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 

(40) Balance at 1st April (32) 
8 Transfer to the Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash -

(32) Balance at 31st March (32) 

Note 25. Heritage Assets 

Heritage assets are assets that are held by the Council principally for their contribution to knowledge and 
culture. They are a distinct class of asset which is reported separately from property, plant, and equipment. 
Previously the majority of these assets had been held as Community Assets with the exception of one or two 
which were held in Infrastructure Assets or Other Land and Buildings. The heritage assets held by the Council 
have been categorised as follows: 

 Art & Social History Collections 
 Monuments & Statues 
 Historic sites / buildings 
 Civic Regalia 

The Code requires councils to recognise heritage assets where the Council has information on the cost or 
value of the asset. However, the unique nature of many heritage assets makes reliable valuation complex. 
Where it is not practical to obtain a valuation for an asset (at a cost which is commensurate with the benefits 
to users of the financial statements) and cost information is available, the asset will be carried at historical cost 
(less any accumulated depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses) as permitted by the Code. 

Valuations may be made by any method that is appropriate and relevant to the heritage asset: this includes 
insurance valuations for museum collections, monuments & statues, historic sites, and civic regalia. It is not a 
requirement of the Code for valuations to be carried out or verified by external valuers. Although there is no 
prescribed minimum period between full valuations, the Council considers it appropriate to seek a full 
valuation every five years. 

Impairment reviews will only take place where there is physical deterioration or new doubts as to the 
authenticity of the heritage asset. Any impairment recognised will be treated in accordance with the 
Council’s policy on impairments. 
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Reconciliation of the carrying value of Heritage assets held by the Council: 

Intangibles 

£’000 

Art & Social 
History 

Collections 
£’000 

Monuments & 
Statues 

£’000 

Historic Sites 
/ Buildings 

£’000 

Civic 
Regalia 

£’000 

Total 
Assets 

£’000 
Cost or valuation 

1st April 2015 4,123 671 457 95 5,346 
Additions - - 27 - - 27 

Revaluations - - (18) 15,772 - 15,754 
Reclassifications - - 5 - - 5 

Depreciation - - - (275) - (275) 
31st March 2016 4,123 685 15,954 95 20,857 

Cost or valuation 
1st April 2016 4,123 685 15,954 95 20,857 

Additions 1,216 - - 69 - 1,285 
Revaluations - - - - - -

Reclassifications - - - - - -
Depreciation (114) - - (275) - (389) 

31st March 2017 1,102 4,123 685 15,748 95 21,753 

Revaluations of Heritage Assets 
In accordance with the Council’s accounting policy on Heritage Assets, valuations may be made by any 
method that is appropriate and relevant to the heritage asset. During 2015/16 historic sites, principally the 
Great Central Walk bridges, were assessed for insurance purposes by council engineers on the basis of re-
instatement costs, leading to a revaluation of £15.754m. These assets had previously been reported in the 
balance sheet at historic cost. 

Additions and Disposals of Heritage Assets 
Additions in the year of £1.285m relate to purchases for the World Rugby Hall of Fame Exhibition of £1.200m, 
£69,000 infrastructure work on the Great Central Walk and £16,000 for a film work purchase. 

Art Collections 
The Council’s collections of art work are reported in the Balance Sheet at insurance valuation which is based 
on market values. The Rugby Art Collection was revalued by Sotheby’s in 2012/13. The collections include the 
following items: 
 The Rugby Art Collection – 20th century and contemporary British art 
 The Local Art Collection 
 Andrew Varah Furniture 
 Social History Collection – mainly donated artefacts 
 Redding Collection – glass plate negatives 
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The Rugby Art Collection 
The Rugby Collection of 20th century and contemporary British art was established in 1946, and now holds 
more than 170 important paintings, drawings, prints and film works.  The collection includes work by Eduardo 
Paolozzi, Stanley Spencer, Walter Sickert, Barbara Hepworth, Bridget Riley and L.S. Lowry.  It is not on 
permanent display, but parts of it are shown every year in the Rugby Collection show, usually around March 
– June.  At other times, visitors and researchers can view individual works in store by appointment.  From time 
to time, pieces from the collection are loaned to other regional, national or international institutions. 

The Social History Collection 
Rugby Museum’s Social History Collection has been built up since 2000, almost entirely from artefacts donated 
by local people.  It reflects Rugby’s rich engineering heritage, as well as the social and domestic lives of the 
people of the borough. It contains around 6,000 items, mostly of low value. Part of the collection is on display 
in the Rugby Museum, the remainder is in store. 

The Redding Collection 
The Redding Collection of glass plate negatives came to Rugby Museum following the closure of a local 
photographic business.  It contains around 20,000 glass plate negatives, mostly from the 1950s and 1960s, 
many of them portraits and a significant number representing the immigrant communities in the borough.  The 
collection is not on display as it is vulnerable; the content will be made accessible to the public following a 
digitisation programme. 

Monuments & Statues 
 Echo sculpture (Caldecott Park) 
 Water feature (Caldecott Park) 
 Stone carved benches  
 Frank Whittle Arch 
 William Webb Ellis statue 
 Rupert Brooke statue 

Historic Sites / Buildings 
 Great Central Walk 
 Newbold Quarry 
 Regent Place / Jubilee Gardens (site of Rugby Motte & Bailey Castle) 

Civic Regalia 
 Mayoral Badges of Office 
 Mayoral & Councillor Robes 
 Borough Mace / Various Silverware and Ceramic Items 

Intangibles 
This is for the purchase of the rights to the Rugby World Cup Collection used in the Hall of Fame exhibition 
which is exclusively licensed by the Council for 4 years. 
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Note 26.  Leases 

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and 
rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee.  All other 
leases are classified as operating leases.   

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and building elements are considered separately for 
classification.  Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset 
in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent 
on the use of specific assets.  This definition includes rental agreements, contract hire and licences. 

The Council as a Lessee 

Finance leases 
The Council has acquired the Land at Brownsover for use as a public park under a finance lease for 999 years. 
The asset is carried as a Community Asset in the Balance Sheet at a net value of £1 at 31st March 2017.  At 
inception, no upfront premium was payable and the minimum lease payment of “one peppercorn” has not 
been charged. 

Operating Leases 
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement as 
a cost to the services benefiting from the use of the leased property, plant or equipment. Charges are made 
on a straight line basis over the life of the lease. 

The Council holds a limited number of operating leases, mainly relating to the lease of 36 photocopiers with 
an annual rental of £17,000 and also lease land at Hillmorton Road for the purpose of a public recreation 
ground with a rental of “one peppercorn” per annum. 

The Council as Lessor 

Finance leases 
The Council as lessor did not hold any finance leases in 2016/17. 

Operating leases 
The Council has leased out properties under operating leases for the provision of community services (such 
as sport facilities or community centres) or economic development purposes to provide local businesses with 
affordable accommodation. 

Future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future years are: 
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31st March 
2016 
£’000 

31st March 
2017 
£’000 

Not later than one year 82 84 
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 147 182 
Later than 5 years 1,664 1,639 

1,893 1,905 
The minimum lease payments receivable do not include rents that are contingent on events taking place 
after the lease was entered into, such as adjustments following rent reviews. In 2016/17 no contingent rents 
were receivable by the Council. 
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Note 27.  Long Term Advances – Loans Outstanding 

Balance at 31st 

March 2016 
£’000 

Advances 

£’000 

Amounts Repaid 

£’000 

Balance at 31st 

March 2017 
£’000 

Local Authority Mortgage 
Scheme 1,011 - - 1,011 

Loans for the Purchase and 
Improvement of Private 
Dwellings 

32 - - 32 

Repossession Fund 4 - (1) 3 
Local Capital Finance Company 20 - - 20 

1,067 (1) 1,066 

Note 28.  Debtors (amounts due to the Council) 

Net 
1st April 2016 

£’000 

Debt 

£’000 

Bad Debt 
Provision 

£’000 

Net 
31st March 

2017 

£’000 
Amounts due within one year 

978 Government Departments 434 - 434 
900 Other Local Authorities (inc. Police) 1,114 - 1,114 
15 Homelessness 41 (27) 14 
510 Rent-payers 658 (195) 463 
246 Council tax payers 312 (26) 286 
284 Non Domestic Rate payers 293 (88) 205 

3 Car Parking 2 (1) 1 
1,174 Housing Benefit Overpayments 2,214 (852) 1,362 
914 Other Entities and Individuals 1,345 (29) 1,316 

5,024 6,413 (1,218) 5,195 
Amounts due in more than one year 

124 Employee Vehicle Loans 130 - 130 
78 Work in Default 78 - 78 
202 208 208 

5,226 Total 6,621 (1,218) 5,403 
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Note 29.  Creditors (amounts owed to others by the Council) 

As at 31st 

March 2016 
£’000 

As at 31st 

March 2017 
£’000 

256 HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC) 285 
930 Government Departments 3,909 

1,115 Other Local Authorities (Inc. Police) 2,566 
148 Rent payers 195 
85 Council tax payers 93 
- Non Domestic Rate payers -

1,294 Other entities and individuals 2,414 
3,828 Total 9,462 

The increase in the creditors balances for amounts owed to Government Departments and Other Local 
Authorities at the end of 2016/17, compared to 2015/16, is largely due to the surplus arising during the year 
recorded in the Collection Fund for business rates. 

Note 30. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on 
notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in no more than one month 
from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk 
of change in value. 

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable 
on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s cash management. 

The balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents is made up of the following elements: 

2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 

1,740 Cash held / overdrawn (-) by the Council (547) 
- Bank current accounts -

15,269 Money Market Funds 12,862 
17,009 Total 12,315 
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Note 31. Cash Flow Statement – Operating Activities 

2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 

(23,921) Taxation (25,952) 
(28,106) Grants (27,011) 
(8,567) Housing Rents (9,249) 
(6,026) Sales of Goods and Rendering Services (7,486) 
(442) Interest received (642) 

(67,061) Cash inflows generated from operating activities (70,340) 
12,670 Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 13,028 
13,739 Housing Benefit paid out 11,181 
13,656 Business Rates Tariff Payment 13,770 

348 Precepts paid 715 
573 Payments to the Capital Receipts Pool 556 

13,627 Cash paid to suppliers of goods and services (Inc. net VAT outflow) 12,532 
2,789 Interest paid 1,583 
1,782 Other payments for operating activities 3,106 
59,184 Cash outflows generated from operating activities 56,471 
(7,877) Net cash flows from operating activities (13,869) 

Note 32. Cash Flow Statement – Investing Activities 

2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 

9,189 Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property and 
intangible assets 9,504 

50,496 Purchase of short-term and long-term investments 64,129 

(2,277) Proceeds from the sale of property, plant, and equipment, investment 
property and intangible assets (2,140) 

(51,315) Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments (43,572) 
(1,144) Other receipts from investing activities (1,096) 
4,949 Net cash flows from investing activities 26,825 

Note 33. Cash Flow Statement – Financing Activities 

74 

2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 

(15,000) Cash receipts of short and long-term borrowing (15,100) 
1,460 Other receipts from financing activities (3,156) 
14,300 Repayments of short and long-term borrowing 10,000 
(268) Other payments for financing activities (6) 
(492) Net cash flows from financing activities (8,262) 



 

 

 
   

 

-   -  
 

  
 

 
 

 
   

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

   

  

   
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Note 34. Trading Operations 

Rugby Borough Council has a number of services that operate in a commercial environment and the service 
manager is required to balance their budget by generating income. Details of those units with a turnover 
greater than £100,000 or a deficit greater than £100,000 in 2016/17 are as follows: 

2015/16 
Surplus ( ) / Deficit Service Expenditure Income 2016/17 

Surplus ( ) / Deficit 
£'000's £'000s £'000s £'000s 
(115) Trade Waste 769 (885) (116) 
(89) Crematorium 654 (806) (152) 
(216) Car Parking 297 (549) (252) 
114 Benn Hall 340 (232) 108 

(306) Total 2,060 (2,472) (412) 

Trading Operations are incorporated into the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, including 
some integral parts of the Council's services to the public (e.g. Refuse Collection and Street Cleansing). The 
expenditure of these operations is allocated or recharged to the relevant service headings within Cost of 
Services.   

Note 35. Audit Fees 

In 2016/17 Rugby Borough Council incurred the following fees relating to external audit and inspection: 

2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 

Fees payable to the appointed auditor, Grant Thornton, regarding 
external audit services 55 55 

Fees payable to the appointed auditor, Grant Thornton for the 
certification of grant claims and returns 9 17 

Other non-external audit fees paid to Grant Thornton 16 5 
Total 80 77 
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Note 36. Related Party Transactions 

The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties, bodies or individuals that have 
the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or influenced by the Council. Disclosure 
of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Council might have been constrained 
in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to 
bargain freely with the Council. 

Central Government 
Central Government has effective control over the general operations of the Council – it is responsible for 
providing the statutory framework, within which the Council operates, provides the majority of its funding in 
the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Council has with other parties 
(e.g. council tax bills, housing benefits). Grants received from government departments are set out in Notes 
16 and 17. Amounts outstanding at the end of the financial year are included in Notes 28 and 29. 

Council Members and Chief Officers 
Based on existing key data sources, no material related party transactions have been identified amongst 
either the members or chief officers.  Declarations are made under section 81 of the Local Government Act 
2000 and the Local Authorities (Model Code of Conduct) (England) Order 2001. The below sources make up 
the Council’s core elements for managing the risk of Fraud, Bribery and Corruption and are: 

 The Register of Members’ Interests – maintained in accordance with the Local Authorities (Members’ 
Interests) Regulations 1992 (Statutory Instrument 1992/618); 

 Disclosure of direct or indirect pecuniary interests - as defined by the Council’s Code of Conduct for 
Councillors; and 

 The Staff Register of Interests – maintained in accordance with the Council’s Constitution and Anti-
Fraud, Bribery & Corruption Strategy. 

Senior Council Officers remuneration paid during 2016/17 is set out in Note 7; Councillors Allowances are 
stated in Note 8. 

During 2016/17, 6 Borough Councillors were also Warwickshire County Councillors (Cllr Peter Butlin; Cllr Heather 
Timms; Cllr Richard Dodd; Cllr Jerry Roodhouse; Cllr O’Rourke and Cllr H Roberts). 

In addition to their normal involvement on various Council Committees, most members and some Senior 
Officers and staff also act as the Council’s representative on a wide range of Outside and Voluntary Bodies – 
some such representation follows from their Committee membership(s). 

A list of representatives relevant to 2016/17 was approved at the Annual Meeting of the Council on 19th May 
2016.  

A total of £238,000 grants were awarded to voluntary organisations in 2016/17, of which £97,00 was paid to 
voluntary organisations in which 12 members had an interest. All payments were made with proper  
consideration of declarations of interest. The relevant Members did not take part in any discussion or decision 
relating to the payments. 

A full list of all Borough Councillors and their various interests of this type can be made available upon request 
at the Town Hall, Rugby. 
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Other Public Bodies (subject to control by Central Government) 

Warwickshire County Council (WCC) and the Office of the Warwickshire Police & Crime Commissioner 
These authorities issue precepts on the Council and these are shown in the Collection Fund Statement. WCC 
is the administering authority for the Pension Fund and employer’s contributions paid by this council total 
£2,393,000 for 2016/17. 

A £25,000 partnership grant was received from WCC to assist with the continued the delivery of the Green 
Waste collection service for the last quarter of 2016/17. 

£35,000 of grant was received from the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Warwickshire to fund 
various Community Safety Projects across the Rugby Borough. 

Parish Precepts 
For 2016/17 the precepts issued to parish councils totalled £715,000. 

West Midlands Combined Authority 
The Council is also a non-constituent member of the West Midlands Combined Authority (WCMA).  The WMCA 
is a group of councils across the region that is working together to seek greater decision-making powers from 
the government in a process known as devolution. 

In the Scheme sent to Government only constituent members have voting rights. However, once the WMCA 
is established constituent members can give voting rights to non-constituent members, for example, allowing 
them to vote on matters to do with economic development.  Constituent members may only be signed up 
to one combined authority, whilst non-constituent members can be signed up to one or more combined 
authorities. 

In 2016/17 Rugby Borough Council paid the WMCA a £25,000 contribution to help fund its programmes and 
initiatives. 

Read more about the WMCA at: https://www.wmca.org.uk/ 

Shared Procurement & Training Agreements 
The Council is part of a shared Procurement Service with Nuneaton & Bedworth Borough Council. Nuneaton 
& Bedworth Borough Council is the lead authority in this shared service and in 2016/17 £36,000 was contributed 
by Rugby Borough Council to the scheme. 

Further shared service agreements are in place with Nuneaton & Bedworth Borough Council where the 
Council contributes to the shared salary costs to provide IT and Human Resources training. In 2016/17 £23,000 
was contributed by Rugby Borough Council to these schemes. 

Shared Building Control Service 
The Council is part of a shared Building Control Service with Warwick District Council and Daventry District 
Council. Warwick District Council are the lead authority who host and provide the Building Control Service 
for the partnership.  In 2016/17 Rugby Borough Council contributed £59,000 into the scheme. 

77
 

https://www.wmca.org.uk


 

 

 
 

   
 

 
       

  
 

  
  

   
 

 

 
 

  
     

 
 

  
   

    
  

 

    
  

    
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Entities Controlled or Significantly Influenced by the Authority 
The Council provided financial assistance to certain voluntary and outside bodies during 2016/17; these are 
mainly local government associations or local groups that the Council supports with grant aid and advice. 
Examples include the Local Government Association, West Midlands Local Government Association, Rugby 
First, Rugby Citizens Advice Bureau, Rugby Age Concern and Rugby Business Improvement District (BID) 
Company. The majority of individual transactions may be material for the recipient organisations but are 
relatively immaterial in financial terms for this organisation. 

Rugby First Ltd - BID Division 
As Growth & Investment Portfolio Holder, Cllr Mrs Timms and as Environment & Public Realm Portfolio Holder, 
Cllr Lisa Parker, are on the Board of Rugby First Limited. An amount of £1.024m was paid to the BID Company 
in 2016/17 of which £582,000 related to the collection of BID Levy income, the remaining £443,000 is used to 
provide a CCTV Monitoring and Town Centre Management Service. 

Rainsbrook Crematorium   
Rainsbrook Crematorium Rainsbrook Crematorium is a joint project between Rugby Borough Council and 
Daventry District Council. The Crematorium is operated by Rugby Borough Council’s bereavement services 
team on behalf of a joint committee which represents both authorities. Each council has an equal share in 
the entity. Rugby Borough Council paid £140,000 to Daventry District Council in 2016/17 in relation to their 
share of the annual operating surplus. 

Queen’s Diamond Jubilee Centre 
The Queen’s Diamond Jubilee Centre is owned by Rugby Borough Council and is operated by Greenwich 
Leisure Ltd (GLL). Rugby Borough Council received £277,000 from GLL for the annual contract fee and profit 
share as per the contract agreement in 2016/17. 

The Hall of Fame – World Rugby 
The Hall of Fame is a joint venture between World Rugby Ltd and Rugby Borough Council £1.2m was spent by 
Rugby Borough Council in capital expenditure to fund the construction and implementation of the Hall of 
Fame project in 2016/17. A further £6,000 Operational Expenditure was also spent in 2016/17. 
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Note 37.  Pension Costs 

Pension Benefits 
As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Council makes contributions towards the 
cost of post-employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, 
the Council has a commitment to make the payments for those benefits and to disclose them at the time 
that the employees earn their future entitlement. 

Participation in pension schemes 
Rugby Borough Council participates in two post-employment schemes: 

	 The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), which is administered locally by Warwickshire County 
Council – this is a funded defined benefit career average salary scheme, meaning the Council and its 
employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions 
liabilities with investment assets. In 2016/17 the Council paid an employer's contribution total of 
£2.263m, which represented 20.38% of employees' pensionable pay of £11.102m into the Pension Fund. 
The contribution rate is determined by the Fund's Actuary based on triennial actuarial valuations and 
the current rate was determined by the latest valuation undertaken up to 31st March 2016. 

	 discretionary post-retirement benefits upon early retirement – this is an unfunded defined benefit 
arrangement, under which liabilities are recognised when awards are made.  However, there are no 
investment assets built up to meet these pension liabilities, and cash has to be generated to meet 
actual pension payments as they eventually fall due. In 2016/17 the cost of the added years benefit 
awarded in the past amounted to £130,000, representing 1.17% of pensionable pay. 

The pension scheme is operated under the framework of the Local Government Pension Scheme and the 
governance of the scheme is the responsibility of the pensions investment sub-committee of Warwickshire 
County Council.  Policy is determined in accordance with the Pensions Fund Regulations. 

The principal risks to the Council of the scheme are the longevity assumptions, statutory changes to the 
scheme, structural changes to the scheme (e.g. large-scale withdrawals), changes to inflation, bond yields 
and the performance of the equity investments held by the scheme.  However, these are mitigated to a 
certain extent by the statutory provisions as set out below. 

Statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the 
Council to the pension fund in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting 
standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement this means that there are appropriations to and from the 
Pension Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with 
debits for cash paid to the pension fund and any amounts payable to the fund but unpaid at the year-end. 
The negative balance that arise on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the 
General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as 
benefits are earned by employees. 
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Recognition and Measurement 
The LGPS is accounted for as a defined benefit scheme: 
 The liabilities of the pension fund attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an 

actuarial basis using the projected unit method; which is an assessment of the future payments that 
will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions 
about mortality rates, employee turnover rates and projections of future earnings for current 
employees. 

 Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 2.6% (broadly 
equivalent to the yield available on high quality corporate bonds with duration, consistent with the 
term of the liabilities). 

 The fair value of the assets of the pension fund attributable to the Council are included in the 
Balance Sheet at their fair value: 
 Market quoted investments – current bid price on the final day of the accounting period 
 Fixed interest securities – net market value based on their current yields 
 Unquoted investments – professional estimate  

The change in net pensions liability is analysed into the following components: 

 Service Cost - comprising: 
 Current year service cost – the increase in the liabilities as a result of years of service earned 

this year – allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the 
services for which the employees worked. 

 Past service cost – the increases in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or 
curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – debited to the 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 

 Net interest on the net defined liability – the change during the period in the net defined 
benefit liability that arises from the passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement – this 
is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation 
at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability at the beginning of the 
period – taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the 
period as a result of contribution and benefit payments. 

	 Remeasurements - comprising: 
 The return on plan assets – excluding amounts including in net interest on the net defined 

benefit liability – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure 

 Actuarial gains and losses – change in the net pensions liability that arise because event 
have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the 
actuaries have updated their assumptions – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

	 Contributions paid to the pension fund – cash paid as employer’s contributions to the pension fund in 
settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense. 
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Transactions relating to Post-Employment Benefits 
The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are earned 
by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge required 
against council tax and HRA rents is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post-
employment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund and HRA via the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement and the General Fund and HRA balances via the Movement in Reserves Statement during the 
year. 
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Local Government 
Pension Scheme 

Discretionary Benefit 
Arrangements 

2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 

2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
Cost of Services 
 Current Service Costs 3,315 2,831 - -
 Past Service Costs 1 74 - -

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 
 Net Interest Expense 1,323 1,118 61 59 

Total Post employment Benefit Charged to the 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 4,639 4,023 61 59 

Other Post-employment benefits charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement 
Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability 
comprising: 
 Return on Plan Assets (excluding the amount 

included in the net interest expense) 993 (12,523) - -

 Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in 
demographic assumptions - (1,355) - (22) 

 Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in 
financial assumptions (11,078) 19,638 (33) 60 

 Other experience (1,554) (750) (103) 43 
Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (7,000) 9,003 (75) 140 

Movement in Reserves Statement 
 Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or 

Deficit on the Provision of Services for Post-
Employment Benefits in accordance with the 
Code 

(4,639) (4,023) (61) (59) 

Actual amount charged against the General Fund 
and HRA Balances for Pensions in the year: 
 Employer's contributions payable to the 

scheme  2,101 2,263 - -

 Retirement benefits payable to pensioners - - 134 130 



 

 

 
   

 
   

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
   

 
   

    

 

 

 
 

 
  

 
 

  
 

    
 

 
 

Pension Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet 

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Council's obligation in respect of its defined benefit 
plan is as follows: 

Local Government 
Pension Scheme 

Discretionary Benefit 
Arrangements 

2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 

2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 

Present Value of the Defined Benefit Obligation (115,505) (136,585) (1,759) (1,769) 
Fair Value of Plan Assets 83,870 98,180 - -

Net Liability Arising from the Defined Benefit 
Obligation (31,635) (38,405) (1,759) (1,769) 
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Pension Assets and Liabilities 

Liabilities Assets 

The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Council has in the long term to pay post-employment 
(retirement) benefits. The total net liability of £40.174m has a substantial impact on the net worth of the Council 
as recorded in the Balance Sheet. 

However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the Council 
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remains healthy.  The deficit on the Local Government Pension Scheme will be made good by increased 
contributions over the remaining working life of employees, as assessed by the scheme actuary. 



 

 

 
  

    
   

  
  

  
  

  
 
 

   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
      

   
    

 
    

 
  

     

  

  
    

 
 

   
    

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of the Scheme (Plan) Assets: 
2015/16 

£’000 
2016/17 

£’000 
Opening Balance at 1st April 83,099 83,870 
Interest Income on Plan Assets 2,645 2,914 
Return on Plan Assets, excluding the amount included in the net interest 
expense (993) 12,523 

Contributions from Employer 2,235 2,393 
Contributions from Scheme Participants 716 708 
Benefits Paid (3,832) (4,228) 
Closing Balance at 31st March 83,870 98,180 

Reconciliation of Present Value of the Scheme Liabilities (Defined Benefit Obligation): 
Local Government 

Pension Scheme 
Discretionary Benefit 

Arrangements 

2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 

2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 

Opening Balance at 1st April 123,835 115,505 1,968 1,759 
Current Service Cost 3,315 2,831 - -
Interest cost 3,968 4,032 61 59 
Contributions by Scheme Participants 716 708 - -
Re-measurement Gain/(Loss): 
 Actuarial gains/losses arising from changes in 

demographic assumptions - (1,355) - (22) 

 Actuarial gains/losses arising from changes in 
financial assumptions (11,078) 19,638 (33) 60 

 Other experience (1,554) (750) (103) 43 
Benefits Paid (3,698) (4,098) (134) (130) 
Past Service Costs 1 74 - -
Closing Balance at 31st March 115,505 136,585 1,759 1,769 

Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities 
Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method valuation, an 
estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years’ dependent on assumptions about mortality rate, 
salary levels, etc. Both the Local Government Pension Scheme and Discretionary Benefits liabilities have been 
assessed by Hymans Robertson LLP, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the scheme fund being 
based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31st March 2016. 
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The significant assumptions used by the actuary have been: 

Mortality assumptions: 
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners (years): 
 Men 22.4 22.5 
 Women 24.4 24.7 

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners (years): 
 Men 24.3 24.3 
 Women 26.6 26.7 

Rate of Inflation (CPI) 2.20% 2.4% 
Rate of increase in salaries 4.20% 3.0% 
Rate of increase in pensions 2.40% 2.4% 
Rate of discounting of scheme liabilities 3.50% 2.6% 
Take-up option to convert annual pension into retirement lump sum 50% 50% 

2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the table 
above.  The sensitivity analyses shown in the next table have been determined based on reasonably possible 
changes on the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change that 
the assumption analysed changes while all other assumptions remain constant. 

The assumption in longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy increases or decreases for men and 
women. In practice, this in unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumption may be interrelated. 
The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting policies for the scheme, i.e. on an 
actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method.  The methods and types of assumptions used in 
preparing the sensitivity analysis below did not change from those used in the previous period. 

Local Government Pension Scheme Assets Comprised: 

Fair Value of Scheme Assets
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IAS19 Employee Benefits requires the disclosure of the sensitivity of the results to the methods and assumptions 
used.  The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme liabilities are set out 
below. 

Impact on the Defined Benefit Obligation in the Scheme 
Approximate 

Monetary 
Amount £'000 

Approximate % 
increase to 
Employer 
Liability 

Rate of increase in salaries (increase by 0.5%) 2,028 1% 
Rate of increase in pensions (increase by 0.5%) 10,858 8% 
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities (decrease by 0.5%) 13,079 9% 

Impact on the Council's Cash Flows 
The contributions paid by Rugby Borough Council are set by the Fund Actuary at each triennial actuarial 
valuation (the most recent being at 31st March 2016).   The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers' 
contributions at as constant a rate as possible; the contributions payable over the period to 31st March 2017 
are set out in the Rates and Adjustments Certificate. Warwickshire County Council has agreed a strategy with 
the scheme's actuary to achieve a funding level of 100% over the next 19 years.  The next triennial valuation 
is due to be completed as at 31st March 2019. Employer contributions for the period to 31st March 2018 are 
estimated to be approximately £2.344m. 

Note 38.  Pensions Reserve 

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting 
for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. The Council 
accounts for post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the 
benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect 
inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs. However, 
statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Council makes employer’s contributions 
to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the 
Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees 
and the resources the Council has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding 
will have been set aside by the time the benefits become payable. 
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2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 

42,703 Balance at 1st April 33,394 
(11,774) Re-measurement of the net defined liability 5,091 

4,700 Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits credited to the Surplus of 
Provision of Services in the CIES 4,082 

(2,235) Employer’s pension contributions and direct payments to pensioners 
payable in the year (2,393) 

33,394 Balance at 31st March 40,174 



 

 

 
 

    
  

     
     

   
  

 
   

   
 

 
  

   
   

     
    

 

   
      

 
 

  
  

    
    

    
    
    

    
   

  
    

     
   

    
  

- - 
 
 

Note 39. Financial Instruments 

Financial Liabilities (e.g. Borrowing) 
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and carried on the Balance Sheet at that value plus any 
interest due. Annual charges to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement for interest payable are 
based on the carrying amount of the liability multiplied by the effective rate of interest for that particular 
financial instrument. For most borrowings that the Council has this means that the amount presented in the 
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable, and interest charged to the Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year in the loan agreement. 

Financial Assets (e.g. Investments) 
Financial Assets are classified into two types: 
 Loans and receivables – Investments that have fixed determinable payments but are not quoted in 

an active market 
 Available-for-sale-assets – assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not have fixed or 

determinable payments 

Loans and Receivables are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised cost. Annual credits 
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying 
amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most loans that the 
Council has made, this means that the amount presented in the balance sheet is the outstanding principal 
receivable, and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount 
receivable for the year in the loan agreement. 

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that payments due 
under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a charge made to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 

The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet: 
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Long Term Current (Short Term) 
31st March 

2016 
£’000 

31st March 
2017 
£’000 

31st March 
2016 
£’000 

31st March 
2017 
£’000 

Investments: 
Loans & receivables - 6,015 3,544 4,544 
Available-for-sale financial assets 9,499 3,819 12,075 31,016 
Total investments 9,499 9,834 15,619 35,560 
Debtors: 
Loans & receivables 124 130 1,315 1,827 
Total debtors 124 130 1,315 1,827 
Borrowings: 
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (89,585) (82,109) (7,329) (19,668) 
Total borrowings (89,585) (82,109) (7,329) (19,668) 
Creditors: 
Financial liabilities at amortised cost – trade 
creditors - - (1,294) (2,414) 

Total creditors (1,294) (2,414) 
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Income, Expense, Gains and Losses 
The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in relation to 
financial instruments are made up as follows: 

2016/17 Financial 
Liabilities 

Amortised Cost 
£’000 

Loans & 
Receivables 

£’000 

Available for 
Sale 

£’000 

Total 

£’000 

Interest expense 2,322 - - 2,322 
Change in fair value 12 - - 12 
Interest payable & similar charges 2,334 2,334 
Interest and investment income - (486) (232) (718) 
Net Gain ( ) / Loss for the year 2,334 (486) (232) 1,616 

2015/16 Financial 
Liabilities 

Amortised Cost 
£’000 

Loans & 
Receivables 

£’000 

Available for 
Sale 

£’000 

Total 

£’000 
Interest expense 2,247 - - 2,247 
Change in fair value. 42 (32) - 10 
Interest payable & similar charges 2,289 (32) 2,257 
Interest income - (165) (337) (502) 
Interest and investment income - (165) (337) (502) 
Net Gain ( ) / Loss for the year 2,289 (197) (337) 1,755 

Hedge Accounting 
In accordance with the Code, the Council will apply Hedge Accounting on a transaction by transaction 
basis. 

The Council will carry out hedging activities, from time to time, to limit its exposure to different financial risks, 
such as interest rate risk. These activities commonly consist of entering into a forward dated contract with a 
counterparty to eliminate or limit risk. These instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the trade date 
and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value at the balance sheet date. The method of recognising 
the resulting gain or loss is dependent on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument and 
the nature of the item being hedged. 

A hedging relationship that qualifies for hedge accounting will be recognised when the following conditions 
are met: 
	 At the inception of the hedge there is formal designation and documentation of the hedging 

relationship and the Council’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. 
The documentation will include identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item or 
transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the entity will assess the hedging 
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instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash 
flows attributable to the hedged risk; 



 

 

   
   

     
   
   

 
 

 
  

   
  

 
     

     
 

  

 
 

     
 

     
  

   
    

   

 
  

  
 

    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

	 The hedge is expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash 
flows attributable to the hedged risk, consistent with the originally documented risk management 
strategy for that particular hedging relationship; 

	 For a cash flow hedge, a forecast transaction that is the subject of the hedge must be highly probable; 
	 The effectiveness of the hedge can be reliably measured; and 
	 The hedge is assessed on an on-going basis and determined actually to have been effective 

throughout its life. 

Cash Flow Hedges 
Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that are designated and effective as hedges of 
future cash flows are recognised directly in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and any 
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. If the firm 
commitment or forecast transaction that is the subject of a cash flow hedge results in the recognition of a 
non-financial asset or liability, then, at the time the asset or liability is recognised, the associated gains or losses 
on the derivative that had previously been recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement are included in the initial measurement of the asset or liability. For hedges that do not result in the 
recognition of an asset or a liability, amounts deferred in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement are recognised in Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure. 

Hedging 
On 5th August 2011, the Council entered into a forward dated contract with BAE Systems Pension Fund to 
borrow £10m on 30th December 2011 to fund the Queen’s Diamond Jubilee Leisure Centre project.  The 
forward contract was settled on 30th December 2011 by delivery of the underlying loan and its fair value of 
£437,000 was transferred to the hedging reserve and recognised as a loss in Other Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  This sum was scheduled be 
released to the income and expenditure account over ten years to 30th December 2021 to match the interest 
payable on the loan. 

On 30th June 2016 the Council and Bae Systems Pension Fund entered into a revised agreement, terminating 
the previous contract. Consequently, the underlying loan and the fair value of the forward contract have 
been written out of the balance sheet and hedge reserve. The sum released in the 2016/17 financial year was 
£13,000 (2015/16: £42,000) recognising the period 1st April 2016 to 30th June 2016.  

No financial assets or liabilities were designated as hedging instruments at 31st March 2017 (2016: £nil). 
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Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities 
Some of the Council’s financial assets are measured in the balance sheet at fair value on a recurring basis 
and are described in the following table, including the valuation techniques used to measure them. 

Recurring Fair 
Value 

Measurements 

Input Level 
in Fair Value 

Hierarchy 

Valuation technique used to measure fair 
value 

31st March 
2016 Fair 

Value 
£’000 

31st March 
2017 Fair 

Value 
£’000 

Available for Sale 
– CCLA Property 
Fund 

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active 
markets for identical shares 2,332 2,295 

Available for Sale 
– Lothbury 
Property Fund 

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active 
markets for identical shares 2,002 2,035 

Available for Sale 
– Corporate 
Bonds / 
Certificates of 
Deposit 

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active 
markets for identical shares 17,240 30,504 

21,574 34,834 

The Council held £30.5m in corporate bonds and certificates of deposit. The fair value has been calculated 
using published price quotations. There were no transfers between input levels during the financial year 
2016/17. There has been no change in valuation technique used during the year for financial instruments. 

The Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities that are not measured at Fair Value (but for which 
Fair Value disclosures are required) 
Except for financial assets carried at fair value (described above) all other financial liabilities and financial 
assets represented by loans and receivables, and long-term debtors and creditors are carried in the Balance 
Sheet at amortised cost. Their fair value can be assessed by calculating the present value of the cash flows 
that will take place over the remaining term of the instruments, (Level 2) using the following assumptions: 
 For loans from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) payable, premature repayment rates from the 

PWLB have been applied to provide fair value under PWLB debt redemption procedures; 
 For non-PWLB loans payable, prevailing market rates have been used to provide the fair value under 

PWLB debt redemption procedures; 
 For loans receivable prevailing benchmark market rates have been used to provide the fair value; 

 No early repayment or impairment is recognised 
 Where an instrument has a maturity of less than 12 months or is a trade or other receivable the 

fair value is taken to be the carrying amount or the billed amount 
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The fair values are calculated as follows: 

As at 31st March 2016 As at 31st March 2017 
Carrying 
Amount 

£’000 

Fair Value 

£’000 

Carrying 
Amount 
 £’000 

Fair Value 

£’000 
57,598 60,869 PWLB Debt 50,697 54,760 
39,316 41,144 Non-PWLB Debt 51,080 57,254 
96,914 102,013 Total Borrowings 101,777 112,014 
15,619 15,617 Money Market Loans < 1 year 35,560 35,560 
9,499 9,499 Money Market Loans > 1 year 9,834 9,834 
25,118 25,116 Total Loans and Receivables 45,394 45,394 

The fair value is of total borrowing is more than the carrying amount because the Council’s loans are fixed at 
a higher rate than was available at the 31st March 2017. This shows a notional future loss (based on economic 
conditions at 31st March 2017) arising from a commitment to pay interest to lenders above current market 
rates. 

The fair value of PWLB loans of £54.760m compares the terms of these loans with the new borrowing rates 
available from the PWLB. However, if the Council were to seek to repay these loans early to the PWLB, the 
PWLB would raise a penalty charge, based on redemption interest rates, for early redemption of £6.459m for 
the additional interest that will not now be paid. The exit price for the PWLB loans including the penalty charge 
would be £57.156m. 

Note 40. Hedge Reserve 

The Council established a cash flow hedging relationship between a forward contract element and the 
interest cash flows payable on a loan. 

Upon settlement of the forward contract its fair value was transferred to the Hedge Reserve and recognised 
as a loss in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure within the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 

This sum was scheduled be released to the income and expenditure account over ten years to 30th December 
2021 to match the interest payable on the loan. 

On 30th June 2016 the Council and Bae Systems Pension Fund entered into a revised agreement, terminating 
the previous contract. Consequently, the underlying loan and the fair value of the forward contract have 
been written out of the balance sheet and hedge reserve. 

90 

2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 

310 Balance at 1st April 268 

(42) Release to income and expenditure account to match interest payable 
on loan (268) 

268 Balance at 31st March 



 

 

 
  

 
 

    
   

   
 

 

    
  

 
  
  
   
    

   
    

 
 

    
    

    
  

   
  

  

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
  
  
  
     
    
    

 
 
 
 

Note 41.  Nature and Extent of Risk Arising from Financial Instruments 

The Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The Council’s overall risk management 
procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial markets, and implementing restrictions to minimize these 
risks.  The procedures for risk management are set out through a legal framework in the Local Government 
Act 2003 and the associated regulations.  These require the Council to comply with the CIPFA Prudential 
Code, the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of Practice and Investment Guidance 
issued through the Act. 

The Council manages risk in the following ways: 

 by formally adopting the requirements of the Code of Practice; 
 by approving annually in advance prudential and treasury indicators for the following three years 

limiting 
 The Council’s overall borrowing; 
 Its maximum and minimum exposures to fixed and variable rates; 
 Its maximum and minimum exposures to the maturity structure of its debt; 
 Its maximum annual exposures to investments maturing beyond a year; and 

	 by approving an investment strategy for the forthcoming year setting out its criteria for both investing 
and selecting investment counterparties in compliance with the Government Guidance. 

Credit risk 
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the Council’s 
customers. This risk is minimised through the Annual Investment Strategy, which stipulates limits on credit 
criteria, deposit amounts and duration for deposits with each financial institution. Details of the Investment 
Strategy can be found on the Council’s website. 

The following analysis summarises the Council’s maximum exposure to credit risk by comparing global 
corporate finance average default rates against the Council’s deposits to produce an estimated maximum 
exposure to default. 
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As at 31st March 2016 

Deposits with banks and financial institutions 

As at 31st March 2017 
Carrying 

Amount on 
Balance 

Sheet 
£’000 

Estimated 
maximum 
exposure 
to default 

£’000 

Carrying 
Amount on 

Balance 
Sheet 
£’000 

Estimated 
maximum 
exposure 
to default 

£’000 
7,194 - AAA rated counterparties/products 10,850 -
3,015 1 AA rated counterparties/products 17,852 4 
9,046 7 A rated counterparties/products 11,821 9 
5,863 13 BBB rated counterparties/products 4,870 11 
1,439 43 Trade Debtors 1,957 59 
26,557 64 Total 47,350 83 



 

 

 
    

 

  
  

   
   

   

 
  

 
 

     
     

    
  

 
   

 

  
   

   
   

  
  

 
 

 
 

    
        

   

 
     

     
   

  
 

 
 

At 31st March 2017 sundry debts outstanding, arising from a contractual obligation, stood at £0.6m.   Of this 
balance, £290,000 is past its due date for payment (30 days) and can be analysed by age as follows: 

31st March 
2016 
£’000 

31st March 
2017 
£’000 

Less than three months 94 174 
Three to six months 64 9 
Six months to one year 21 30 
More than one year 67 77 
Total 246 290 

During the reporting period the Council held no collateral as security. 

Liquidity risk 
There is no significant risk that the Council will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under 
financial instruments as the Council has ready access to borrowings from the Money Markets to cover any 
day to day cash flow need, and the PWLB, whilst providing access to longer term funds, also acts as a lender 
of last resort to councils (although it will not provide funding to a council whose actions are unlawful).  The 
Council manages its liquidity position through the risk management procedures outlined as well as through 
cash flow management procedures required by the Treasury Code of Practice. 

The maturity analysis of financial assets is as follows: 

31st March 
2016 
£’000 

31st March 
2017 
£’000 

Less than one year 13,590 35,561 
Between one and two years 3,027 3,819 
Between two and three years 4,167 2,004 
More than three years 4,334 4,010 
Total 25,118 45,394 

All trade and other payables (creditors) are due to be paid in less than one year and are not shown in the 
table above. 

Refinancing and Maturity Risk 
The Council maintains a significant debt and investment portfolio.  To mitigate the longer term risk to the 
Council relating to managing the exposure to replacing financial instruments as they mature, the Council 
approves Prudential indicator limits and an annual Treasury Management Strategy. 

The Financial Services team address the operational risks within the approved parameters, by; 
 Monitoring the maturity profile of financial liabilities and amending the profile through either new 

borrowing or the rescheduling of the existing debt; and 
 Monitoring the maturity profile of investments to ensure sufficient liquidity is available for the Council’s 
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day to day cash flow needs, and the spread of longer term investments provide stability of maturities 
and returns in relation to the longer term cash flow needs. 



 

 

   

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

     
      

     
     

  
 
 
  

    
  

 
 

 
  

    
 

   
  

  
      

  
  

 
    

   
      

 

 
     

   
 

   
 

    
   

 

 

The maturity analysis of financial liabilities is as follows, with the maximum and minimum limits for fixed interest 
rates maturing in each period: 

Approved 
maximum 

limits 

% 

Approved 
minimum 

limits 

% 

Actual 31st 

March 2017 

£’000 

Actual 31st 

March 2016 

£’000 

Actual 

% 
Less than one year* 20 - 16,223 6,901 16 
12 months to 2 years 30 - 22,683 14,216 23 
Between 2 and 5 years 60 - 35,537 42,289 36 
Between 5 and 10 years 60 - 19,106 27,572 19 
Between 10 and 20 years 75 - 515 4,475 1 
Between 20 and 30 years 75 - 512 515 1 
Between 30 and 40 years 75 - 434 434 -
More than 40 years 75 - 3,766 512 4 
Total* 98,776 96,914 100 
* excludes short term borrowing less than 365 days.  

Market risk 

Interest rate risk - The Council is exposed to interest rate movements on its borrowings and investments.  For 
instance, a rise in variable and fixed interest rates would have the following effects: 
 Borrowings at variable rates – the interest expense charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision 

of Services will rise; 
 Borrowings at fixed rates – the fair value of the borrowing liability will fall; 
 Investments at variable rates – the interest income credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision 

of Services will rise; and 
 Investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall. 

Borrowings are not carried at fair value on the balance sheet, so nominal gains and losses on fixed rate 
borrowings do not impact on the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services or Other Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure.  However, changes in interest payable and receivable on variable rate borrowings 
and investments will be posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services and affect the General 
Fund Balance, subject to influences from Government grants.  Movements in the fair value of fixed rate 
investments that have a quoted market price will be reflected in Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure. 

The Council has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk.  The Annual Treasury Management 
Strategy draws together the Council’s prudential indicators and its expected treasury operations, including 
an expectation of interest rate movements.  A prudential indicator is set which provides maximum and 
minimum limits for fixed and variable interest rate exposure.   

The Financial Services team monitors market and forecast interest rates within the year to adjust exposures 
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appropriately. The risk of interest rate loss is partially mitigated by Government grant payable on financing 
costs.  A 1% change in variable interest rates would be immaterial to the Council because it has no variable 
rate debt and a small value of variable rate investments. 



 

 

      

  
   

   
 
 

 
   

   
  

  
 

 

 
 

  
   

  
 

  

 
 

 

   
  

 
 

 
 

      
  

 
     

     
 

 
 

 

 
  

     
 

 

Foreign exchange risk – Other than those sums held in Icelandic kroner (ISK) previously mentioned in Note 9, 
the Council has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. In co-operation with other 
local authorities and legal advisors, the Council is examining options to facilitate the release of funds held in 
Iceland at the earliest opportunity. Fluctuations in foreign exchange values are, in part, mitigated by interest 
earned on these sums whilst held in escrow. 

Note 42. Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve 

The Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from 
increases in the value of investments that have quoted market prices or otherwise do not have fixed or 
determinable payments. The balance is reduced when investments with accumulated gains are: 

 Revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost, 
 Disposed of and the gains are realised. 

2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 £’000 

(73) Balance at 1st April (228) 
(211) Upward revaluation of investments (68) 

157 Downward revaluation of investments not charged to the 
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services 135 

(101) 
Accumulated gains on assets sold and maturing assets written 
out to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

as part of Other Investment Income 
(124) 

(155) Net Movement (57) 
(228) Balance at 31st March (285) 

Note 43. Provisions 

Provisions represent amounts set aside to meet future liabilities which are likely or certain to be incurred but 
where it is not possible to determine exactly the amounts or timing of such events. 

Provisions in respect of bad and doubtful debts are maintained, including amounts relating to rent, council 
tax and business rate arrears, which have been estimated in accordance with recommended practice and 
past experience and are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive 
Income & Expenditure Statement. When payments are eventually made these are charged to the provision 
carried in the Balance Sheet. 

Provision for Business Rate Appeals 
The Local Government Finance Act 2012 introduced a business rates retention scheme that enabled local 
authorities to retain a proportion of the business rates generated in their area. The new arrangements for the 
business rates came into effect on 1st April 2013. Billing authorities acting as agents on behalf of the major 
preceptors (10%), central government (50%) and themselves (40%) are required to make provisions for 
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refunding ratepayers who have successfully appealed against the rateable value of their properties on the 
rating list. 
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On 1st April 2016 the Council’s provision for business rate appeals was £3.6m. During the course of the financial 
year £0.7m was charged to the provision for successful appeals in 2016/17 which have been previously 
provided for. 

After reflecting the amounts charged to the provision in 2016/17, the Council carried out an assessment of 
the future risk of appeal losses.    Following this, the 2016/17 overall provision in the business rates Collection 
Fund has been increased to £4.9m. Rugby Borough Council's 40% share of the total provision is £1.9m of which 
it is expected that £971,000 will be settled in the next twelve months and £1m in 2017/18 or later years. 

Provision for Redundancy Costs 
A provision has been included at 31st March 2017 to cover the redundancy costs of a post that was placed 
at risk prior to the end of the financial year.  In addition, the probable cost of the restructure of the operational 
management of Waste Collection service has also been provided for. 

During 2016/17 the opening balance relating to a post at risk at 31st March 2016 was also used in the year. 

Provision for Management Restructure 
At the end of 2015/16 a provision to recognise the probable cost of the Senior Management restructure 
included in the Accounts.  The restructure was completed during 2016/17 and therefore the provision was 
used in the year. 

2016/17 
Business 

Rates 
Appeals 

£’000 

2016/17 
Management 

Restructure 

£’000 

2016/17 
Redundancy 

£’000 

2016/17 
Total 

Provision 

£’000 
Short – Term Provisions 
Balance at 1st April (262) (160) (14) (436) 
Amounts used in the year 301 160 14 475 
Increase/decrease in provision (1,010) - (87) (1,097) 
Balance at 31st March (971) (87) (1,058) 
Long – Term Provisions 
Balance at 1st April (1,172) - - (1,172) 
Amounts used in the year - - - -
Increase/decrease in provision 166 - - 166 
Balance at 31st March (1,006) (1,006) 

Total (1,977) (87) (2,064) 
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Note 44. Contingent Liabilities 

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a possible obligation 
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the Authority. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would 
otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of 
the obligation cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet 
but are disclosed in the accounts. 

Contingent Assets A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a 
possible asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the Authority. Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance 
Sheet but are disclosed in the accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits 
or service potential. 

There are no material contingent liabilities or assets to disclose for 2016/17. 

Note 45. Events after the Reporting Period 

Events taking place after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that 
occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Accounts are authorised for issued. 
Two types of events can be identified: 

 Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of 2016/17 – the Accounts are 
adjusted to reflect such events 

 Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the 31st March 2017 – the Accounts are not 
adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material effect, 
disclosure is made of the nature of the event and their estimated financial effect. 

There are no material events to disclose that arose after the 31st March 2017. 

The draft Accounts were certified by the Head of Corporate Resources and Chief Financial Officer on 31st 

May 2017.  Events taking place after this date are not reflected in the Accounts or notes. 
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Housing Revenue Account 

Income and Expenditure Account 

The HRA Income and Expenditure Statement shows the economic cost in the year of providing housing 
services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded 
from rents and government grants. Authorities charge rents to cover expenditure in accordance with 
regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The increase or decrease in the year, on the basis 
of which rents are raised, is shown in the Movement on the HRA Statement. 

2015/16 

£’000 

2016/17 

£’000 
Income 

(16,732) Dwelling Rents (16,322) 
(276) Non-dwelling rents (213) 

(1,355) Charges for services (1,427) 
(233) Contributions towards expenditure (256) 

(18,596) Total Income (18,218) 
Expenditure 

3,328 Repairs and maintenance 3,007 
4,218 Supervision and management 4,592 

2 Rents, rates, taxes and other charges 2 
(2,697) Depreciation and impairment of non-current assets (40,829) 

6 Debt management costs 24 
50 Movement in allowance for bad debts 55 

4,907 Total Expenditure (33,149) 

(13,689) Net Expenditure or Income of HRA Services as included in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (51,367) 

229 HRA Share of Corporate and Democratic Core costs 210 
(13,460) Net Expenditure of HRA Services (51,157) 

1,365 Gain (-) / Loss on sale of HRA non-current assets 2,017 
1,287 Interest payable and similar charges 1,324 
(111) Interest and investment income (221) 
241 Pension interest and expected return on pension assets 200 
(8) Capital grants and contributions receivable (51) 

(10,686) Surplus ( ) / Deficit for the year on HRA services (47,888) 
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Movement on the HRA Statement 

2015/16 

£’000 

2016/17 

£’000 
(2,725) HRA revenue balance brought forward (2,828) 

(10,686) Surplus (-) / Deficit for the year on the HRA Income and Expenditure 
Account (47,888) 

5,627 Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under statute 49,924 
(5,059) Net increase or decrease ( ) before transfers to or from reserves (2,036) 
4,956 Transfers to (-) or from earmarked reserves (639) 
(103) Increase ( ) / decrease in the HRA Revenue Balance 1,397 

(2,828) HRA revenue balance carried forward (1,431) 

Note to the Movement on the HRA Statement 

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under statute 

(1,966) Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets (2,703) 
4,687 Revaluation losses(-) / gains on Property Plant and Equipment 43,601 
(24) Amortisation of intangible assets (69) 

(3,606) Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale (4,121) 
2,241 Sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on disposal 2,103 

(8) Transfer to Accumulated Absences account -
988 Capital expenditure financed from revenue balances 1,014 

9 Capital grants and contributions applied 51 
(737) Net charges made for retirement benefits (IAS 19) (582) 
3,759 Reversal of Major Repairs Allowance credited to the HRA 3,893 

- Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment 6,453 

284 Employers Contributions payable to the Pension Fund and retirement 
benefits payable direct to pensioners 284 

5,627 49,924 

Transfers to or from ( ) earmarked reserves 

(211) Transfer to or from (-) Housing Repairs Account 323 
5,167 Transfer to or from (-) HRA Capital balances (1,014) 

- Transfer to or from (-) other earmarked reserves 52 
4,956 (639) 
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Note 1.  HRA Assets 

The number and types of dwellings in the Council’s housing stock is as follows: 

2015/16 2016/17 
2,180 Houses/Bungalows (including part-ownerships) 2,162 
1,635 Flats 1,634 
3,815 3,796 

The change in the stock was as follows: 

2015/16 2016/17 
3,848 Stock at 1st April 3,815 
(35) Less sales (including part-ownership) (26) 
(1) Less removal from stock -
- Add: new build properties -
3 Add: purchase of properties 7 

3,815 Stock at 31st March 3,796 

The balance sheet includes Housing Revenue Account assets as follows: 

2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 

Balance Sheet values as at 31st March 
129,293 Operational Assets: Dwellings 182,395 

170 Operational Assets: Other Land & Buildings 790 
149 Operational Assets: Equipment 278 
685 Operational Assets: Infrastructure 704 
724 Non-Operational Assets 76 

- Assets Under Construction 611 
131,021 184,854 

Note 2. Vacant Possession 

2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 

378,428 Vacant Possession Value of Dwellings at April 2016 prices 321,691 
(129,293) Balance Sheet Value of Dwellings (182,395) 
249,135 Economic cost to Government 139,296 

The vacant possession value of the dwellings is the equivalent of the market value of the properties. 

For balance sheet purposes it is necessary to adjust this value in order to show the cost of the properties at 
social value.  This represents a value for a property if it were sold with sitting tenants enjoying rents at less than 
open market rents and rights such as Right to Buy. The difference between the two values represents the 
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economic cost to the Government of providing council housing at less than open market rents.  An 
adjustment factor is provided by the Government, which measures the difference between market and local 
authority rents at a regional level.  The adjustment factor for Rugby is set at 40%. 



 

 
 

   
 

 
 

 
 

 

   

   
  

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

  
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
   

 
 

 
  

  
 

  

  
   

 
 
 
 
 

Note 3. Major Repairs Reserve 

The Major Repairs Reserve is an earmarked reserve for the capital financing of the planned element of 
replacement expenditure on council houses. The Reserve earns interest on all balances which must also be 
used for this purpose. 

2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 

(5,109) Balance at 1st April (3,839) 
(1,949) Depreciation on non-current assets (2,703) 
(1,810) Appropriations to/from HRA Revenue (1,191) 

(47) Interest received (31) 
(8,915) Sub-total (7,764) 

5,076 Capital financing 5,301 
(3,839) Balance at 31st March (2,463) 

Note 4. Housing Repairs Account 

2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 

(842) Balance at 1st April (631) 
(3,118) Contributions during the year (3,330) 
3,329 Repairs and maintenance charged 3,007 
(631) Balance at 31st March (954) 

Note 5(i).  HRA Capital Expenditure and Financing 

100 

2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 

5,377 Council dwellings 6,017 
701 Other assets 556 
230 Housing Management Systems 46 
17 Other expenditure 2 

6,325 Sub-total 6,621 
Financed by: 

988 Direct Revenue Finance 1,014 
9 Government Grant 51 
- S.106 Funding -

252 Right to Buy Receipts 255 
5,076 Major Repairs Reserve 5,301 
6,325 6,621 



 

 

 
 

 
    

  
  

   
 
 

 

 
 

 
   

   
   
   

   
 

 
   

 
 

 

    
 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Note 5(ii).  HRA Capital Receipts 

2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 

2,241 Sales of Council Houses under Right to Buy (RTB) 2,080 
10 RTB Discounts repaid -
7 Council House Mortgage Principal Repayments -

2,258 2,080 

Note 6. Depreciation of Property Plant and Equipment 

2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 

Operational Assets 
1,871 Dwellings, other land, buildings 2,633 

75 Equipment 49 
20 Non-operational assets 21 

1,966 2,703 

A full valuation of the stock has to be undertaken every 5 years. The latest one was carried out as at 1st April 
2016. The results have been incorporated into the values shown in the balance sheet. 

Note 7. Contribution to/from Pensions Reserve 

The HRA share of IAS19 Employee Benefits pension adjustments is based on the number of employees charged 
to the HRA. Also see Note 37 Pension Costs and Note 38 Pensions Reserve. 

Note 8. Tenant Arrears 

During 2016/17 rent arrears as a proportion of gross rental income have changed from 3.60% of the amount 
due to 3.80%. The figures, excluding service charges and debts of up to three weeks are as follows: 

2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 

485 Arrears of current tenants (not including current weeks) 471 
109 Arrears of former tenants 165 
594 Total tenants arrears at 31st March 636 
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Bad Debts 
The total provision for bad debts was £194,730 (as at 31st March 2017). Amounts actually written off during the 
year totalled £23,270. The level of bad debt provision is calculated with reference to the HRA (Arrears of Rents 
and Charges) Directions 1990. An analysis of the Bad Debt Provision Account is as follows: 

2015/16 
£’000 

2016/17 
£’000 

(187) Balance at 1st April (163) 
74 Write off 23 

(50) Provision made in the year (55) 
(163) Balance as at 31st March (195) 
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Collection Fund Statement 

As a billing authority the Council acts as an agent collecting council tax and business rates (national non-
domestic rates) on behalf of the major preceptors, Central Government and itself. 

Under the legislative framework for the Collection Fund, billing authorities, major preceptors and Central 
Government share proportionately the risks and rewards that the amount of council tax and business rates 
collected could be less or more than predicted. Transactions and balances in respect of council tax and 
business rates therefore need to be allocated between the billing authority, major preceptors and Central 
Government, in accordance with the proportionate shares set out in legislation. 

The Council’s share of council tax income and retained business rate income alongside the related business 
rates tariff payment and levy payment will be recognised in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 
Statement in the line Taxation & Non-Specific Grant Income.  The difference between the business rate and 
council tax income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the amount 
required by regulation to be credited to the General Fund shall be taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment 
Account and reported in the Movement in Reserve Statement. 

2016/17 Collection Fund Income £111m 

55%
48% Council Tax (£58m) 

Business Rates (£53m) 

2016/17 Collection Fund Expenditure £107m 
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46% 

24% 

22% 

6% 

2% 

Warwickshire County Council (£49m) 

Rugby Borough Council (£26m) 

Central Government (£24m) 

Police & Crime Commissioner for 
Warwickshire (£7m) 

Provisions ‐ Appeals (£1.3m) & Bad Debt 
(£0.2m) 
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2015/16 
Total 

£’000 

2016/17 
Business 

Rates 
£’000 

2016/17 
Council 

Tax 
£’000 

2016/17 
Total 

£’000 
INCOME 

(54,866) Council Tax Receivable - (57,882) (57,882) 
(45,321) Business Rates Receivable (49,351) - (49,351) 

- Transitional Protection Payments Receivable - - -
(100,187) (49,351) (57,882) (107,233) 

Contribution to Previous Year Estimated Deficit 
- Central Government (1,853) - (1,853) 
- Warwickshire County Council (370) - (370) 
- Rugby Borough Council (1,482) - (1,482) 
- Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for 

Warwickshire 
- - -

(3,705) (3,705) 

(100,187) Total Income (53,056) (57,882) (110,938) 
EXPENDITURE 

224 Transitional Protection Payments 3 3 

Distribution of Previous Year Estimated Surplus 
104 Central Government - - -
607 Warwickshire County Council - 748 748 
177 Rugby Borough Council - 118 118 
92 Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for 

Warwickshire 
- 117 117 

980 983 983 
Precepts, Demands and Shares 

23,193 Central Government 23,720 - 23,720 
45,649 Warwickshire County Council 4,744 43,431 48,175 
24,983 Rugby Borough Council 18,976 6,746 25,722 
6,427 Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for 

Warwickshire 
- 6,675 6,675 

100,252 47,440 56,852 104,292 
Charges to Collection Fund 

437 Less: write offs of uncollectable amounts 55 144 199 
(6) Less: Increase / Decrease (-) in Bad Debt Provision (8) 8 -

1,383 Less: Increase / Decrease (-) in Provision for Appeals 1,358 - 1,358 
137 Less: Cost of Collection 137 - 137 

1,951 1,542 152 1,694 

103,407 Total Expenditure 48,985 57,987 106,972 
Movement on Fund 

3,220 Surplus (-) / Deficit arising during the year (4,071) 105 (3,966) 
(300) Surplus (-) / Deficit arising at 1st April 3,862 (942) 2,920 
2,920 Surplus ( ) / Deficit arising at 31st March (209) (837) (1,046) 



 

 
 

  
  

  

 
 

  
  

  

 
    

   
   
   
   
   
   
   

   
    
    
  

  

    

 

 

 

 

Notes to the Collection Fund Statement 

Note 1. Council Tax 
The Council is required to calculate a tax base each year and this is divided into the total precept requirement 
for Warwickshire County Council, Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Warwickshire and the 
Borough Council to produce the band D council tax figure of £1,635.01 for 2016/17. 

Warwickshire County Council 
£1,249.02 

76% 

Office of the Police & 
Crime Commissioner 

for Warwickshire 
£191.98 

12% 

Rugby Borough 
Council 
£131.42 

8% 

Average 
Town / Parish 

£62.59 
4% 

The tax base is calculated by estimating the number of chargeable dwellings in each valuation band, taking 
into account an estimate of additions and deletions during the year, and adjusted for the effects of various 
reliefs, exemptions and discounts, where applicable. 

This is converted to an equivalent number of band D dwellings.  Finally, an adjustment is made to cover non-
collection of arrears.  A summary of the calculation is shown below. 
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Band No. of 
Chargeable 

Dwellings 

Ratio Band D Equivalent 

A- 7.69 5/9 4.27 
A 5,448.39 6/9 3,628.63 
B 8,586.06 7/9 6,671.37 
C 9,218.20 8/9 8,185.76 
D 5,363.69 9/9 5,363.69 
E 4,070.44 11/9 4,974.08 
F 2,579.00 13/9 3,724.07 
G 1,471.49 15/9 2,451.50 
H 65.56 18/9 131.12 

35,134.49 
Less allowance for non-collection (491.88) 

Contributions in lieu 
(MOD properties) 129.10 

COUNCIL TAX BASE 2016/17 34,771.71 

(Band A- relates to a reduction for persons with disabilities on Band A) 

http:1,635.01


 

    

 
 

 
     

    

     

  

 
 

 
 

    
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  
   

   
  

 
    

 

  
    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The tax base multiplied by the average band D council tax of £1,635.01 provided an original estimate of 
income, including council tax benefit, of £56,852,126 for 2016/17.  The actual income for 2016/17 was 
£57,882,624 thus exceeding expectations by 1.8% 

Note 2. Business Rates (National Non-Domestic Rates) 

The Business Rates Retention scheme provides for non-domestic rates collected by a billing authority to be 
shared between it, its major precepting authority and central government. 

The Council collects non-domestic rates for its area, based on local rateable values multiplied by a national 
rate.  The total rateable value for the Rugby Borough area was £114,162,057 at 31st March 2017 (£111,262,579 
in 2015/16). The non-domestic rating multiplier for 2016/17 was 49.7p (49.3p in 2015/16) and the small business 
non-domestic rating multiplier was 48.4p (48.0p in 2015/16). 

Note 3. Collection Fund Balance Apportionment 

The Collection Fund balance as at 31st March 2017 will be split between the authorities and recovered in 
2018/19 in the following proportions: 

2015/16 
Total 
£’000 

Council 
Tax 

2016/17 
£’000 

Business Rates 

2016/17 
£’000 

1,931 Central Government - (104) 
(331) Warwickshire County Council (639) (21) 
(113) Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Warwickshire (99) -
1,433 Rugby Borough Council (99) (84) 
2,920 (837) (209) 

The Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2016 will include a net debtor for each of the precepting authorities’ share 
of the Collection Fund surplus. 

The Council’s share of the overall surplus on the Collection Fund of £183,000 is recognised in the Consolidated 
Income and Expenditure Statement in 2016/17, but reversed out to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account 
in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
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Collection Fund Adjustment Account 

The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of income 
from council tax and business rates in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls due 
compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to the General Fund from the 
Collection Fund. 

Total 

2015/16 
£’000 

Council Tax 

2016/17 
£’000 

Business 
Rates 

2016/17 
£’000 

Total 

2016/17 
£’000 

136 Balance at 1st April (112) 1,545 1,433 

1,297 

Amount by which income credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement is different from income calculated 
for the year in accordance with statutory 

requirements. 

13 (1,629) (1,616) 

1,433 Balance at 31st March (99) (84) (183) 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF RUGBY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

To be added upon the conclusion of the audit 
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Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 


1.	 SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY 

1.1	 Rugby Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that it conducts its business in accordance with the 
law and proper standards. Public money must be used economically, efficiently and effectively, 
safeguarded and properly accounted for. The Council  must have in place proper governance 
arrangements and carry out its functions effectively, including suitable risk management 
arrangements. 

1.2	 The Council must conduct a review, at least once a year, of the effectiveness of its system of internal 
control and report the findings in an annual governance statement. The statement must be prepared 
in accordance with proper practices and be reported to a Committee of Councillors. This document 
comprises the Council’s annual governance statement for 2016/17. 

2.	 WHO IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ENSURING GOOD GOVERNANCE? 

2.1	 The Council’s governance arrangements are overseen by the Audit & Ethics Committee. The 
Executive Director has overall responsibility for ensuring that effective controls and processes are 
implemented across the Council and these are regularly reviewed and updated. Regular reports are 
submitted to the Audit & Ethics Committee highlighting any identified enhancements. The Head of 
Corporate Resources and Chief Finance Officer (s151 Officer) is responsible for ensuring that effective 
financial controls are in place, for the maintenance of an effective internal audit function and for 
reviewing the overall effectiveness of the governance framework. The overview and co-ordination of 
this process is undertaken by the Corporate Assurance and Improvement Manager. 

3.	 WHAT THIS STATEMENT TELLS YOU 

3.1	 This Statement provides a summarised account of how the Council’s management arrangements are 
set up to meet the principles of good governance set out in the Constitution and how assurance is 
obtained that these are both effective and appropriate. It is written to provide the reader with a clear, 
simple assessment of how the governance framework has operated over the past financial year, how 
effective that framework has been in enabling the Council to achieve its intended outcomes, and to 
identify any improvements made and any weaknesses or gaps in arrangements that need to be 
addressed. Its main aim is to provide the reader with confidence that the Council is managed 
effectively and efficiently; that services are delivered in accordance with current legislation, the 
corporate strategy and in a way that optimises value for money. 
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4.	 THE PRINCIPLES OF GOOD GOVERNANCE 

4.1	 The principles of good governance are set out in the new CIPFA Framework for Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government 2016. The new framework is different in a number of ways, in 
particular the positioning of the attainment of sustainable economic, societal, and environmental 
outcomes as a key focus of governance processes and structures. This statement explains how the 
Council has complied with the new framework and also meets the requirements of the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations 2015 (England). 

4.2	 Good governance is dynamic, and the  Council is committed to improving its governance on a 
continuing basis through a process of evaluation and review. The diagram below, taken from the 
International Framework for Good Governance in the Public Sector, illustrates the various principles of 
good governance in the public sector and how they relate to each other. 

Principles A and B permeate implementation of principles C to G 
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5.	 THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 

5.1	 The governance framework comprises the policies, plans, systems, processes, culture and values (the 
system of ‘internal control’) that the Council has in place to ensure its intended outcomes for 
stakeholders and the community are defined and delivered. To deliver good governance objectives 
must be achieved whilst also acting in the public interest. The framework enables the Council to 
monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have 
led to the delivery of appropriate, cost effective services. 

5.2	 The governance arrangements are designed to ensure that an appropriate and proportionate 
approach is taken to managing risk whilst ensuring that objectives are achieved. The governance 
framework has been in place for the year to the date of approval of this annual governance  
statement. The arrangements are not designed to eliminate all risks but rather provide a reasonable 
degree of assurance of effectiveness. 

5.3	 The governance framework and an assessment of its effectiveness are set out on the following pages. 
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PRINCIPLE A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and 
respecting the rule of law 

Arrangements in place Effectiveness and future developments 

 Member and officer codes of conduct 
 Confidential Reporting Code 
 Counter Fraud, Bribery and Corruption 

Strategy 
 Fraud Response Plan 
 Contract Standing Orders 
 Declaration of interests procedure 
 Register of interests 
 Register of gifts and hospitality 
 Customer feedback and complaints 

procedure 
 Equalities & Diversity policy statement 
 Information security policies and a Chief 

Information Officer in post 
 Newly updated corporate values which all 

employees are expected to act in 
accordance with 

 Recruitment/ selection procedures 
aligned with corporate values 

A revised Counter Fraud Strategy and Fraud Response Plan 
were implemented during 2016/17 which has led to a more 
consistent approach to investigation of irregularities across the 
Council and improved awareness amongst staff. Furthermore, 
dedicated time has been set aside within the internal audit 
work plan to ensure that resources are available to thoroughly 
investigate any allegations and to enable proactive risk based 
testing to be conducted during the year. 

New corporate values were developed in full consultation with 
almost 200 employees involved in their development. There is a 
high commitment to embedding the values across the 
organisation. A behaviours document will be issued to all 
officers and compliance will be mandatory. Rolling licensing 
committee training has been provided to members leading to 
a clearer evaluation of prosecution cases. Regulatory training 
has been provided to planning committee members leading to 
a greater awareness and understanding when making 
decisions, leading to a reduction in appeals. 

 A new standard template has been 
developed for 1 to 1 meetings between 
managers and staff, ensuring that 
corporate values are embedded and 
adhered to 

 An internal audit review has been 
scheduled in 2017/18 to provide assurance 
that corporate values are embedded 
across the organisation 

 The Council participates in the National 
Fraud Initiative and the County Wide 
Counter Fraud Initiative 

 Delivery of fraud and corruption 
awareness training 

 Any planning applications submitted by 
staff are reviewed in public 

 Agenda management sheets of Council 
reports include a requirement to highlight 
the legal implications of decisions 

 Records of regulatory training required 
and undertaken are retained on the 
Council’s HR system 

 The Council has a Health & Safety 
members working party 

The feedback and complaints procedure is robust, however at 
present there is formal analysis of feedback undertaken to 
identify common themes or issues for which lessons may need 
to be learnt across the organisation. Furthermore, positive 
feedback is not always celebrated and recognised in a 
consistent manner. See Action 1. 

The Council’s information security procedures are 
comprehensive but the new General Data Protection 
Regulations take effect in May 2018 and steps need to be taken 
to implement and embed the regulations across the Council. 
See Action 2. 

The Council’s voluntary and community grants working party 
has issued approximately £250,000 in funds to benefit our 
citizens and communities. Applications are subject to a 
consistent evaluation process. Outcomes are clearly defined in 
Service Level Agreements and delivery is monitored. 
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PRINCIPLE B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 

Arrangements in place Effectiveness and future developments 

 The Council publishes a range of 
information including meeting agendas 
and reports, financial and procurement 
data, invitations to tender, senior officer 
salaries, the contracts register, annual 
governance statement and financial 
statements, corporate performance 
information, planning applications and 
decisions and section 106 agreements. 

 The strategic risk register is scrutinised by 
the Audit & Ethics Committee with open 
reporting to Cabinet. 

 The Council consults widely and 
comprehensively with stakeholders on 
its proposals. Wider engagement takes 
place via the West Midlands Combined 
Authority and the Local Enterprise 
Partnership. 

 There is a Scrutiny Committee work 
programme in place, with members of 
the public invited to recommend topics 
and attend annual work planning 
meetings. 

 A Forward Plan is in place setting out 
what consultation will be undertaken in 
advance of decisions being made, and 
with whom. 

 The Council has received an Equality & 
Diversity “excellent” accreditation and 
Equality Impact Assessments are 
completed for Council decisions. 

 Communications strategy in place 

 Customer feedback and complaints 
procedure 

 Active engagement with employees 
takes place in a number of ways 
including through a bi-annual survey, 
regular employee briefings, core briefs, 
and the corporate management forum 
and through the Joint Union 
Consultation Forum. 

On May 24th 2017 the Council was reaccredited as “excellent” under 
the equalities framework for local government, the first and only 
district Council to have achieved the reaccreditation. 

The Council uses a range of approaches to engage with 
communities including through associations, forums, leafletting, 
parish councils, drop in events, Facebook, our website, surveys, and 
face to face. There is a contract with language line to support any 
face to face communication issues and the Council accesses the 
Warwickshire County Council interpretation and translation service 
to translate written documents. The Council is a partner of 
Warwickshire Observatory, which provides information and 
intelligence about Warwickshire and its people. The information 
provided was used to inform the Council’s vision for Rugby Town 
Centre and to inform the development of the Corporate Strategy 
for 2017-20. The information is also used by staff when completing 
Equality Impact Assessments, which helps to ensure that decisions 
are taken after due consideration of the impacts across the 
community. 

There is an annual ‘Our Rugby, Our Future’ event which enables 
voluntary and community sector and statutory partners to 
contribute their views on progress on the Regeneration Strategy 
priorities and amend them as appropriate. This informs the work 
which is undertaken with community partners. 

Consultation is also undertaken with staff and trade unions in 
developing employment policies. During 2016/17 there was 
consultation on proposed changes to staff terms and conditions; 
staff were kept informed of progress and amendments were made 
to the proposals as a result. 

Cross party working parties are operated as an additional measure 
which ensures engagement with all members on key Council 
decisions. 

As part of the strategy of ensuring the Council is fit for the future, 
residents were used to help shape changes to the way the housing 
warden service is delivered. This resulted in improved service 
resilience and consistency of service quality whilst delivering greater 
efficiency and value for money. Furthermore, the residents’ panel 
and housing association champions provide greater community 
involvement and shaping of decisions which concern them. 
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PRINCIPLE C: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits 

Arrangements in place Effectiveness and future developments 

 A new Corporate Strategy was 
approved which was subject to a 
public consultation exercise 

 The Medium Term Financial Strategy is 
aligned with the Corporate Strategy 

 Cabinet and Committee reports set 
out the impact of changes on 
stakeholders  

 Strategic and operational risk register 
are in place, and a register of 
corporate risks will be developed in 
2017. 

 A “clean” Value for Money opinion 
was received from the external 
auditors in 2016. 

 As part of plans to ensure the Council 
is fit for the future, decisions are being 
taken for the long term including 
implementation of green waste 
charges, digitalisation of services and 
internal processes, a forward plan for 
the Rugby Art Gallery and Museum, 
and through the commercialisation 
agenda. 

 The Council consults widely on its 
proposals considering the economic, 
social and environmental impacts of 
plans, policies and decisions. 

 There is a clear vision for Rugby Town 
Centre including an action plan and 
marketing plan. 

It was a successful year for the borough’s parks and open spaces; 
Rugby gained a gold award in both the regional Heart of England in 
Bloom and the National Britain in Bloom campaigns. Both Caldecott 
Park and Centenary Park received Green Flag awards, with the latter 
being recognised as the most improved park in the country by the 
Fields in Trust. Funding was secured from the Woodland Trust to plant 
over 28,000 trees and the Council supported over 8,000 hours of 
volunteer activity on its green spaces. 

As an indicator of its success the Play Team resources have been 
significantly increased in order to accommodate demand. The 
service helps local schools to deliver their healthy schools agenda by 
running breakfast clubs where healthy eating and physical activity 
are encouraged. Park sessions are run with families to encourage 
them to use the green spaces in the local area and young people 
are stakeholders in the design of play facilities. The service also runs 
youth clubs for children. 

In the Benn Ward area local residents were educated to take 
responsibility for their own waste; residents are now taking the lead in 
ensuring the area is kept clean. In March 2017 the Council launched 
a new campaign to crackdown on fly tippling and in 2016 more than 
1,400 fly tipping incidents were dealt with. 

The Council delivered a number of improvements to enhance the 
public realm of the Town Centre including replacement and 
refurbishment of timber benches, improvements to car park lighting, 
and replacement of town centre car park pay and display machines. 

Through the Council’s on-going crime and disorder initiatives serious 
violent crime was reduced by 7.5%, domestic burglary was reduced 
by 9% and every Council supported victim of anti-social behaviour 
saw a reduction in their vulnerability. 

In January 2017 work commenced to improve a flood-prone stretch 
of the Great Central Way footpath and cycle way between the 
Clifton Road bridge and Hillmorton’s Pytchley Road. 

The Rugby Multilink project was also launched, offering free advice 
and support to the Polish speaking community. The project links 
established Polish speaking residents with new residents in need of 
help and support. 
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PRINCIPLE D: Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of intended 
outcomes 

Arrangements in place Effectiveness and future developments 

 We manage performance through local Together with the Newbold-on-Avon Community Partnership the 
and management performance Council transformed a former allotment site on Parkfield Road 
indicators; this enables intervention to be into a flagship green space with a sensory garden, wildlife zones, 
targeted where it is needed. a butterfly bank, picnic area and nature trail. 

 The service planning process is designed 
to ensure that we target the actions The Council led a partnership bid from the Warwickshire Together 
necessary to deliver our Corporate Homelessness Early Intervention Project to secure a £855,000 
Strategy. grant from the Department for Communities and Local 

 The corporate performance Government’s Homelessness Prevention Trailblazers fund. 
management system (RPMS) is used to 
monitor the delivery of action plans. 

As part of the corporate strategy the Council continued to 
facilitate investment and growth in Rugby. This is evidenced by 

 Following a restructure of the senior the commencement of a new community development at the 
management team in 2016 there are 
now four distinct service areas and a 
dedicated member portfolio holder for 
each service. 

 Committee and Cabinet reports set out 
the risks and options associated with 

site of the old Rugby Radio Station, the granting of planning 
permission for phase 2 of the Elliott’s Field retail park and the 
launch of new promotional branding for the town centre. The 
Council received the best ‘Small Business Friendly’ award at the 
Federation of Small Business’ annual Local Authority awards. 

decisions. Difficult decisions were taken during 2016/17 to ensure that the 
 A “clean” Value for Money opinion was Council is financially fit for the future, including the introduction 

received from the external auditors in of green waste collection charges. These decisions enabled the 
2016 and the Contract Standing Orders Council to continue presenting a sustainable balanced budget 
and financial instructions are designed to and will enable highly valued local services to be preserved 
ensure best value. whilst delivering the outcomes set out in the corporate strategy. 

 Quarterly finance and performance 
reports are submitted to and reviewed Whilst service planning is embedded in the Council’s approach 
by Cabinet. to achieving its corporate strategy, delivery of associated action 

 An annual budget report is submitted plans is not closely monitored and there is scope to directly link 
and there is an established budget our key performance measures back to the outcomes set out in 
setting process. the strategy. See Action 3. 

 The Medium Term Financial Strategy is The Council continued to implement systems thinking reviews. 
regularly reviewed and updated. These reviews involve challenging existing internal processes and 

 The Council consults widely on its are focussed on improving the customer experience. An 
proposals considering the economic, example of a successful outcome was the housing review which 
social and environmental impacts of 
plans, policies and decisions. 

led to a reduction in the number of customer complaints and an 
increase in the number of compliments. 

 There is a Forward Plan of key decisions 
and a scrutiny committee arrangement The Council brokered agreements with key community groups in 
in place. the five most deprived neighbourhoods in the Borough. This 

 A customer feedback and complaints enabled the provision of core funding towards the running of 
procedure is in place. community centres and delivery of other community priorities. 
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PRINCIPLE E: Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the 
individuals within it 

Arrangements in place Effectiveness & future developments 

 Each member of the senior management team 
undertakes professional development 
appropriate to their role. 

 The respective roles of the Executive Director and 
Leader are clearly defined. 

 The senior management team meets formally 
every two weeks and informally every week and 
Cabinet meets on a regular basis. 

 Section 151 (Chief Finance) and Monitoring 
Officers are in post. 

 The Constitution sets out roles and responsibilities 
and the Council’s decision making process. An 
approved scheme of delegation is in place. 
Contract Standing Orders and associated toolkits 
are designed to ensure procurement activity is 
cost effective and ethical. 

 Registers of gifts, hospitality and conflicts of 
interest in place. 

 Protocol in place setting out the relationship 
between and roles of members and officers. 

 Member training and development programme 
in place including dedicated training for 
planning and licensing committee members. 

 Thorough induction processes are in place for all 
new employees and members. 

 Job profiles clearly set out the responsibilities of 
officers throughout the organisation. 

 Learning and Development Strategy and 
Corporate Learning Group in place. 

 There is a system of regular team meetings and 
one to one meetings between managers and 
staff. 

 Employee health and wellbeing days are 
arranged and confidential employee counselling 
support is available at all times. 

 A comprehensive suite of training and 
development courses is offered to all employees. 

 All managers are expected to complete the 
“Way We Manage” training programme. 

 Corporate Management Forum in place. 
 The Council has a comprehensive suite of HR 

policies covering employee capability, 
disciplinary, recruitment and selection, 
disciplinary and grievance, and flexible working. 

Due to the challenging financial climate, there was a 
restructure of the senior management team in 2016. As a 
result, the Council now has four portfolio holders who 
form the Cabinet along with the Leader. Following the 
restructure the Council now has one Executive Director 
and four Heads of Service aligned with the portfolios. The 
restructure provided savings of circa £200,000 per year. 

The Council has a Corporate Apprenticeship scheme 
and there have been 24 apprentices since the scheme 
started. The apprentices provide a range of valuable 
support to various Council services whilst undergoing a 
structured programme of self-development. 

Over 100 managers have completed the Council’s “Way 
We Manage” corporate training programme. This is a 
significant investment in the workforce. The training 
includes governance issues such as financial 
management, performance management, health and 
safety and procurement procedures. 

A more consistent format has been developed for one 
to one meetings between managers and staff. A 
standard formal agenda will be issued which will enable 
staff development needs to be identified and addressed 
throughout the year rather than at six monthly intervals. 

As part of a wider review of the Constitution and given 
that there is no longer a Standards Board, in 2017 the 
Council will review, update and communicate our 
protocol for member/ officer relations. See Action 4. 

An employee health and wellbeing day was held in 
March 2017 at which staff were offered free mini health 
checks including blood pressure and cholesterol, taster 
massage and reflexology sessions, financial advice and 
access to a wealth of health information. 
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PRINCIPLE F: Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public 
financial management 

Arrangements in place Effectiveness and future developments 

 The Council has a risk management strategy 
in place which is reviewed and refreshed 
annually. Strategic and operational risk 
registers are in place. Senior management, 
Audit & Ethics Committee, Cabinet, 
Strategic Risk Management Group, and the 
Health & Safety Members Working Party, all 
oversee the risk management 
arrangements. 

 A regular risk assessment of the Council’s 
financial reserves and balances is 
conducted. Key risks are identified and the 
financial impacts are quantified. Reserves 
are reviewed annually in the context of the 
risk assessments. 

 Financial information is published on a 
regular basis and established and 
embedded budget setting and monitoring 
procedures are in place. 

 Cabinet and Committee system in place 
including two scrutiny committees and an 
Audit & Ethics Committee with independent 
Chair and Vice Chairs. 

 Counter fraud strategy, fraud response plan 
and confidential reporting code in place. 

 The internal audit service provides an 
independent and objective annual report 
and opinion. 

 In 2017 work will be completed to align 
service planning and KPIs to the new 
Corporate Strategy. 

 A corporate system is used to monitor, 
manage and report performance and 
conduct verification checks on the quality 
of our data. Performance data is reported 
quarterly to Cabinet and is reviewed by a 
scrutiny committee. 

 Data sharing protocols are in place 
covering, for example, the HEART service, 
Trailblazer and the County Counter Fraud 
Initiative. 

The Council realised a General Fund underspend of £266,140 
for the year. A further £5 million was invested in the borough’s 
housing stock by replacing windows and doors in over 1,350 
properties, replacing 126 gas central heating systems and 123 
kitchens. The time taken to fill an empty housing property was 
reduced from 39 days to 26. This reduction equated to 
increased rental income of circa £50,000. 

The annual report of the Corporate Assurance and 
Improvement Manager provides a Substantial level of 
assurance that the Council has an adequate and effective 
control environment in place. An internal audit review of 
corporate Health & Safety, however, resulted in only Limited 
assurance. A full action plan was agreed with management 
and delivery is being monitored by internal audit, senior 
management, and the health & safety members’ working 
party and by the Audit & Ethics Committee. 

An internal audit service improvement plan was delivered 
during 2016/17. This included full implementation of Risk 
Based Internal Auditing (RBIA) which is recognised as best 
practice. The work of internal audit has been aligned more 
closely with the aims and risk profile of the organisation and 
the service is responsive to emerging issues and risks. Linkages 
between the results of internal audits, the associated risks and 
actions have been enhanced. 

A full review and update of corporate performance 
indicators was completed during the year to ensure that 
measures are relevant to the needs and objectives of the 
organisation. 

Cabinet approved a new Anti-Fraud, Bribery and Corruption 
Strategy in 2016/17 in addition to a Fraud Response Plan. 
Training was provided to managers in April 2017 and in 
support of the strategy fraud risks were assessed by internal 
audit with actions put in place where necessary. 

A review of operational risk registers highlighted a number of 
risks which cut across service areas and which need to be 
considered at a corporate level. Officers will develop a 
corporate risk register in 2017 to ensure these risks are 
effectively managed through our Strategic Risk 
Management Group. See Action 5. 
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PRINCIPLE G: Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective 
accountability 

Arrangements in place Effectiveness and future developments 

 A range of information is published including 
an annual report of internal audit, the 
financial statements, the annual report of 
external auditor and this annual 
governance statement, which contains an 
action plan demonstrating a commitment 
to continuous improvement. 

 All reports are subject to a robust internal 
review process to ensure they are presented 
in an understandable style. 

 The performance information set out in the 
financial statements is prepared in 
consideration of the presentational 
approach adopted by other similar 
authorities. 

 There is an open data section on the 
Council’s website. 

 Implementation of external audit 
recommendations is monitored by the 
Financial Services Manager and Deputy 
Section 151 officer. 

 Implementation of internal audit 
recommendations is monitored by the 
Corporate Assurance and Improvement 
Manager and reported to senior 
management and the Audit & Ethics 
Committee. 

 The Corporate Assurance and Improvement 
Manager is provided with direct unfettered 
access to the Chair and Vice Chairs of the 
Audit & Ethics Committee. 

 The Council submits itself to external peer 
reviews including by the Local Government 
Association, and in May 2017 welcomed an 
equalities and diversity peer review and 
challenge. Action plans arising from these 
reviews are monitored by the senior 
management team. 

 An internal audit review of governance 
arrangements for jointly managed 
organisations and partnerships is scheduled 
for 2017. 

 Invitations to tender are published. 

As outlined in the action plan arising from last year’s annual 
governance statement, the contracts register was updated 
and published. Details of senior officer salaries were also 
published. 

The Annual Audit Letter for 2015/16 provided assurance over 
the Council’s financial control and overall governance 
arrangements. 

The presentation of the Council’s financial statements was 
redesigned for 2016/17 to make them easier to read and for 
stakeholders to understand. The design of this annual 
governance statement has also been updated to make it 
easier to read, and it has been prepared in line with good 
practice guidelines published by the Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance & Accountability (CIPFA). Furthermore, the 
draft financial statements and annual governance statement 
are being published one month earlier than previous years; 
this provides stakeholders with more timely information and 
new publication timetables have been met a year ahead of 
schedule. 

In May 2017 the Council welcomed an external review which 
resulted in it being the first and only district authority to be 
reaccredited as “excellent” under the equalities framework 
for local government. 

An internal audit review of the Council’s governance 
arrangements for jointly managed organisations and 
partnerships has been scheduled for 2017. In line with 
recommended practice the results of this review will be 
published. See Action 6. 

Whilst the Council’s corporate performance information is 
published within Cabinet and scrutiny committee reports and 
in the financial statements, in 2017 this information will be 
made easier for stakeholders to access because it will be 
added to the open data section of the website. See Action 7. 

In September 2017 the internal audit service will partake in an 
independent external quality assessment. The results will be 
reported to senior management and the Audit & Ethics 
Committee and the service improvement plan will be 
updated to reflect the results of the review. See Action 8. 
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6. PROGRESS ON DELIVERY OF LAST YEAR’S ACTION PLAN 


Improvement Action Assessment of Progress 

1 Production of the detailed 
Medium Term Financial Plan 
(MTFP) for 2017-21 

Completed 

The MTFP was presented alongside the proposed budget for 
2017/18. 

2 Development of Business 
Continuity Plans for critical 
services 

Not completed 

This action has been on hold pending a review of the structure of 
corporate health and safety and resilience service. Expected 
completion September 2017. See Action 9 

3 Completion of self-assessment 
against the Equalities Framework 
for Local Government 

Completed 

Following an external review the Council was reaccredited as 
“excellent” under the framework. 

4 Review and update of the 
Constitution to reflect the 
restructure of the Council’s 
senior management team 

In progress 

This has now formed part of a wider review and update of the 
Constitution expected to be complete by November 2017. See 
Action 10 

5 Introduction of a dedicated 
governance forum 

In progress 

The format of the forum was discussed at the Strategic Risk 
Management Group in April 2017 and following consideration by 
senior management it will be introduced by December 2017. See 
Action 11 

6 Review and update of the Code 
of Conduct for Officers 

In progress 

This is being aligned with the review and update of the 
Constitution. See Action 10 

7 Fully implement and embed the 
new Anti-Fraud, Bribery and 
Corruption Strategy 

In progress 

Significant progress has been made. Risk exposures have been 
assessed, a response plan has been developed and training 
provided to managers. Further training will be provided to 
members and individual teams. See Action 12 

8 Review, update and publication 
of the Confidential Reporting 
Code 

Completed 

Will be published alongside the updated Constitution. 

9 Complete the review, update 
and publication of the 
Contracts Register 

Completed 

Updated register published in February 2017. 
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10 Update the published details of 
senior officer salaries on the 
Council’s website 

Completed 

Updated details published in December 2016. 

11 Fully implement the Internal 
Audit service improvement plan, 
including Risk Based Internal 
Auditing (RBIA) 

Completed 

Progress was regularly reported to the Head of Corporate 
Resources and Chief Finance Officer, and Audit & Ethics 
Committee during 2016. 

12 Complete the review and 
streamlining of the Council’s 
suite of performance indicators 

Completed 

Review completed in March 2017. Further work planned in 2017 
to align key performance measures with the new corporate 
strategy. 

7. UPDATED ACTION PLAN 


Action Lead officer Target completion 
date 

1 Update the feedback and complaints 
procedure, ensuring that: 

 Common themes are identified for which 
lessons may need to be applied across the 
Council; and 

 There is a common approach to recognising 
and celebrating positive feedback from 
customers. 

Executive Director December 2017 

2 Implement and embed compliance with the 
new General Data Protection Regulations. 

Head of Communities 
and Homes 

May 2018 

3 Review and update the service planning 
process, ensuring that delivery of action plans is 
monitored and that there are clear linkages 
between key performance measures and the 
outcomes envisaged in the corporate strategy. 

Head of Corporate 
Resources and s151 
Officer 

September 2017 

4 Review, update and communicate the protocol 
for member/ officer relations 

Executive Director November 2017 

5 Develop a corporate risk register; ensuring risks 
are effectively managed through the Strategic 
Risk Management Group. 

Head of Corporate 
Resources and s151 
Officer 

December 2017 
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6 Complete and publish the review of governance 
arrangements for jointly managed organisations 
and partnerships. 

Head of Corporate 
Resources and s151 
Officer 

March 2018 

7 Add corporate performance information to the 
open data section of the Council website 

Head of Corporate 
Resources and s151 
Officer 

December 2017 

8 Report the results of the internal audit external 
quality assessment to the Audit & Ethics 
Committee and update the service 
improvement plan to reflect the results of the 
assessment. 

Head of Corporate 
Resources and s151 
Officer 

November 2017 

9 Develop Business Continuity Plans for critical 
services 

Head of Environment 
and Public Realm 

September 2017 

10 Review and update of the Constitution, including 
the Code of Conduct for Officers 

Executive Director November 2017 

11 Introduce a dedicated governance forum, 
ensuring that any emerging governance issues 
are reviewed and addressed during the year. 

Executive Director December 2017 

12 Fully implement and embed the new Anti-Fraud, 
Bribery and Corruption Strategy, including 
provision of further training to members and 
individual teams 

Head of Corporate 
Resources and s151 
Officer 

March 2018 

8.	 SUMMARY, CONCLUSION AND CERTIFICATION 

8.1	 Good governance is about running things properly. It is the means by which the Council shows it is 
taking decisions for the good of the people in the area, in a fair, equitable and open way. It also 
requires standards of behaviour that support good decision making – collective and individual 
integrity, openness and honesty. It is the foundation for the delivery of good quality services that meet 
all local people’s needs. It is fundamental to showing public money is well spent. Without good 
governance that Council will struggle to deliver the outcomes set out in the corporate strategy. 

8.2	 This statement has been considered by the Audit & Ethics Committee, which was satisfied that it is an 
accurate reflection of the governance framework and that the arrangements continue to be 
regarded as fit for purpose in accordance with the governance framework. A number of future 
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8.3	 The Council is satisfied that its overall governance framework provides a substantial level of assurance 
of effectiveness, although a number of further development areas have been highlighted. Delivery of 
the Action Plan will be monitored during 2017/18. 

8.4	 Our overall assessment is that the Annual Governance Statement is a balanced reflection of the 
governance environment and that an adequate framework exists within the Council to ensure an 
effective internal control environment is maintained. We are also satisfied that there are appropriate 
plans in place to address any significant governance issues and will monitor their implementation and 
operations. 

Adam Norburn - Executive Director 

Date: 

Councillor M Stokes - Leader of Rugby Borough Council 

Date: 
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Glossary of Terms 

Accruals Basis 
The accruals principle is that income is recorded when it is earned rather  than  when it is received, and  
expenses are recorded when goods or services are received rather than when the payment is made. 

Appointed Auditors 
From 1st April 2015 the appointment of External Auditors to Local Authorities is undertaken by Public Sector 
Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA), an independent company limited by guarantee and incorporated by 
the Local Government Association in August 2014. This role was previously undertaken by The Audit 
Commission. Grant Thornton is the Council’s appointed Auditor. 

Balances 
The balances of the Council represent the accumulated surplus of income over expenditure on any of the 
Funds. 

Capital Expenditure 
This is expenditure on the acquisition of a fixed asset, or expenditure, which adds to, and not merely maintains, 
the value of an existing fixed asset. 

Capital Receipts 
Income received from the sale of land or other capital assets, a proportion of which may be used to finance 
new capital expenditure, subject to the provisions contained within the Local Government Act 2003. 

Carrying Amount 
The Balance Sheet value recorded of either an asset or a liability. 

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 
CIPFA is the leading professional accountancy body for public services. 

Collection Fund 
The Council as a billing authority has a statutory obligation to maintain a separate Collection Fund. This shows 
the transactions of the Council in relation to the collection from taxpayers of Council Tax and Non-Domestic 
Rates (NDR) and its distribution to local government bodies and the Government. 

Community Assets 
These are non-current assets that the Council intends to hold in perpetuity which have no determinable finite 
useful life and, in addition, may have restrictions on their disposal. Examples include parks and historical 
buildings not used for operational purposes. 

Contingent Liabilities or Assets 
These are amounts potentially due to or from individuals or organisations which may arise in the future but 
which at this time cannot be determined accurately, and for which provision has not been made in the 
Council’s Accounts. 
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Creditors 
Amounts owed by the Council for work done, goods received or services rendered, for which payment has 
not been made at the date of the balance sheet. 

Current Service Cost 
Current Service Cost is the increase in the present value of a defined benefit pension scheme’s liabilities 
expected to arise from employee service in the current period, i.e. the ultimate pension benefits “earned” by 
employees in the current year’s employment. 

Current Value 
The current value of an asset reflects the economic environment prevailing for the service or function the 
asset is supporting at the reporting date. 

Debtors 
These are sums of money due to the Council that have not been received at the date of the Balance Sheet 

Defined Benefit Scheme 
This is a pension or other retirement benefit scheme other than a defined contribution scheme. Usually, the 
scheme rules define the benefits independently of the contributions payable and the benefits are not directly 
related to the investments of the scheme. The scheme may be funded or unfunded (including notionally 
funded). 

Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) 
DCLG is a Central Government department with the overriding responsibility for determining the allocation of 
general resources to Local Authorities. 

Depreciation 
This is the measure of the wearing out, consumption, or other reduction in the useful economic life of property 
plant and equipment assets. 

Derecognition 
Financial assets and liabilities will need to be removed from the Balance Sheet once performance under the 
contract is complete or the contract is terminated. 

Earmarked Reserves 
The Council holds a number of reserves earmarked to be used to meet specific, known or predicted future 
expenditure. 

External Audit 
The independent examination of the activities and accounts of Local Authorities to ensure the Accounts have 
been prepared in accordance with legislative requirements and proper practices and to ensure the Council 
has made proper arrangements to secure value for money in its use of resources. 

Fair Value 
Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell and asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
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Finance Lease 
A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of a fixed asset 
to the lessee. 

Financial Instruments 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability 
or equity instrument of another. The  term ‘financial  instrument’ covers both financial assets and financial 
liabilities and includes both the most straightforward financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables 
and trade payables and the most complex ones such as derivatives and embedded derivatives. 

Financial Regulations 
These are the written code of procedures approved by the Council, intended to provide a framework for 
proper financial management. Financial regulations usually set out rules on accounting, audit, administrative 
and budgeting procedures. 

General Fund 
This is the main revenue fund of the Council and includes the net cost of all services financed by local 
taxpayers and Government grants. 

Heritage Asset 
A tangible asset with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or environmental qualities that is 
held and maintained principally for its contribution to knowledge and culture. 

Housing Benefit 
This is an allowance to persons receiving little or no income to meet, in whole or part, their rent. Benefit is 
allowed or paid by Local Authorities but Central Government refunds part of the cost of the benefits and of 
the running costs of the services to Local Authorities. Benefits paid to the Council’s own tenants are known as 
rent rebate and that paid to private tenants as rent allowance. 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
Local Authorities are required to maintain a separate account - the Housing Revenue Account - which sets 
out the expenditure and income arising from the provision of council housing. Other services are charged to 
the General Fund. 

Impairment 
A reduction in the value of assets below its value brought forward in the Balance Sheet. Examples of factors 
which may cause such a reduction in value include general price decreases, a significant decline in a fixed 
asset’s market value and evidence of obsolescence or physical damage to the asset. 

Infrastructure Assets 
Fixed Assets which generally cannot be sold and from which benefit can be obtained only by continued use 
of the asset created. Examples of such assets are highways, footpaths, bridges and water and drainage 
facilities. 

Intangible Assets 
These are assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable and controlled by the Council. 
Examples include software, licenses and patent 
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International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 
Defined Accounting Standards that must be applied by all reporting entities to all financial statements in order 
to provide a true and fair view of the entity’s financial position, and a standardised method of comparison 
with financial statements of the other entities. 

Inventories  
Amounts of unused or unconsumed stocks held in expectation of future use. Inventories are comprised of the 
following categories: 
 Goods or other assets purchased for resale 
 Consumable stores 
 Raw materials and components 
 Products and services in intermediate stages of completion 
 Finished goods 

Investment Properties 
Property, which can be land or a building or part of a building or both, that is held solely to earn rentals or for 
capital appreciation or both, rather than for operational purposes. 

Liabilities 
These are amounts due to individuals or organisations which will have to be paid at some time in the future. 
Current liabilities are usually payable within one year of the Balance Sheet date. 

Materiality 
Information is material if omitting it or misstating it could influence the decisions that users make on the basis 
of financial information about a specific reporting authority. 

Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 
This is a financial planning document that sets out the future years’ financial forecasts for the Council. It 
considers local and national policy influences and projects their impact on the general fund revenue budget, 
capital programme and HRA. 

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 
MRP is the minimum amount which must be charged to a Council’s revenue account each year and set aside 
as provision for credit liabilities, as required by the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. 

Non Domestic Rate (NDR) (also known as Business Rates) 
NDR is the levy on business property, based on a national rate in the pound applied to the ‘rateable value’ 
of the property. The Government determines national rate poundage each year which is applicable to all 
Local Authorities. 

Net Book Value (NBV) 
The amount at which non-current assets are included in the balance sheet, i.e. their historical cost or current 
value less the cumulative amounts provided for depreciation. 

Net Debt 
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Net Realisable Value (NRV) 
NRV is the open market value of the asset in its existing use (or open market value in the case of non-
operational assets) less the expenses to be incurred in realising the asset. 

Operating Lease 
This is a type of lease, usually of computer equipment, office equipment, furniture, etc. where the balance of 
risks and rewards of holding the asset remains with the lessor. The asset remains the property of the lessor and 
the lease costs are revenue expenditure to the Council. 

Prior Period Adjustments 
These are material adjustments which are applicable to an earlier period arising from changes in accounting 
policies or for the correction of fundamental errors. 

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) 
PPE are tangible assets (i.e. assets that have physical substance) that are held for use in the production or 
supply of goods and services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used 
during more than one year. 

Provisions 
Amounts set aside to meet liabilities or losses which it is anticipated will be incurred but where the amount 
and/or the timing of such costs are uncertain. 

Related Parties 
Related parties are Central Government, other Local Authorities, precepting and levying bodies, subsidiary 
and associated companies, Elected Members, all senior officers from Director and above and the Pension 
Fund. For individuals identified as related parties, the following are also presumed to be related parties: 
 members of the close family, or the same household; and 
 partnerships, companies, trusts or other entities in which the individual, or member of their close family 

or the same household, has a controlling interest. 

Reporting Standards 
The Code of Practice prescribes the accounting treatment and disclosures for all normal transactions of a 
local authority. It is based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), International Standards (IAS) 
and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) plus UK Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice (GAAP) and Financial Reporting Standards (FRS). 

Reserves 
Amounts set aside to help manage future risks, to provide working balances or that are earmarked for specific 
future expenditure priorities. 

Revaluation Reserve 
The Reserve records the accumulated gains on the non-current assets held by the Council arising from 
increases in value as a result of inflation or other factors (to the extent that these gains have not been 
consumed by subsequent downward movements in value). 
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Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS) 
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provision but that does not result 
in the creation of a non-current asset that has been charged as expenditure to the CIES. 

Section 106 (Developer) Contributions 
Planning obligations are legal contracts made under section 106 of the 1990 Town and Country Planning Act. 
They are generally entered into by agreement between councils and landowners. 

Treasury Management 
This is the process by which the Council controls its cash flow and its borrowing and lending activities. 

Treasury Management Strategy (TMS) 
A strategy prepared with regard to legislative and CIPFA requirements setting out the framework for treasury 
management activity for the Council. 

Unsupported (Prudential) Borrowing 
This is borrowing for which no financial support is provided by Central Government. The borrowing costs are 
to be met from current revenue budgets. 

Useful Life 
The period over which the Council will derive benefits from the use of a non-current asset. 
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Agenda No 5 

AGENDA MANAGEMENT SHEET 

Name of Meeting 	 Audit and Ethics Committee 

Date of Meeting 	 27 June 2017 

Report Title 	 Risk Management Strategy 

Portfolio	 Not portfolio specific 

Ward Relevance 	 Not ward specific 

Prior Consultation 	 Corporate Resources Portfolio Holder, Executive 
Director, Head of Corporate Resources and Chief 
Finance Officer, Leader of the Council, Strategic Risk 
Management Group 

Contact Officer 	 Chris Green, Corporate Assurance and Improvement 
Manager, Tel: 01788 533451 

Report Subject to Call-in	 This report is not subject to Call-In because the 
Committee has specific responsibility to review the 
Risk Management arrangements and the framework 
of policies and standards within which it operates. 

Report En-Bloc 	 No 

Forward Plan 	 No 

Statutory/Policy Background 	 Not applicable  

Summary 	 The Council introduced its first Risk Management 
Strategy in 2003. Since then progress has been made 
in implementing both Operational and Strategic Risk 
Management across the organisation. The strategy is 
reviewed annually and this was last completed in May 
2016. This latest version of the strategy identifies the 
additional work planned to ensure that Risk 
Management remains embedded within the day to 
day work of the Council. 

Risk Management 1. As contained within the revised Risk Management 
Implications Strategy dated 2017. 

2. If the Audit and Ethics Committee does not 
endorse the strategy, the Council’s approach to 



 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

risk management will not be properly documented 
and outdated processes could be followed. 

Financial Implications	 There are no direct financial implications arising from 
this report. 

Environmental Implications 	 There are no environmental implications arising from 
this report. 

Legal Implications 	 There are no legal implications arising from this 
report. 

Equalities and Diversity There are no equality and diversity implications 
Implications arising from this report. 

Recommendation 	 The Committee recommends that the Risk 
Management Strategy be approved by Cabinet. 

Reasons for 	 To comply with the requirements of the terms of 
Recommendation 	 reference of the Audit and Ethics Committee, and to 

discharge the Committee’s responsibilities under the 
Constitution. 
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Agenda No 5 

Audit and Ethics Committee – 27 June 2017 

Risk Management Strategy 

Report of the Head of Corporate Resources and Chief Finance Officer 

Recommendation 

The Committee recommends that the Risk Management Strategy be approved by 
Cabinet. 

1. 	 Introduction 

1.1 	 The Council introduced its first Risk Management Strategy in 2003. Since then 
progress has been made in implementing both Operational and Strategic Risk 
Management across the organisation. 

1.2 	 The strategy is reviewed annually and this was last completed in May 2016. This 
latest version of the strategy identifies the additional work planned to ensure that 
Risk Management remains embedded within the day to day work of the Council. 

1.3 	 The Risk Management Strategy was drafted by the Risk Management and 
Insurance Officer and considered by the Corporate Resources Portfolio Holder, 
Executive Director, Head of Corporate Resources and Chief Finance Officer, 
Leader of the Council, and the Strategic Risk Management Group. 

2. 	 Report Details 

2.1 	 No major amendments or updates have been made to the Strategy in this review. 

2.2 	 Paragraph 5.6 of the Strategy, which explains the link with Emergency Planning and 
Business Continuity, has been updated as follows: 

	 To emphasise the Council’s responsibilities under the Civil Contingencies Act; 
	 To explain that the Warwickshire Local Resilience Forum Risk Group has 

updated the risk assessment for Warwickshire; 
	 To highlight that a public facing document on preparing for emergencies was 

published in January 2017; 
	 To highlight that the Council’s Major Emergency Plan was updated in December 

2016 with a public facing version being available on the extranet; and 
	 To emphasise that the Council has a business continuity strategy and plan in 

place, dated 2015 and 2016 respectively, with service specific business 
continuity plans also in place. 
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2.3 A minor change has been made to reflect a change in the Chairmanship of the 
Strategic Risk Management Group during 2016/17. 
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Name of Meeting: Audit and Ethics Committee 

Date of Meeting: 27 June 2017 

Subject Matter: Risk Management Strategy 

Originating Department: Corporate Assurance and Improvement 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS
 

Document Officer’s File 
No. Date Description of Document Reference Reference 
Appendix 27/06/2017 Risk Management Strategy 
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SECTION ONE - Rugby Borough Council Risk Management Statement 

Risk Management is a business critical aspect for everyone at Rugby Borough Council. It 
is imperative that RBC demonstrate to the public, and all other stakeholders, that full 
consideration has been given to all risks when delivering services for the residents and 
businesses in the local area. 

This Strategy outlines how RBC will manage risk through identification, analysis, treatment 
and monitoring of each risk. This Strategy also details the roles and responsibilities for all 
employees and members. Everyone has a part to play. 

……………………………………. ……………………………………….. 

Adam Norburn    Michael Stokes 
Executive Director Leader of the Council 

……………………………………. ……………………………………. 
Date      Date  
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SECTION TWO - Introduction 

2.1 Background 

The Council introduced its first Risk Management Strategy in 2003. Since then steady 
progress has been made in implementing Risk Management throughout the organisation. 
This latest revision of the Strategy aims to look at the future plans for Risk Management in 
RBC and the future work planned to ensure that Risk Management becomes embedded in 
the every day work of the Council. 

2.2 What is Risk Management? 

Risk Management can be defined as: 

‘Risk is the threat that an event or action will adversely affect an organisation’s ability to 
achieve its objectives and to successfully execute its strategies. Risk Management is the 
process by which risks are identified, evaluated and controlled. It is a key element of the 
framework of governance together with community focus, structures and processes, 
standards of conduct and service delivery arrangements’ 

Audit Commission 2001 

2.3 The Benefits of Risk Management 

The benefits of an effective Risk Management programme are numerous, a selection of 
the benefits are listed below: 

 Increased focus on the action(s) that should be taken to meet objectives 
 Improved delivery of services 
 Effective management of change 
 Delivering better Value For Money 
 More efficient use of resources 
 Supporting innovation 
 Reduced complaints 
 Protection of, and improved, reputation 
 Getting things right first time 
 Continual assessment of business opportunities 

The term Risk Management also includes the management of opportunities, as risk should 
not be considered just as a negative. The management of opportunities is as important as 
the management of risk, and we should always look to see if there is a positive outcome to 
any risk. 
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SECTION THREE – Purpose and Objectives 

3.1 	Purpose 

The purpose of this Strategy is to set out Rugby Borough Council’s approach to Risk 
Management, including outlining roles and responsibilities, reporting and communication 
methods and a description of the four stages of the Risk Management process. 

It is a continuous and developing process, which ultimately aims to create a culture of risk 
awareness within the Council whereby staff and Members naturally consider risk issues as 
a part of day-to-day activities. 

The Strategy is designed to be a reference source rather than to provide detailed answers 
to specific questions. It is a foundation for embedding a Risk Management culture across 
the organisation but is not intended to be a manual. 

3.2 	Objectives 

The objectives of the Risk Management Strategy are to: 

3.2.1 	 Develop Risk Management and raise its profile across the Council 
3.2.2 	 Integrate Risk Management into the culture of the Council 
3.2.3 	 Embed Risk Management through the ownership and management of risk as part of 

all business planning and decision making processes 
3.2.4 	 Manage risks in accordance with best practice 
3.2.5 	 Prevent injury, damage and losses and to reduce the cost of risk 
3.2.6 	 Raise awareness of the need for Risk Management by all those connected with the 

Council’s delivery of services 

See Appendix 4, Risk Management Action Plan, for further details. 

These objectives will be achieved by: 

 Establishing clear roles and responsibilities and reporting lines within the Council for 
Risk Management 

 Reinforcing the importance of effective Risk Management as part of the everyday 
work of employees 

 Including Risk Management as an agenda item at meetings as appropriate 
 Providing relevant training on Risk Management to employees and Members 
 Continuing to demonstrate the application of Risk Management principles 
 Developing Risk Management toolkits, procedures and guidelines for use across 

the Council 
 Making all partners, providers and delivery agents aware of the Council’s 

expectations on risk, both generally as set out in its Risk Management policy, and 
where necessary in particular areas of service delivery 

 Maintaining a Risk Management framework that will secure the consideration and 
review on a rolling basis of the Strategic and Operational risks confronted by the 
Council 

 Inclusion of Risk Management in service plans 
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SECTION FOUR – Risk Management Process 

4.1 	Process 

Risk Management is an ongoing process, which involves continual identification, analysis, 
treatment and monitoring of the risks and opportunities faced by the Council. 

4.2 	Risk Identification 

The first step is to identify the ‘significant’ risks that could have an adverse effect or 
prevent business objectives from being met. (Section 4.3 describes what is classed as a 
significant risk). It is important that those involved with the process clearly understand the 
service or organisation’s key business objectives to be able to identify the barriers to their 
achievement. 

The identification of risk should happen in all business areas. 

4.3 	Risk Analysis 

The information gathered is then analysed by completing a Risk Assessment. The 
assessment details the risks to the achievement of a specific business objective, the 
opportunities that can be gained from that risk, the consequences of the risk and any 
existing internal controls.  

The analysis will then consider the likelihood and impact of the risks. An initial score 
against likelihood and impact is made (see Appendix 1, Risk Matrices). 

In order that risks may be prioritised according to their severity, the Council operates a 
traffic light system. Risks are scored within one of the following levels: 

Risk rating: 
8–16 High Risk (Red) Immediate attention 
4–6 Medium Risk (Amber) Moderate risk, mitigation action required 
1–3 Low risk (Green) Regular review 

Amber and red risks are classed as ‘significant’ risks. All risks are to be kept under review 
to ensure that the likelihood of occurrence, or the impact should it happen, does not 
increase. 

4.4 	Risk Treatment/Control 

Once a risk has been identified and analysed, a decision must be made as to how the 
Council will react. There are four options: 

1. 	 Tolerate – Decide to live with the risk and the possibility that it might occur and 
its possible consequences. 

2. 	 Terminate – Eliminate the risk, usually by deciding to change a course of action 
or stop a particular activity. 

3. 	 Transfer – Some of the financial risk may be transferred and it may be possible 
to transfer liability through contractual arrangements. 

4. 	 Treat – Control the risk and take action to reduce the likelihood that an event will 
occur or the impact if it does. 
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The existing controls need to be reviewed before considering further action as these 
controls may no longer be relevant. 

The potential for controlling the risks identified further will be investigated through an 
Action Plan. The implementation of the Action Plan is monitored through RPMS, the 
Council’s performance management system.  

4.5 Risk Monitoring and Reporting 

Effective Risk Management requires an appropriate reporting and review structure to 
ensure that risks and opportunities are effectively identified and assessed and that 
appropriate control measures are in place.  

The process requires regular reviews in order to provide the maximum benefit to the 
Council, including the Strategy, and all the processes and activities outlined within it, to 
ensure their effectiveness. 

A framework of monitoring and reporting has been established to allow regular monitoring 
to take place. 

This requires: 

Cabinet – to receive annual updates on the position of the Council’s Risk Management 
programme; to review the Strategic Risk Register and any amendments made to it and to 
agree the Risk Management Strategy and any changes made. To appraise options 
contained within submitted reports. 

Audit and Ethics Committee – to consider the effectiveness of the Council’s Risk 
Management arrangements. To receive annual reports which provide assurance on the 
effective management of the Council’s ‘Top Level’ risks and to agree the Risk 
Management Strategy and any changes made. 

Senior Management Team – to review the Strategic Risks on a quarterly basis and 
respond to any actions for which they are responsible in the interim. 

Individual Managers – to regularly monitor Risk Registers and Action Plans at team 
meetings – making any adjustments within RPMS or reporting them to the Risk 
Management and Insurance Officer; to implement and monitor outstanding actions and 
monitor the effectiveness of the actions in controlling the risks; to identify new risks / 
opportunities and to annually review the Operational Risk Registers. 

Strategic Risk Management Group – to consider and discuss regular updates received 
from the Risk Management and Insurance Officer on outstanding risk actions and to 
annually review the Risk Management Strategy. 

The risk process itself will be reviewed annually to ensure that it is still appropriate and 
includes learning from other Authorities. Training and research can be applied.  
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SECTION FIVE – Links with Existing Processes 

5.1 Service Planning 

Operational Risk Registers are included within Service Plans. The responsibility for 
managing those risks sits with the Service Managers. The Risk Registers within the plans 
should be monitored on a quarterly basis during service team meetings. 

5.2 Performance Management 

The monitoring of the Risk Management action plans is facilitated through the performance 
management software RPMS. Risk Responsible Officers will monitor and update risk 
assessments and actions plans on a regular basis. 

5.3 Project Management 

Work is currently underway to improve the robustness of Risk Management within 
projects, with project risk registers being used more now than ever before with a register in 
place for each specific project. 

5.4 Partnerships 

The definition adopted by Rugby Borough Council is “that a partnership involves working 
with another organisation to deliver common objectives with a formal agreement of roles 
(through contract, memorandum of understanding, funding agreement, Service Level 
Agreement etc)”. 

Managing risk within the significant partnerships is currently being reviewed. The aim is to 
ensure that Rugby Borough Council and its significant partners hold joint Risk Registers, 
which are effectively managed and monitored. 

5.5 Reporting 

Each report prepared for Cabinet/Panels requires that the report writer consider the risks 
and benefits associated with each option presented within the report.  

5.6 Emergency Planning and Business Continuity 

It is a requirement under the Civil Contingency’s Act that the Council assess the risk of 
emergencies occurring and use this to inform contingency planning; and put in place 
emergency plans and business continuity arrangements.  

Rugby Borough Council chaired the Warwickshire Local Resilience Forum Risk Group 
which updated the Warwickshire Risk Assessment (September 2015) and created the 
public facing ‘Preparing for Emergencies in Warwickshire’ publication (January 2017).  
The Council has a Major Emergency Plan (December 2016), a public facing version of 
which can be found on the extranet. 

The Council has a Business Continuity Strategy (2015) and a Council wide Business 
Continuity Plan (May 2016) as well as service specific business continuity plans for ‘critical 
services’. 
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5.7 Health and Safety 

The Council has demonstrated a commitment to Health and Safety with the development 
of policies and guidance specifically addressing the management of risk. 

It is essential that the established links to the Risk Management process be maintained 
with emphasis on identification, analysis, treatment/control and monitoring of risks. The 
commitment and involvement of all employees will be supported at service level by specific 
training and guidance.  

5.8 Corporate Strategy 

The Strategic Risk Register aims to address all elements of risk in delivering the Council’s 
corporate objectives. These in turn cascade into the Operational Risk Registers. The 
Senior Management Team needs to consider the Risk Management Strategy in line with 
the Corporate Strategy. 

5.9 Corporate Assurance and Improvement 

The Council is implementing Risk Based Internal Auditing (RBIA), which is recognised best 
practice. Actions arising from internal audits will be aligned with the corresponding risk, 
and will be recorded on the RPMS system. The linkages between the results of internal 
audits, relevant risks, and their mitigating actions will therefore be enhanced. The process 
will also facilitate more regular and timely updates of the Operational Risk Registers during 
the course of the year. 
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SECTION SIX – Information and Communication  

6.1 Information 

Risk Management information is available from a number of different sources:  

 Intranet web page 
 Individual managers 
 Risk Champions (see Appendix 3, Contact Information) 
 Corporate Assurance and Improvement Manager (see Appendix 3, Contact 


Information) 

 Risk Management and Insurance Officer (see Appendix 3, Contact Information) 

6.2 Communication 

Risk Management at Rugby Borough Council is an evolving process, therefore regular 
communication with staff and managers is essential to ensure everyone is kept up to date 
and has the opportunity to further their understanding of the Council’s risk programme.  

Risk information updates and general awareness are communicated through a number of 
different sources: 

 Intranet updates 
 Team meetings 
 Workshops and awareness sessions 
 New employee induction day 
 Members Briefings 
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SECTION SEVEN – Risk Management Fund 

The Corporate Assurance Manager is responsible for a small Risk Management fund. 
Service areas can ‘bid’ for full or partial funding for Risk Management initiatives that will 
benefit the Council as a whole.  
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SECTION EIGHT – Roles and Responsibilities 

The following describes the roles and responsibilities that Members and Officers will play 
in embedding and owning Risk Management: 

8.1 Cabinet and other Elected Members 

 To oversee the effective management of risk by Council Officers 
 To annually consider the Strategic Risk Register 
 To take decisions which are informed by an assessment of associated risks 
 To approve overall strategic Risk Management proposals 
 To agree the Risk Management Strategy and any changes to the Strategy 

8.2 Senior Management Team 

 To ensure that the Council manages risk effectively through the development of a 
comprehensive Risk Management Strategy and the analysis and control of strategic 
risks 

 To take decisions which are informed by an assessment of associated risks 
 To provide corporate direction to all Risk Management proposals and to support the 

Strategic Risk Management Group 
 To review the Strategic Risk Register 
 To receive and consider an annual report on the Risk Management Strategy 
 To identify any emerging strategic risks and report them to the Strategic Risk 


Management Group 

 To identify any movements in the likelihood and/or severity of existing Strategic 

risks 
 To be the service liaison for strategic and operational risks 
 To include Risk Management and emerging risks through business planning and 

decision making 

8.3 Strategic Risk Management Group 

 To support the Council and its services in the effective development, 

implementation and review of the Risk Management Strategy 


 To review the Risk Management Strategy on an annual basis 
 To review the Strategic Risk Register and to identify and support any emerging 

Strategic risks 
 To provide training on and to otherwise facilitate the practice of good Risk 


Management for Councillors and Officers
 

8.4 Risk Champions (see appendix 3, Contact Information) 

 To be a member of the Strategic Risk Management Group 
 To support the Senior Management Team and Service Managers in the effective 

management of risk 
 To champion Risk Management within their service 
 To be their service liaison for Strategic and Operational risks 
 To disseminate Risk Management information 
 To facilitate and encourage good Risk Management practices 
 To co-ordinate the Operational Risk Assessment programme for their service 

12 




 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

8.5 Service Managers 

 To manage their service whilst taking in to account all associated risks 
 To consider the positive and negative aspects of risk in all decisions taken 
 To consider and produce/review Operational Risk Registers for their service areas 

during their business planning process and to report these assessments to the Risk 
Management and Insurance Officer 

 To consider and record additional or strengthened controls that are needed to 
protect their service area and to incorporate these in to their service action and 
improvement plans 

 To report these assessments, actions and improvement plans to the Risk 

Management and Insurance Officer 


8.6 Risk Management and Insurance Officer 

 To advise and assist the Strategic Risk Management Group in their functions 
 To facilitate meetings of the Strategic Risk Management Group 
 To provide day-to-day Risk Management advice to Council Officers and Members 
 To assist in the development of the Council’s Risk Management programme in 

association with external advisors and Council Officers 
 To advise and assist the Senior Management Team with the quarterly reviews of 

the Strategic Risk Register 
 To maintain a continuous review of the adequacy of the Risk Management 


programme 

 To advise on progress reports to Cabinet and to Audit and Ethics Committee 
 To advise on annual reports on the Council’s ‘Top Level’ risks to Audit and Ethics 

Committee 
 To advise on an annual report on the Strategic Risk Register to Cabinet 
 To advise on an annual report on the Risk Management Strategy to Cabinet and to 

Audit and Ethics Committee 
 To review systems and procedures for Risk Management and implement improved 

working practices wherever possible 
 To review Strategic and Operational risk registers on a regular basis 
 To maintain a continuous review of the adequacy of the Risk Management 


programme 

 To identify instances of best practice through networking and discussions with 

brokers 

8.7 All Employees 

 To manage risk effectively in their job 
 To report risks to their Service Managers, Risk Champions or the Risk Management 

and Insurance Officer 
 To have an understanding of the risks identified within their service area 
 To assist in the identification and control of risk 
 To complete the options appraisal on all Senior Management Team, Panel and 

Cabinet reports 
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APPENDIX 1 

STRATEGIC RISK MATRIX 

LIKELIHOOD 

Almost certain 

Possible 

Unlikely 

Remote 

= Strong/very strong/inevitable possibility (over 75%) 

= Likely to occur (50% – 75%)  

= Slight chance/could occur (10% – 49%) 

= Almost impossible/only occurring in exceptional    
circumstances (Below 10%) 

Score 4 

Score 3 

Score 2 

Score 1 

IMPACT 

Extreme = 

Major = 

Moderate = 

Minor = 

Financial loss over £1m, significant service disruption,  
     disabling injury/death, adverse national media coverage,  

          severe stakeholder concern 

Financial loss of between £250,000 and £1m, major service  
        disruption, major injury, adverse regional media coverage,      
         significant stakeholder concern 

Financial loss of between £50,000 and £250,000, moderate  
       service disruption, loss time injury, local media coverage,       
      more service user complaints, moderate stakeholder  

concern 

Financial loss up to £50,000, short term inconvenience,  
         minor injury, isolated user service complaints, stakeholder  

concerns 

Score 4 

Score 3 

Score 2 

Score 1 

Im
p

ac
t 

Likelihood 

4 M H H H 

3 L M H H 

2 L M M H 

1 L L L M 

1 2 3 4 

14 




 

  

      

 

 
 

 
 
Score  
Score 

 

 

 

  
                           

  
          

                                                                   
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

               
                
              

 

             
              

 

              
                
            

              
               
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
OPERATIONAL RISK MATRIX 


LIKELIHOOD 

Almost certain 

Possible 

Unlikely 

Remote 

= Strong/very strong/inevitable possibility (over 75%) 

= Likely to occur (50% – 75%)  

= Slight chance/could occur (10% – 49%) 

= Almost impossible/only occurring in exceptional    
circumstances (Below 10%) 

Score 4 

Score 3 

Score 2 

Score 1 

IMPACT 

Extreme = Financial loss over £250,000, total service loss for a 
       significant period, fatality/disabling injury, adverse national     
      media coverage, severe stakeholder concern, mass  

complaints 

Major = Financial loss of between £75,000 and £250,000, major  
         service disruption, major injury, regional media coverage,  
        significant user complaints, significant stakeholder concern 

Moderate = Financial loss of between £10,000 and £75,000, moderate 
        service disruption, loss time injury, local media coverage,  

      more service user complaints, stakeholder concern 

Minor = Financial loss up to £10,000, short term inconvenience,     
        minor injury, isolated user service complaints, minor local  
       media coverage, minor stakeholder concerns 

Score 4 

Score 3 

Score 2 

Score 1 

Im
p

ac
t 

Likelihood 

4 M H H H 

3 L M H H 

2 L M M H 

1 L L L M 

1 2 3 4 
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APPENDIX 2 

STRATEGIC RISK MANAGEMENT GROUP 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 

The role of the Strategic Risk Management Group (SRMG) is crucial to the implementation 
of a successful Risk Management programme. 

The SRMG is a facilitating group and will enable and empower all aspects of a Risk 
Management programme, providing where necessary, links with Insurance, Health and 
Safety, Emergency Planning and Business Continuity. 

The SRMG will be the focal point for co-ordinating the Strategic and Operational Risk 
Registers. 

The terms of reference of the SRMG are: 

 To support the Council and its services in the effective development, 

implementation and review of the Risk Management Strategy 


 To identify and monitor key Risk Management indicators and matrices 
 To produce an annual report reviewing the Risk Management Strategy to the Senior 

Management Team and Cabinet 
 To identify and support the identification of any emerging Strategic risks 
 To review the Strategic Risk Register on a quarterly basis and respond to any 

actions for which they are responsible in the interim 
 To share good Risk Management practice within the Authority 
 To provide training on, and to otherwise facilitate, the practice of good Risk 


Management for Councillors and Service Officers 


MEMBERS 

The Strategic Risk Management Group comprises of the following staff: 

 Senior officer representatives from Growth and Investment, Environment and Public 
Realm, Communities and Homes, Corporate Resources 

 Executive Director 
 Risk Management and Insurance Officer 
 Safety and Resilience Manager  
 The Council’s Risk Management and Insurance consultant representative 
 The Council’s Risk Member Champion (usually the Corporate Resources Portfolio 

Holder) 

The Head of Corporate Resources will act as the Group Chairman. Additional members of 
staff will attend the Group as and when their expertise is needed.  

Each of the representatives is a Risk Champion for their area and will be responsible for 
co-ordinating the Risk Management programme within their own service. This will include: 

 To be a member of the Strategic Risk Management Group 
 To support Service Managers in the effective management of risk 
 To champion Risk Management within their service 
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 To be their service liaison officer for Strategic and Operational risks 
 To disseminate Risk Management information 
 To facilitate and encourage good Risk Management practices 
 To co-ordinate the Operational Risk Register reviews for their service are 
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APPENDIX 3 

CONTACT INFORMATION 

Risk Champions: 

Elected Members    Cllr Carolyn Robbins  Ext: 3401

 carolyn.robbins@rugby.gov.uk 

Communities and Homes Raj Chand Ext: 3870 

raj.chand@rugby.gov.uk 

Environment and Public Realm Sean Lawson Ext: 3850 

      sean.lawson@rugby.gov.uk 

Growth and Investment   Rob Back    Ext: 3720 

rob.back@rugby.gov.uk 

Corporate Resources
Group Chairman 

  Mannie Grewal-Ketley 

      mannie.grewalketley@rugby.gov.uk 

Ext: 3430 

Health and Safety/Business Continuity Theresa Summers   Ext: 3893 

theresa.summers@rugby.gov.uk 

Corporate Assurance and Improvement Chris Green    Ext: 3451 

chris.green@rugby.gov.uk 

Risk Management and Insurance 	 Verity Knighton Ext: 3418 

verity.knighton@rugby.gov.uk 
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APPENDIX 4 

Risk Management Action Plan 2017/2018 

Action Resources 
required 

Lead Officer(s) Target date What we want to 
achieve 

How customers will 
benefit 

1. Conduct a review of 
the Risk Management 
Strategy 

Strategic Risk 
Management 
Group (SRMG) 

SRMG March each year Robust Risk 
Management 
Strategy 

Clarity as to the roles and 
responsibilities for risk 
management 

Clarity as to methods of 
communicating the 
Strategy 

Officers will be equipped 
with a current working 
document in order to 
assess risk scores 

2. Publishing Risk 
Management Strategy 
on the Intranet 

Internet and 
Communications 
Officer 

Risk 
Management and 
Insurance Officer 

Risk 
Management 
and Insurance 
Officer 

June each year Publishing the 
Councils Risk 
Management 
Strategy 

Clarity as to the roles and 
responsibilities for risk 
management across the 
Council 
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Action Resources 
required 

Lead Officer(s) Target date What we want to 
achieve 

How customers will 
benefit 

3. Reporting and 
reviewing structure 
and working practices 
to ensure risks and 
opportunities are 
effectively identified 
and assessed to 
prevent injury and 
reduce costs 

Heads of Service Heads of 
Service 

Complete annual 
review of Strategy 
by March each 
year 

Prevention of injury, 
damage and loss by 
reducing costs from 
acts arising from non 
identification of risks 

Fewer injuries and 
insurance claims 

4. To agree a date for 
awareness training on 
the practice of good 
Risk Management for 
Councillors  

SRMG 

Risk 
Management and 
Insurance Officer 

SRMG March each year To raise awareness of 
the need for Risk 
Management through 
service delivery 

Knowledge of the 
tools available and 
confidence to use 
them to take positive 
action in cases 

Officers will have an 
awareness of Risk 
Management 
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Agenda No 6 

AGENDA MANAGEMENT SHEET  

Report Title: 	 Updated Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards and Self-Assessment 

Name of Committee: 	 Audit and Ethics Committee 

Date: 	 27th June 2017 

Report Director: 	 Head of Corporate Resources and Chief 
Financial Officer 

Portfolio: 	 Corporate Resources 

Ward Relevance: 	 None 

Prior Consultation: 	 Head of Corporate Resources and Chief 
Financial Officer 

Contact Officer: 	 Chris Green - Corporate Assurance and 
Improvement Manager 

Public or Private: 	 Public 

Report subject to Call-In:  	 No 

Report En-Bloc: 	 No 

Forward Plan:  	 No 

Corporate Priorities: 	 Ensuring that the Council works efficiently 
and effectively 

Statutory / Policy Background:	 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
(PSIAS) 

Summary:	 The report describes the changes made to 
the PSIAS with effect from April 2017, details 
the annual self-assessment against the 
PSIAS, and sets out an updated quality 
assurance and improvement plan for the 
internal audit service. 

Financial Implications:  	 There are no financial implications arising 
directly from this report  



 

 

 

 
 

Risk Management Implications: 	 There are no risk management implications 
arising directly from this report  

Environmental Implications: 	 There are no environmental implications 
arising from this report 

Legal Implications: 	 There are no legal implications arising from 
this report 

Equality and Diversity:  	 There are no equalities and diversity 
implications arising from this report 

Options: 	 Not applicable  

Recommendation: 	 1. The amendments to the PSIAS are noted. 
2. The proposed safeguarding arrangements 
are approved. 
3. The annual self-assessment against the 
PSIAS is noted. 
4. The updated quality assurance and 
improvement plan be approved. 

Reasons for Recommendation:  	 To comply with the requirements of the 
terms of reference of the Audit and Ethics 
Committee, and to discharge the 
Committee's responsibilities under the 
Constitution. 
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Agenda No 6 

Audit and Ethics Committee – 27 June 2017 

Updated Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and Self-Assessment  

Report of the Head of Corporate Resources and Chief Finance Officer 

Recommendations 

1. The amendments to the PSIAS are noted. 
2. The proposed safeguarding arrangements are approved. 
3. The annual self-assessment against the PSIAS is noted. 
4. The updated quality assurance and improvement plan be approved. 

1. 	 Introduction and Context 

1.1 	 The PSIAS were updated with effect from April 2017 and this report sets out the key 
changes, and outlines the implications and action taken, or to be taken, to ensure 
that the internal audit service operates in compliance with the Standards. 

1.2 	 The PSIAS also require an annual self-assessment of compliance with the 
Standards be conducted and reported to the Committee. 

1.3 	 The PSIAS also require the Corporate Assurance and Improvement Manager to 
maintain a quality assurance and service improvement plan, and for this to be 
approved and monitored by the Audit and Ethics Committee. 

2. 	 Report Details 

2.1 	 The key changes to the PSIAS, and the implications of the changes, are as follows: 

Area/ Standard Details of Change Implications and Assurances 
1000Purpose, The internal audit charter The internal audit charter will 
Authority and must describe the safeguards require a review and update to 
Responsibility in place to limit impairments 

of independence or objectivity 
if internal audit or the Chief 
Audit Executive (CAE) 
undertakes non-audit 
activities. 

reflect this change. Action included 
in the updated quality assurance 
and improvement plan. See 
Appendix B. 

1112 
CAE Roles 
Beyond Internal 
Auditing 

When asked to undertake 
any additional roles/ 
responsibilities outside of 
internal auditing, the CAE 
must highlight to the 
Committee any potential or 
perceived impairment to 

The role and responsibilities of the 
Corporate Assurance and 
Improvement Manager (CAIM) 
extend beyond internal auditing. 
There would be an actual or 
perceived impairment to 
independence and objectivity were 
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Area/ Standard Details of Change Implications and Assurances 
independence and objectivity 
having regard to the 
principles contained within 
the Code of Ethics as well as 
any relevant requirements set 
out by other professional 
bodies to which the CAE may 
belong. 

The Committee must approve 
and periodically review any 
safeguards put in place to 
limit impairments to 
independence and objectivity. 

the CAIM to undertake internal 
audit reviews of areas for which he 
is operationally responsible for. 
Proposals to address this issue are 
set out below. 

1322 
Disclosure of 
non-conformance 

Where non-conformance with 
the Code of Ethics or the 
Standards impacts the overall 
scope or operation of internal 
audit, this must be highlighted 
by the CAE to be considered 
for inclusion in the Annual 
Governance Statement. 

The CAIM has considered this and 
concluded that no such statement 
is required for 2016/17. No further 
action proposed at this time. 

2050 
Co-ordination and 
Reliance 

Where the CAE places 
reliance on the work of other 
assurance and consulting 
service providers, a 
consistent process for the 
basis of reliance should be 
established, and the CAE 
should consider the 
competency, objectivity, and 
due professional care of such 
providers. 

Reliance is currently placed upon 
IT audit work carried out by TIAA. 
In 2016/17 the company was also 
commissioned to undertake four 
“non IT” audits. TIAA are a well-
established organisation providing 
a range of assurance activities 
across the country. The services 
are provided under a framework 
agreement which is in place until 
April 2018. There is an annual 
meeting of all parties to the 
framework at which the 
competency and due professional 
care of TIAA is considered. In the 
opinion of the CAIM there was no 
evidence to indicate that TIAA 
were not objective in carrying out 
their work during 2016/17. The 
CAIM is, however, seeking 
evidenced confirmation of TIAA’s 
quality assurance arrangements. 
See Appendix B. 

2450 
Overall opinions 

The annual report of the CAE 
must include a statement on 
conformance with the PSIAS 
and the results of the quality 
assurance and improvement 
programme. 

A statement is included within the 
annual report of the CAIM. 
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2.2 	 The CAIM has operational responsibility for the following services in addition to 
internal audit: 

 Risk management, 

 Insurance, 

 Corporate change initiatives, 

 Performance management, and 

 Counter fraud arrangements 


2.3 	 In order to avoid any actual or perceived impairment to independence and 
objectivity the following safeguards are proposed: 

	 The Head of Corporate Resources and Chief Finance Officer will, in consultation 
with the senior management team and the Audit and Ethics Committee, 
determine when internal audit reviews of the areas in section 2.2 will be carried 
out. The CAIM will have no involvement in these decisions. 

	 Any internal audit reviews of the above areas will be undertaken by an external 
organisation to be selected by the Head of Corporate Resources and Chief 
Finance Officer in consultation with the Audit and Ethics Committee. The CAIM 
will have no involvement in this process. 

	 The findings arising from any internal audit reviews of the above areas will be 
reported directly to the Head of Corporate Resources and Chief Finance Officer, 
who will in turn present the results to the Audit and Ethics Committee. 

2.4 	 An annual self-assessment against the PSIAS is required. The self-assessment has 
been completed by the Corporate Assurance and Improvement Manager and the 
results are set out at Appendix A. The previous self-assessment, reported to the 
Committee in February 2016, highlighted 24 actions necessary to improve the level 
of compliance with the Standards. Progress against delivery of those actions was 
reported regularly to the Committee during 2016. Paragraph 2.1 above highlights 2 
actions which are necessary to comply with the updated PSIAS. The self-
assessment identified a further 2 actions designed to improve the quality and 
effectiveness of the internal audit service; these actions cover: 

	 Further improvements to the design of audit assignments, and 
	 Improvements in the evaluation of the resources utilised on each audit 

assignment, with enhanced reporting to the Committee.  

2.5 	 The updated quality assurance and improvement plan arising from this review is set 
out at Appendix B. Actions have been prioritised with target dates set for 
implementation. Delivery of the Plan will be the responsibility of the Corporate 
Assurance and Improvement Manager, monitored by the Head of Corporate 
Resources and Chief Finance Officer, with progress regularly reported to the Audit 
and Ethics Committee. 
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Name of Meeting: Audit and Ethics Committee 

Date of Meeting: 27 June 2017 

Subject Matter: Updated PSIAS and Self-Assessment 

Originating Department: Corporate Assurance and Improvement 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS
 

Document 
No. Date 

Description of 
Document 

Officer’s 
Reference 

File 
Reference 

Appendix A 27/06/2017 Self-assessment against the 
PSIAS 

Appendix B 27/06/2017 Updated Quality Assurance and 
Improvement Plan 
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APPENDIX A ‐ SELF ASSESSMENT AGAINST THE PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS
 

Standard Reference Summary of Standard and 
Requirement 

Yes Partial No Evidence 

1000 – Purpose, 1000 The Internal Audit Charter must: The Charter covers the required areas with the exception of 
Authority &  Define the terms ‘board’ and ‘senior safeguards, which is a new requirement with effect from 
Responsibility management’ 

 Cover arrangements for appropriate 
resourcing 

 Define the role of internal audit in 
any fraud work 

 Describe safeguards to limit 
impairments of independence or 
objectivity if internal audit or the 
Chief Audit Executive undertakes non‐
audit activities 



April 2017. The Charter will therefore be reviewed and 
updated in 2017 to meet the additional requirements of the 
PSIAS. See improvement plan. 

1010 Recognition of the Definition of Internal 
Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the 
Standards in the Internal Audit Charter. 


The Internal Audit Charter reflects the mandatory nature of 
the relevant standards. 

1100 – 1110 Organisational independence. The Chief The Corporate Assurance Manager reports directly to the 
Independence and Audit Executive (CAE) must report Section 151 Officer and the Audit & Ethics Committee, and 
Objectivity functionally to the board (Audit 

Committee), and must have effective 
communication with, and have free and 
unfettered access to, the chief executive 
and chair of the Audit Committee. The 
CAE must confirm, at least annually, the 
organisational independence of the 
internal audit activity. 



has unfettered access to the Executive Director, and Chair of 
the Audit & Ethics Committee. Organisational independence 
is reconfirmed in writing within the written progress update 
provided to each meeting of the Audit & Ethics Committee, 
and in the annual report of the Corporate Assurance and 
Improvement Manager. Any attempts to unduly influence 
the scope of audit reviews or the contents of reports will be 
reported by the Corporate Assurance and Improvement 
Manager to the Executive Director and the Chair of the Audit 
& Ethics Committee. 

1111 Direct interaction with the board. The 
CAE must communicate and interact 
directly with the board. 


The Corporate Assurance and Improvement Manager 
reports directly to the Audit & Ethics Committee. 
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Standard Reference Summary of Standard and 
Requirement 

Yes Partial No Evidence 

1120 Individual objectivity. Internal Auditors 
must have an impartial, unbiased 
attitude and avoid any conflict of 
interest. 

All officers responsible for internal audit work are 
required to complete an annual Register of Interests 
declaration form, which is in turn reviewed by the line 
manager. In the case of the Corporate Assurance and 
Improvement Manager, the annual declaration of 
interests is reviewed by the Head of Corporate Resources 


and Chief Finance Officer. Auditors are required to report 
any interests that might compromise the impartiality of 
their professional judgements – or give rise to a 
perception that this impartiality has been compromised. 
Any conflicts of interest are avoided when allocating 
assignments. 

1130 Impairment to independence or The Audit & Ethics Committee approves any consultancy 
objectivity. Approval must be sought 
from the board for any significant 

activity included in the Audit Plan. The Head of Corporate 
Resources and Chief Finance Officer has been delegated 

additional consulting services not authority to approve any significant additional 
already included in the audit plan, prior  consultancy activity in between Committee meetings, 
to accepting the engagement. with such decisions then being ratified at the following 

meeting of the Committee. 

1200 – Proficiency 
and Professional 
Care 

1210 Proficiency. The CAE must hold a 
professional qualification (CMIIA, CCAB 
or equivalent) and be suitably 
experienced. 



The Corporate Assurance and Improvement Manager is 
CCAB qualified and suitably experienced for the role, 
having spent the last 9 years in a local government 
internal audit environment and having a total of 14 years 
of audit experience. The Auditor has completed an 
Institute of Internal Audit qualification. 
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Standard Reference Summary of Standard and 
Requirement 

Yes Partial No Evidence 

1220 Due professional care. Internal Auditors 
must apply the care and skill expected 
of a reasonably prudent and competent 
internal auditor. Due care does not 
imply infallibility. Due care includes 
consideration of the adequacy and 
effectiveness of governance, risk 
management and control processes, 
and the cost of assurance in relation to 
the potential benefits. 



Audit staff exercise due professional care when 
undertaking assignments. All assurance assignments 
incorporate a risk based evaluation of both the design 
and effectiveness of control processes. Where applicable 
assignments include consideration of the risk of fraud, 
failure to effectively manage performance, and failure to 
demonstrate value for money. Such considerations are 
not, however, consistently set out within the documented 
Terms of Reference for assignments. See improvement 
plan. 

1230 Continuing Professional Development. 
Internal auditors must enhance their 
knowledge, skills and other 
competencies through continuing 
professional development. 



The Corporate Assurance Manager must satisfy 
professional body CPD requirements. A budget is 
available for attendance at developmental training 
seminars and conferences during the year. All members 
of the team must have a personal development plan. 

1300 ‐ Quality 1310 Requirements of the Quality Assurance A Quality Assurance and Improvement Plan was approved 
Assurance and and Improvement Programme. The CAE in February 2016. Progress was monitored throughout the 
Improvement must develop and maintain a quality year and regularly reported to the Committee. An 
Programme assurance and improvement 

programme that covers all aspects of 
internal audit activity. The programme 
must include both internal and external 
assessments. 


updated plan is set out at Appendix B. 

1311 Internal Assessments. Internal 
assessments must include ongoing 
monitoring of the performance of the 
internal audit activity, and periodic self‐
assessments, or assessments by other 
persons within the organisation with 
sufficient knowledge of internal audit 
practices. 



Formal performance monitoring measures have been 
approved by the Committee. Results are reported 
periodically to Senior Management and the Committee. 
The results of the self‐assessment are reported to the 
Head of Corporate Resources and Chief Finance Officer, 
and the Audit & Ethics Committee. 
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Standard Reference Summary of Standard and 
Requirement 

Yes Partial No Evidence 

1312 External Assessments. Must be 
conducted at least once every five years 
by a qualified, independent assessor or 
assessment team from outside the 
organisation. The CAE must discuss the 
arrangements with the Audit 
Committee. 



An external assessment of the service has been 
commissioned and is scheduled to take place during w/c 
18th September 2017. 

1320 Reporting on the Quality Assurance and 
Improvement Programme. The results 
of the quality and assurance 
programme and progress against any 
improvement plans must be reported in 
the annual report. 



Progress on delivery of the programme was regularly 
reported during the last year and is also included in the 
annual report of the Corporate Assurance and 
Improvement Manager. 

1321 Use of the statement ‘Conforms with the 
International 
Standards for the Professional Practice of 
Internal Auditing’ 

The opinion of the Corporate Assurance and 
Improvement Manager is that the results of the quality 
assurance and improvement programme implemented in 
2016 supports a statement that the service substantially 
conforms to the International Standards for the 
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing. 

1322 Disclosure of non‐conformance. 
Instances of non‐conformance must be 
reported to the Audit Committee. 

Where non‐conformance with the Code 
of Ethics or the Standards impacts the 
overall scope or operation of internal 
audit, this must be highlighted by the 
CAE to be considered for inclusion in 
the Annual Governance Statement. 



The Corporate Assurance and Improvement Manager has 
considered this and concluded that no such statement is 
required for 2016/17. No further action proposed at this 
time. 
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Standard Reference Summary of Standard and 
Requirement 

Yes Partial No Evidence 

2000 – Managing 2010 Planning. The CAE must establish risk The annual audit plan is developed based upon a review 
the Internal Audit based plans to determine the priorities of the Council’s risks and objectives, in consultation with 
Activity of the internal audit activity, consistent senior management and the Committee. Audit 

with the organisation’s goals.  assignments themselves are carried out using a Risk 
Based Internal Auditing methodology. 

2020 Communication and Approval. The CAE 
must communicate the annual internal 
audit plan and resource requirements, 

The audit plan, including any significant changes during 
the financial year are communicated to, and approved by, 
the Audit & Ethics Committee. 

including significant interim changes, to 
senior management and the Audit 
Committee for review and approval. 
The CAE must also communicate the 
impact of resource limitations. 

2030 Resource Management. The annual risk 
based internal audit plan must explain 
how internal audit’s resource 
requirements have been assessed. 
Where the CAE believes that the level of 
agreed resources will impact adversely 
on the provision of the annual internal 
audit opinion, the consequences must 
be brought to the attention of the Audit 



Internal Audit resources are reviewed annually once 
ongoing service needs have been agreed with 
management, to ensure that resources are appropriate, 
efficient and effectively employed. Such a review includes 
consideration of the mix of knowledge, skills and other 
competencies required to deliver the range of 
assignments. Details of the review of resources are 
reported to Senior Management and the Committee. 

Committee. 

2040 Policies and Procedures. The CAE must The Audit Charter and Audit Manual have both been fully 
establish policies and procedures to 
guide the internal audit activity. 

reviewed and updated during 2016/17. 
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Standard Reference Summary of Standard and 
Requirement 

Yes Partial No Evidence 

2050 Co‐ordination. The CAE should share 
information and coordinate activities 
with other internal and external 
providers of assurance and consulting 
services to ensure proper coverage and 
minimise duplication of efforts. 



Co‐ordination of activity takes place with external audit 
and where relevant the scope of assignments is adjusted 
to reflect work carried out by external audit. 
Furthermore, assurances received by external audit are 
considered when setting the annual audit plan; full details 
are presented to Senior Management and Committee at 
the same time that the annual audit plan is presented. 
Reliance is currently placed upon IT audit work carried 
out by TIAA. In 2016/17 the company was also 
commissioned to undertake four “non IT” audits. TIAA are 
a well‐established organisation providing a range of 
assurance activities across the country. The services are 
provided under a framework agreement which is in place 
until April 2018. There is an annual meeting of all parties 
to the framework at which the competency and due 
professional care of TIAA is considered. In the opinion of 
the CAIM there was no evidence to indicate that TIAA 
were not objective in carrying out their work during 
2016/17. The CAIM is, however, seeking evidenced 
confirmation of TIAA’s quality assurance arrangements. 
See improvement plan. 

2060 Reporting to Senior Management and 
the Board. The CAE must report 
periodically to senior management and 
the board on the internal audit activity’s 
purpose, authority, responsibility and 
performance relative to its plan. 
Reporting must also include significant 
risk exposures and control issues, 
including fraud risks, governance issues 
and other matters needed or requested 



Progress reports are presented regularly to the Audit & 
Ethics Committee; details of the assurance ratings are 
provided, with a focus on any assignments resulting in a 
Limited or No Assurance opinion. The content of internal 
audit progress reports was reviewed and updated in 
2016, based upon the needs of members and senior 
management. Periodic progress reports are also 
submitted to the Senior Management Team. 
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Standard Reference Summary of Standard and 
Requirement 

Yes Partial No Evidence 

by senior management or the Audit 
Committee. 

2100 – Nature of 
Work 

2110 Governance. The internal audit activity 
must evaluate and contribute to the 
improvement of governance, risk 
management and control processes. 

The Corporate Assurance Manager is actively engaged in 
the development of the Annual Governance Statement. 
The annual audit plan includes assignments related to 
governance, which are used to evaluate and contribute to 

 improvement. The linkages between significant control 
issues identified during audits and the risk management 
system have been improved. 

2120 Risk Management. The internal audit 
activity must evaluate the effectiveness 
and contribute to the improvement of 
risk management processes. 

Strategic and operational risk registers are referred to 
during the annual audit planning exercise. The internal 
audit plan for 2015/16 included a review of corporate risk 
management, the results of which were reported to 
senior management and the Audit & Ethics Committee. A 

 further review of the effectiveness of the Council’s risk 
management processes is scheduled for 2017/18; the 
results will again be reported to the Audit & Ethics 
Committee. 

2130 Control. The internal audit activity must 
assist the organisation in maintaining 
effective controls by evaluating their 
effectiveness and efficiency and by 
promoting continuous improvement. 



Audit reports provide a clear statement of the level of 
compliance with the controls reviewed during the course 
of the assignment. Audits also evaluate the effectiveness 
and efficiency of controls. 
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Standard Reference Summary of Standard and 
Requirement 

Yes Partial No Evidence 

2200 – 2201 Planning Considerations. In planning An audit brief is issued in advance of all assignments 
Engagement the engagement, internal auditors must following a full discussion with the relevant officers and 
Planning consider the objectives of the area 

being reviewed, the governance of the 
area being reviewed, the significant 
risks and the means by which the 
potential impact of risk is kept to an 
acceptable level, and the opportunities 
for making significant improvements. 



approval is required before assignments commence. 
Audit briefs include the objectives of the area being 
reviewed. Risks to achievement of objectives are 
considered. 

2210 Engagement Objectives. Objectives 
must be established for each 
engagement. A preliminary assessment 
of the risks relevant to the activity must 
be completed, and the assignment 
objectives must reflect the results of this 
assessment. The probability of 
significant error, fraud or non‐
compliance must be considered. It is 
expected that reviews will incorporate 
consideration of value for money. 



Assignments are risk based and the risks are documented 
in the Terms of Reference. Assignment objectives reflect 
the risks identified. The preliminary risk scores are not, 
however, presently documented on the Terms of 
Reference. Where applicable assignments include 
consideration of the risk of fraud, failure to effectively 
manage performance, and failure to demonstrate value 
for money. Such considerations are not, however, 
consistently set out within the documented Terms of 
Reference for assignments. See improvement plan. 

2220 Engagement Scope. The established 
scope must be sufficient to satisfy the 
objectives of the engagement. 

Assignment scopes are set out in agreed Terms of 
References (TOR). The TOR also includes statements of 
limitations. All assignments are designed following a full 
consultation with the relevant officers in advance. 

2230 Engagement Resource Allocation. 
Internal auditors must determine 
appropriate and sufficient resources to 
achieve engagement objectives based 
on an evaluation of the nature and 
complexity of each engagement, time 
constraints and available resources. 



Audit TORs state the number of days allocated to each 
assignment; this is aligned with a consideration of 
assignment scope, nature and complexity. There is scope 
to improve the evaluation of the resources utilised on 
each audit assignment through a formal debrief, and to 
provide more detailed reporting to the Committee on the 
resources utilised. See improvement plan. 
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Standard Reference Summary of Standard and 
Requirement 

Yes Partial No Evidence 

2300 – Performing 
the Engagement 

2310 Identifying Information. Internal 
auditors must identify sufficient, 
reliable, relevant and useful information 



Audit files contain sufficient appropriate information to 
demonstrate the work carried out and the conclusions 
reached. 

to achieve the engagement’s objectives. 
2320 Analysis and Evaluation. Internal 

auditors must base conclusions and 
engagement results on appropriate 

File reviews conducted by the Corporate Assurance 
Manager confirm the quality of evidence and basis for the 
conclusions reached. Clearance discussions are held with 

analyses and evaluations.  clients to discuss findings and the basis for conclusions, to 
provide the opportunity to confirm the accuracy of 
findings, and to avoid surprises when draft reports are 
issued. 

2330 Documenting Information. Internal Retention of evidence to support conclusions and 
auditors must document relevant engagement results is saved in dedicated network folders, 
information to support the conclusions 
and engagement results. 

where access is limited to officers deployed within the 
Corporate Assurance and Improvement team. 

2340 Engagement Supervision. Engagements 
must be properly supervised to ensure 
objectives are achieved, quality is 
assured and staff are developed. 

Supervision discussions are regularly held to discuss the 
progress being made with each assignment, issues 
encountered, workload and immediate priorities. Audit 
reports, including all supporting working papers, are 

 reviewed by the Corporate Assurance and Improvement 
Manager prior to issue. Evidence of the review is retained 
on the relevant audit file. Any audit work conducted by 
the Corporate Assurance and Improvement Manager is 
reviewed by another member of the team. 

2400 – 2410 Criteria for Communicating. Internal A report is issued following completion of each 
Communicating auditors must communicate the results assignment, which contains details of the area reviewed, 
Results of engagements, and communications  the conclusions, assurance ratings, recommendations and 

must include the engagement’s agreed actions. 
objectives and scope as well as the 
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Standard Reference Summary of Standard and 
Requirement 

Yes Partial No Evidence 

applicable conclusions, 
recommendations and action plans. 

2420 Quality of Communications. 
Communications must be accurate, 
objective, clear, concise, constructive, 
complete and timely. 



Reports are reviewed by the Corporate Assurance and 
Improvement Manager prior to issue. Reports are 
detailed; they include details of all significant and 
relevant information and observations to support the 
recommendations and conclusions. 

2421 Errors and Omissions. If a final 
communication contains a significant 
error or omission, the CAE must 
communicate corrected information to 
all parties who received the original 
communication. 



The Corporate Assurance and Improvement Manager is 
not aware of any recent incidents of any significant errors 
or omissions in reports. Any such incidents would be 
suitably escalated for resolution. 

2430 Use of ‘Conducted in Conformance with 
the International Standards for the 
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing’. 
Internal auditors may report that their 
engagements are “conducted in 
conformance with the International 
Standards for the Professional Practice of 
Internal Auditing”, only if the results of 
the quality assurance and improvement 
programme support the statement. 



The opinion of the Corporate Assurance and 
Improvement Manager is that the results of the quality 
assurance and improvement programme implemented in 
2016 support a statement that the service substantially 
conforms with the International Standards for the 
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing. 

2431 Engagement Disclosure of Non‐
Conformance. Where non‐conformance 
is identified, the areas of non‐
conformance, the reasons, and the 
impacts must be disclosed. 

The Annual Report of the CAE includes details of the areas 
in which full conformance with the standards was not 
achieved during 2016/17, a summary of the reasons for 
the non‐conformance and the steps being taken to ensure 
future compliance, and the impact of the non‐
conformance on the communicated results of 
assignments. 
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Standard Reference Summary of Standard and 
Requirement 

Yes Partial No Evidence 

2440 Disseminating Results. The CAE must 
communicate the results of 
engagements to the appropriate 
parties. 

The circulation of reports is reviewed and agreed prior to 
any reports being issued. Ongoing arrangements for 
reporting the results of assignments to members were 
agreed by the Audit & Ethics Committee in 2016. 

2450 Overall Opinions. The CAE must deliver 
an annual internal audit opinion and 
report that can be used by the 
organisation to inform its governance 
statement. The annual opinion must 
conclude on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the framework of 
governance, risk management and 
control. The annual report of the CAE 
must include a statement on 
conformance with the PSIAS and the 
results of the quality assurance and 
improvement programme. 



An annual internal audit opinion is issued which 
incorporates these requirements. 

2500 Monitoring Progress 



A summary of implemented and outstanding internal 
audit recommendations is included within progress 
reports provided to senior management and the Audit & 
Ethics Committee. The Corporate Assurance and 
Improvement Manager reviewed the content and level of 
detail contained within progress reports in 2016 and 
consulted with members, to ensure that the needs of 
stakeholders are met. 
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Standard Reference Summary of Standard and 
Requirement 

Yes Partial No Evidence 

2600 Communicating the Acceptance of Risks 



Where an identified risk is accepted by management this 
would be reflected in the audit report. Where the risk is 
subsequently accepted because the agreed action is no 
longer feasible this would be discussed with senior 
management and details and context would be reported 
to the Committee. 

Issues identified during audits are subject to a risk 
assessment and, in line with the Risk Management 
Strategy, a score below 3 does not automatically require 
action to be taken by management – the response may 
be to monitor and review. If the Corporate Assurance and 
Improvement Manager had concerns about the level of 
risk accepted by management this would be reported to 
the Committee. 
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APPENDIX B - INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE QUALITY ASSURANCE AND IMPROVEMENT PLAN 


Action 
Number 

PSIAS 
Ref. 
Number 

Summary of Issue Proposed Action Target 
Delivery 
Date 

Priority Evidence of 
Delivery 

1 1000 The internal audit charter must 
describe the safeguards in place to 
limit impairments of independence or 
objectivity if internal audit or the Chief 
Audit Executive (CAE) undertakes 
non-audit activities. 

Review and update the internal audit 
charter to reflect the additional 
requirements of the PSIAS. 

Submit the updated charter for approval 
by the Audit & Ethics Committee. 

30/11/2017 LOW To be evidenced 
by Committee 
report and minutes. 

2 2050 Reliance is currently placed upon IT 
audit work carried out by TIAA. In 
2016/17 the company was also 
commissioned to undertake four “non 
IT” audits. TIAA are a well-established 
organisation providing a range of 
assurance activities across the 
country. The services are provided 
under a framework agreement which 
is in place until April 2018. There is an 
annual meeting of all parties to the 
framework at which the competency 
and due professional care of TIAA is 
considered. In the opinion of the 
Corporate Assurance and 
Improvement Manager (CAIM) there 
was no evidence to indicate that TIAA 
were not objective in carrying out their 
work during 2016/17. The CAIM is, 
however, seeking evidenced 
confirmation of TIAA’s quality 
assurance arrangements. 

Obtain confirmation of the TIAA quality 
assurance arrangements. 

Review the arrangements and conclude 
on whether reliance can be placed on 
those arrangements. 

31/08/2017 HIGH Review of 
documents 
submitted by TIAA. 



 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Action 
Number 

PSIAS 
Ref. 
Number 

Summary of Issue Proposed Action Target 
Delivery 
Date 

Priority Evidence of 
Delivery 

3 1220 and 
2210 

Audit staff exercise due professional 
care when undertaking assignments. 
All assurance assignments 
incorporate a risk based evaluation of 
both the design and effectiveness of 
control processes. Where applicable 
assignments include consideration of 
the risk of fraud, failure to effectively 
manage performance, and failure to 
demonstrate value for money. Such 
considerations are not, however, 
consistently set out within the 
documented Terms of Reference 
(TOR) for assignments. 

Update the Terms of Reference 
template to include: 
 Specific reference to the 

consideration of fraud, performance 
management, efficiency and value 
for money risks – documenting 
specifically the assurance work that 
will be carried out in these areas for 
each audit assignment. 

 An assessment of the likelihood and 
impact of each risk occurring, for 
those risks identified during the 
planning for each audit assignment. 

31/08/2017 HIGH Updated Terms of 
Reference 
document. 

Feedback from 
stakeholders on 
the effectiveness of 
the improvements. 

Assignments are risk based and the 
risks are documented in the TOR. 
Assignment objectives reflect the risks 
identified. The preliminary risk scores 
are not, however, presently 
documented on the TOR. 

4 2230 Audit TORs state the number of days 
allocated to each assignment; this is 
aligned with a consideration of 
assignment scope, nature and 
complexity. There is scope to improve 
the evaluation of the resources 
utilised on each audit assignment 
through a formal debrief, and to 
provide more detailed reporting to the 
Committee on the resources utilised. 

Complete a formal debrief for each 
audit assignment, evaluating the 
effectiveness and efficiency of the 
resources used. 

Expand the internal audit progress 
report to Committee, to include 
information on time spent on 
assignments. 

30/09/2017 MEDIUM Completed debrief 
forms. 

Updated 
development plans 
where appropriate. 
Reporting to and 
feedback from 
Audit & Ethics 
Committee. 



  
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

Agenda No 7 

AGENDA MANAGEMENT SHEET  

Report Title: 	 Annual Report of the Corporate Assurance and 
Improvement Manager 

Name of Committee: 	 Audit and Ethics Committee 

Date: 	 27th June 2017 

Report Director: 	 Head of Corporate Resources and Chief Financial 
Officer 

Portfolio: 	 Corporate Resources 

Ward Relevance: 	 None 

Prior Consultation: 	 Head of Corporate Resources and Chief Financial 
Officer 

Contact Officer: 	 Chris Green - Corporate Assurance and 
Improvement Manager 

Public or Private: 	 Public 

Report subject to Call-In:  	 No 

Report En-Bloc: 	 No 

Forward Plan:  	 No 

Corporate Priorities: 	 Ensure that the Council works efficiently and 
effectively 

Statutory / Policy Background:	 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS)  

Summary:	 The report sets out the Corporate Assurance and 
Improvement Manager’s annual opinion of the overall 
adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal 
control environment, with an appended summary of 
the audit work undertaken to formulate the opinion. 

Financial Implications:  	 There are no financial implications arising directly 
from this report  

Risk Management Implications: 	 There are no direct risks arising from this report. The 
Annual Report of the Corporate Assurance and 
Improvement Manager forms part of the evidence 
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that supports the Council’s Annual Governance 
Statement and provides assurance over the 
adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal 
controls to manage its key risks and inform risk 
management arrangements. 

Environmental Implications: 	 There are no environmental implications arising from 
this report 

Legal Implications: 	 There are no legal implications arising from this 
report. Internal Audit is a statutory function as 
detailed in the Audit and Accounts Regulations 2015 
(England), and Section 151 of the Local Government 
Act 1972. 

Equality and Diversity:  	 There are no equalities and diversity implications 
arising from this report 

Options: 	 Not applicable  

Recommendation: 
The report be considered and noted. 

Reasons for Recommendation:  	 To comply with the requirements of the terms of 
reference of the Audit and Ethics Committee, and to 
discharge the Committee’s responsibilities under the 
Constitution. 
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Agenda No 7 

Audit and Ethics Committee – 27 June 2017 

Annual Report of the Corporate Assurance and Improvement Manager 

Report of the Head of Corporate Resources and Chief Finance Officer 

Recommendation 

The report be considered and noted. 

1. 	 Introduction 

1.1 	 The Accounts and Audit Regulations and the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
(the Standards) require the Corporate Assurance and Improvement Manager 
(CAIM) to provide an annual Internal Audit opinion and report that can be used by 
the organisation to inform its Annual Governance Statement. The Standards also 
specify that the report must contain: 

 an internal audit opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Council’s governance, risk and control framework (i.e. the control environment); 

 a summary of the audit work from which the opinion is derived and any work by 
other assurance providers upon which reliance is placed; and 

 a statement on the extent of conformance with the Standards including progress 
against the improvement plan resulting from any external assessments. 

2. 	 Report Details 

Opinion on the Overall Adequacy and Effectiveness of the Council’s Control 
Environment 

2.1 	 It is the responsibility of the CAIM to provide the annual Internal Audit opinion and to 
detail the basis for this opinion. Based upon the work undertaken by Internal Audit 
during 2016/17, the CAIM’s overall opinion is that Substantial Assurance can be 
given that there is generally a sound system of internal control, designed to meet 
the organisation’s objectives and that controls are generally operating effectively in 
practice. Whilst some elements of the control environment require attention, agreed 
actions have been put in place to address those issues and responsible managers 
have agreed reasonable timetables for their implementation. The progress made by 
management in implementing the agreed actions has been strong.  

2.2 	 All except two out of 14 internal audit assignments completed in 2016/17 resulted in 
an opinion of Substantial Assurance. 

2.3 	Appendix A to this report provides a copy of the Internal Audit Annual Report which 
includes the CAIM’s opinion on the control framework for 2016/17 and the basis for 
this opinion. 
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Effectiveness of Internal Audit 

2.4 	 The Annual Report also includes an overview of the performance of the Internal 
Audit service against its key performance measures and ways in which it has added 
value to the Council during 2016/17. The annual audit plan for 2016/17 has been 
fully delivered. 

Compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

2.5 	 The CAIM has undertaken a self-assessment on conformance to the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards. The self-assessment was completed on June 3rd 2017. 
The results have been reported separately to this Committee and the Quality 
Assurance and Improvement Plan has been updated as a result. Significant 
progress has been made during the last year. The previous self-assessment 
highlighted 24 areas of partial or non-compliance with the Standards and the 
updated self-assessment highlights four areas of partial compliance, two of which 
are as a result of changes to the Standards introduced in April 2017. The CAIM is 
therefore of the opinion that the Internal Audit service is now operating in general 
conformance to the Standards. An external quality assessment of the Internal Audit 
service is scheduled to take place in September 2017; following this the Quality 
Assurance and Improvement Plan will again be updated. 

Statement of Organisational Independence and Objectivity 

2.6 	 If independence or objectivity is impaired in fact or appearance, the CAIM is 
required to disclose this. In the opinion of the CAIM the independence and 
objectivity of the Internal Audit service is currently demonstrated in a number of 
ways: 

	 The CAIM reports directly to the Section 151 Officer and the Audit and Ethics 
Committee, and has unfettered access to the Executive Director, and Chair of 
the Audit and Ethics Committee. 

	 Any attempts to unduly influence the scope of audit reviews or the contents of 
reports will be reported by the CAIM to the Executive Director and the Chair of 
the Audit and Ethics Committee. 

	 All officers responsible for internal audit work are required to complete an annual 
Register of Interests declaration form, which is in turn reviewed by their line 
manager. In the case of the CAIM, the annual declaration of interests is 
reviewed by the Head of Corporate Resources and Chief Finance Officer. 
Auditors are required to report any interests that might compromise the 
impartiality of their professional judgements – or give rise to a perception that 
this impartiality has been compromised. Any conflicts of interest are avoided 
when allocating assignments. 

	 The Audit and Ethics Committee approves any consultancy activity included in 
the Audit Plan. 

2.7 	 As reported separately to the Committee, the role and responsibilities of the CAIM 
extend beyond internal auditing. There would be an actual or perceived impairment 
to independence and objectivity were the CAIM to undertake internal audit reviews 
of areas for which he is operationally responsible for. Specific safeguards have 
been established in order to avoid any actual or perceived impairment to 
independence and objectivity; these safeguards have been reported to and 
considered separately by the Committee. 
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Name of Meeting: Audit and Ethics Committee 

Date of Meeting: 27 June 2017 

Subject Matter: Annual Report of the Corporate Assurance and 
Improvement Manager 

Originating Department: Corporate Assurance and Improvement 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Document 
No. Date 

Description of 
Document 

Officer’s 
Reference 

File 
Reference 

Appendix A 27/06/2017 Annual Report of the Corporate 
Assurance and Improvement 
Manager 
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Appendixx A 

ANNNUAAL REPORTT OF INTERNAAL AUDIT 


20016-117 


Date:: 27 Junee 2017 
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Annnual Report oof Internnal Audiit 2016//17 

1.	 BACKGROOUND 

1.1	 The Public Sector Inteernal Auditt Standardss (the Standdards) requuire the Coorporate 
Assurance Manager too provide aan annual Innternal Audit opinion aand report tthat can 
be used byy the organi sation to infform its govvernance staatement. 

1.2	 The Standaards specify that the annnual reportt must contaain: 
 An Inteernal Audit opinion onn the overrall adequaacy and efffectivenesss of the 

Counci l’s governa nce, risk an d control fraamework (i.e. the conttrol environmment); 
 A summmary of the audit work k from whichh the opinioon is derivedd and any work by 

other assurance prroviders upoon which reeliance is plaaced; and 
	 A state ment of thee extent of conformannce with thee Standardss including progress 

againstt the improvvement plann arising fro m any exte rnal assessmments. 

2.	 INTERNAL AUDIT OPPINION 20016/17 

2.1	 Based upon the workk undertakeen by Internnal Audit duuring the yeear, the Coorporate 
Assurance and Improvvement Maanager’s ovverall opinioon on the CCouncil’s syystem of 
internal conntrol is that: 

Substantial Assurance can be givven that theere is generally a soundd system off internal 
control, deesigned to meet thee organisat ion’s objecctives and that conttrols are 
generally ooperating efffectively in practice. 

Of the 14 ggraded ass ignments u undertaken for 2016/177, 12 resulteed in an oppinion of 
Substantial Assurance with 2 assiggnments recceiving only Limited Ass surance. 

The progresss made byy managemment in impplementing tthe actionss arising fromm audits 
has been sstrong. 88%% of agreedd actions arising from audits weree impleme nted on 
time. In relaation to the 6 agreed aactions whicch were oveerdue at thee time of reeporting, 
appropriatee managemment actionn is in progreess in all casses. 

No systems of controls can providde absolute assurance against maaterial misstaatement 
or loss, nor ccan Internaal Audit givee that assuraance. 

2.2	 The basis for this opinnion is derivved from aan assessmeent of the rrange of inndividual 
opinions arrising from assignmentts within th e agreed iinternal auddit plan th at have 
been undeertaken throoughout th e year. Thi s assessme nt has takeen accoun t of the 
relative m ateriality oof these arreas and managemeent’s progrress in respect of 
addressing any controol weaknessses. The inteernal audit of Corporaate Health && Safety 
resulted inn only Limmited Assuraance and highlighteed a nummber of arreas for 
improvemeent. In forming the annual opinion the Corporatee Assurancce and 
Improvemeent Manageer considerred managgement’s reesponse to this audit aand the 
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progress being madee to addreess the issuues identifieed, and cooncluded tthat the 
managemeent responsse and proggress was saatisfactory. AA summary of Audit oppinions is 
shown in Taable 1 beloww: 

TTable 1 – Suummary of AAudit Opinioons 2016/177 

Assuraance Area High Suubstantial Limited No 

Financial 00 2 0 00 

IT 00 4 0 00 

Counter Frraud 00 1 0 00 

Governannce 00 3 0 00 

Strategic & 
Risks 

& Operatio nal 00 2 2 00 

Total 00 12 2 00 

Summary 00% 86% 14% 0%% 

3.	 REVIEW OOF AUDIT CCOVERAGE 

3.1	 The Audito r’s Opinion for each aassignment is based o n the fieldwwork carriedd out to 
evaluate thhe design oof the cont rols upon wwhich manaagement reely and to eestablish 
the extent to which coontrols are bbeing compplied with. TThe table beelow expla ins what 
the opinionns mean: 

TTable 2 – Asssurance Caategories 

Assurance 
Level 

e Desiggn of Controol Framewo rk Operationn of Controlss 

HIGH There 
cont 
corp 
deliv 

e is a ro 
rols makin 
orate/ servi 
ered. 

obust fram 
ng it lik 
ice objectiv 

ework of 
kely that 
ves will be 

Controls 
continuou 
consistent 
infrequent 

are op 
usly 
tly, with 
t minor laps 

perated 
and 
only 

es. 
SUBSTANTTIAL The 

gene 
prom 
servic 

control f 
erally sound 

mote the de 
ce objective 

framework 
d key con 
elivery of c 
es. 

includes 
ntrols that 
corporate/ 

Controls 
although 
or incon 
identified. 

are a 
some lapse 
nsistencies 

applied, 
es and/ 

were 

LIMITEDD There 
with 
corp 
be a 

e is an abse 
an inc 

orate/ servi 
chieved. 

ence of key 
creased r 
ice objectiv 

y controls, 
risk that 
ves will not 

There hav 
and exte 
in the o 
controls. 

ve been sig 
nsive brea 

operation 

nificant 
kdowns 
of key 

NO There 
result 
corp 

e is an abse 
ting in in 
orate/ servi 

ence of bas 
nability to 
ice objectiv 

ic controls 
o deliver 
ves. 

The fund 
are not b 
complied 

damental c 
being opera 

with. 

controls 
ated or 
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3.2 The Audito r’s Opinion of the leveel of risk expposure is baased on ann assessmennt of the 
level of thee likelihood of corporaate/ servicee objectives  not being achieved, and an 
assessmentt of the imppact of anyy failure to achieve obbjectives. Thhe assessmeents are 
conductedd in line withh the Counncil’s Strateggic and Opperational RRisk Matrix. In order 
that risks m ay be priorritised accoording to theeir severity, the Counc cil operates a traffic 
light systemm.  Risks are sscored withhin one of thhe followingg levels: 

Risk Ratting Risk Score Prioritisation of f Action 
HIGHH 8 ‐ 16 Immeediate Attenntion 

MEDIUUM 4 ‐ 6 Modeerate Risk, MMitigation AAction Requuired 
LOWW 1 ‐ 3 Regular Review 

3.3	 Audit repo rts issued foor 2016/17,  other thann those relaating to coonsultancy support,  
resulted in tthe provisioon of one off the abovee audit opinnions on thee level of asssurance 
and the levvel of risk exposure. 

3.4	 SSummary o f Audit Workk 

Table 3 dettails the assuurance leveels resulting from all auddits undertaaken in 20166/17 and 
the assessmment of the levels of riskk exposure: 

TTable 3 – Deetails of Auddit Opinionss Issued in 22016/17 

Audit Areaa As 
O 
ssurance 
Opinion 

Risk Exp 
Opin 

posure 
ion 

Financial SSystem Key Controls Substantial Medium 
Fees and CCharges Substantial Medium 
Infrastructuure Resiliencce Substantial Medium 
Systems Addministratioon Substantial Medium 
ICT Helpdeesk Substantial Loww 
Payment CCard Industry Data Seccurity Stand ards Substantial Medium 
Fraud Risk Review Substantial Medium 
Procuremeent and Coontract Mannagement Substantial Medium 
Business CContinuity annd Emergenncy Planningg Substantial Medium 
Annual Goovernance Statement Substantial Not App licable 
Discretionaary & Consuultant Expennditure Substantial Medium 
Corporatee Health andd Safety LLimited High 
Business Immprovement District LLimited Medium 
Stocks andd Stationeryy Substantial Loww 

3.5 	 Outlined att pages 9 tto 19 is a s hort summaary of the ffindings of eeach of th e audits 
completedd. It should be noted that many of these f indings havve previoussly been 
reported aas part of thhe defined cycle of pprogress uppdate reporrts providedd to the 
Audit & Eth ics Committtee. 
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3.6 Implementaation of Inteernal Audit RRecommenndations 

Internal Auudit follows up on prrogress agaainst all reecommendaations arisinng from 
completedd assignmennts to ensurre they havve been apppropriately y implemen ted in a 
timely mannner. Updattes are proovided to thhe Audit & Ethics Commmittee duuring the 
course of the year. Details oof the commbined implementatioon rate foor audit 
recommenndations maade during 22015/16 andd 2016/17 a re providedd in Table 4 below: 

Table 4 – Implementation of AAudit Recommmendationns 

Audit No. of 
Recs 

Impleme 
on Time 

ented Imp 
Late 

plemented 
e 

Not yet 
due 

Overdue Rejected 

Stocks a 
Visitors C 

and Stores – 
Centre 

– 1 1 0 0 0 0 

Enterpris 
Manage 

se Risk 
ement 

3 3 0 0 0 0 

Benefits 7 7 0 0 0 0 
Payroll && Elections 4 4 0 0 0 0 
Income 
Manageement 

1 1 0 0 0 0 

Stocks && Stationeryy 3 3 0 0 0 0 
ICT Serv vice Desk 4 0 0 4 0 0 
Corpora 
Safety 

ate Health && 15 9 0 1 5* 0 

Benn Ha 
Investiga 

all 
ation 

8 6 0 2 0 0 

Procure 
Contrac 
Manage 

ment and 
ct 
ement 

8 0 0 8 0 0 

ICT Syste 
Adminis 

ems 
stration 

7 6 0 0 1* 0 

Financia 
Controls 

al System Ke 
s 

ey 11 0 0 11 0 0 

Fees and Charges 8 2 0 6 0 0 
Infrastru 
Resilienc 

cture 
ce 

5 0 0 5 0 0 

Paymen 
Industry 
Security 

nt Card 
Data 

y Standards 

7 1 0 6 0 0 

Business 
Emerge 

s Continuity 
ncy Plannin 

& 
ng 

8 0 0 8 0 0 

Due for Completionn 49 43 (88%%) 0 - 6 (12%)* 0 
Totals 100 43 (43%%) 0 51(51%) 6 (6%) 0 

*Of the overdue reecommend ations, 5 re late to the Health & Saafety audit and the deelays are 
due to a senior maanagementt review of the resourcces requiredd in the teamm. The outsstanding 
actions primarily reelate to resoourcing, ageency workeer induction , provision oof refresher training, 
and coompliance checking of risk asseessments. TThe overduue action on the IT Systems 
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Adminisstration auddit relates to documeenting the external server moniitoring proccedures. 
Management requuested a chhange to th e implemenntation dat e because there is a reeview to 
determ ine who w ill provide tthe service  going forwward. Progrress on thesse actions is being 
activelyy monitoredd. 

4.	 HOW HASS INTERNAL AUDIT AADDED VALLUE? 

4.1	 It is importtant that Innternal Auddit demonsttrates its vaalue to thee organisat ion. The 
service pro vides assuraance to maanagement  and membbers via its pprogrammee of work
and also offfers supporrt, advice aand insight tto assist the  Council in new areas  of work 
or to proacctively revieww and impr rove the co ntrol framewwork. 

4.2	 Beyond deelivery of thhe core assurance asssignments, tthe service added vaalue in a 
number of additional aareas duringg 2016/17, aas set out in  Table 5: 

Table 5 – Innternal Audi t Contributioon 

Area of Acctivity Benefit to the Couuncil 
Support to 
activity in 
 Suppo 

Anti-Fr 
Strateg 

 Suppo 
Fraud 

 Suppo 
Confid 

 Comp 
 Review 

across 
 Provisio 

Corpo 

owards the C 
the followin 

ort towards i 
aud, Bribery 
gy; 

ort towards i 
Response a 

ort to the rev 
dential Repo 
pletion of 4 c 
w and asses
 the Counc 
on of aware 

orate Manag 

Council’s C 
ng areas: 
mplementa 
y and Corru 

mplementa 
and Action P 
view and up 
orting Code 
corporate in 
ssment of fra 
cil; and 
eness trainin 
gement For 

Counter frau 

ation of new 
uption 

ation of new 
Plans; 
pdate of the 
e; 
nvestigation 
aud risks 

ng at the 
rum. 

d 

w 

w 

e 

ns; 

Greate 
clarity 
and c 
appro 
fraud, 
Greate 
and a 
addre 
contro 
reduce 
exposu 

er strategic 
, leading to 
oherent org 
ach to tack 
bribery and 

er awarene 
targeted a 
ss any signif 

ols, which sh 
e the Coun 
ure. 

and proce 
o a more co 
ganisationa 
kling the risk 
d corruption 
ess amongst 
action plan 
ficant gaps 

hould in turn 
ncil’s level of 

edural 
onsistent 
l 

ks of 
n. 
t staff 
to
 in 

n 
f risk 

Provision o 
Audit & Eth 

of annual tra 
hics Comm 

aining to me 
ittee. 

embers of t he The Au 
more e 
assura 

udit & Ethics 
effective in 
nce provide 

s Committe 
its role as a 
er. 

e is 
an 

Change m 
the followi 
 Electro 
 Docum 
 Gifts a 
 System 

workin 
 Agenc 

arrang 
 System 

green 

manageme 
ing areas: 
onic mileag 
ment retenti 
nd hospital 

ms administr 
g; 

cy staff com 
gements; an 
m for introdu 

waste servi 

nt consultan 

e claim pro 
ion periods; 
ity procedu 
ation – pap 

mmissioning 
nd 
uction of ch 
ce. 

ncy support 

ocessing; 
; 

ures; 
perless 

arging for t 

t in 

he 

Review 
chang 
implem 
poorly 
implem 
time fo 
insight 
wrong 

wing the de 
ges in contro 
mentation re 
y designed c 
mented. The 
or an audit s
 is before a 

g. 

esign of sign 
ols prior to t 
educes the 
controls bei 
e most valu 
service to p 

anything goe 

ificant 
heir 

e risk of 
ng 
able 

provide 
es 
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Area of Acctivity Benefit to the Couuncil 
Equalities aand Diversitty consultattive review. Confir 

Assess 
genera 
Suppo 
being 
under 

med that Eq 
ments were 
ally good st 

orted the Co 
reaccredite 
the framew 

quality Impa 
e completed 
tandard. 
ouncil towa 
ed as ‘Exce 

work for equ 

act 
d to a 

ards 
ellent’ 
ualities. 

Integrated 
review. 

d Housing Reepairs cons ultative Provid 
challe 
followi 
 Pe 
 Op 

wit 
rep 

 De 

ed insight, i 
nge and ad 
ing areas: 
rformance 

perational is 
th utilisation 
pairs system 
esign of key 

independen 
dvice in the 

manageme 
ssues associ 
n of the inte 

m; 
controls. 

nt 
e 

ent; 
iated 
grated 

Housing Reepairs stockk control coonsultative Provid ed insight, iindependennt 
review. challe 

design 
contro 

nge and ad 
n of approp 
ols. 

dvice on th 
priate stock 

e 

5.	 HOW WELLL IS INTERNAL AUDIT PERFORMMING? 

5.1	 Internal Auudit maintaains a number of agrreed perfo rmance meeasures to enable 
ongoing mmonitoring bby Senior MManagemeent and thee Audit & Ethics Commmittee. 
Outturns aggainst thesee indicatorss for the yeear ended 331st March 22017 are seet out in 
Table 6 bel ow: 

Table 6 – Innternal Audi t Performannce Indicatoors 

Theme Title of Performmance Indiccator Performmance 
Delivery De 

Pe 
de 
sta 

elivery of the 
ercentage o 
elivered to a 
age by 31 M 

e Internal A 
of assignme 
at least draf 
March 2017 

Audit Plan – 
ents 
ft report 

85% 

Adding Vaalue Cu 
Ra 

ustomer Sat 
ating 

tisfaction – AAverage 2.78 

3 = Go 
2 = Sat 
1 = Poo 

ood 
tisfactory 
or 

Timeliness Tim 
of 
wo 
co 

meliness of R 
draft repor 

orking days 
ompletion 

Reporting – 
rts issued wit 
of assignm 

Percentag 
thin 10 
ent fieldwo 

e 

rk 

89% 

Averagge time 7.1 ddays 

Effectiven ess Im 
by 
or 

mplementati 
y Officers – P 
partially im 

ion of Agree 
Percentage 

mplemented 

ed Actions 
e either fully 
d on time 

y 
88% 
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6. PROFESSIOONAL STAANDARDS 

6.1	 The Public Sector Inteernal Audit  Standards  (the Standdards) weree adopted  by the 
Chartered Institute of Public Fina ance and AAccountanccy (CIPFA) frfrom April 2013. The 
standards are intendded to promote further improveement in thhe professi onalism, 
quality, connsistency annd effectiveeness of Inteernal Audit aacross the ppublic sectoor. 

6.2	 The objectives of the SStandards a are to: 
 Define tthe nature oof internal aauditing withhin the public sector; 
 Establishh a framewwork for provviding internnal audit se rvices, whicch add valuue to the 

organisation, leadiing to improoved organ isational proocesses andd operationns; and 
 Establishh the basiss for evalu ation of internal audit performaance and to drive 

improveement planning. 

6.3 	 The Corpoorate Assurance and Improvemment Manaager has uundertaken a self-
assessmentt on conformance to the Public Sector Inte rnal Audit SStandards. The self-
assessmentt was commpleted on June 3rd 2017. The results havve been reported 
separately to this Commmittee andd the Qualiity Assurancce and Impprovement PPlan has 
been updaated as a reesult. Signifi icant progr ess has beeen made d during the laast year. 
The previouus self-assesssment highhlighted 24 areas of p artial or noon-compliannce with 
the Standaards and the updatted self-asssessment hhighlights 44 areas off partial 
compliancee, 2 of which are as aa result of changes too the Standdards introdduced in 
April 2017. TThe Corporaate Assurannce and Impprovement Manager is s of the opinnion that 
the areas oof partial ccompliance have not significantlyy impactedd the quality of the 
internal auudit service and that delivery off the improovement pllan in 20166/17 has 
enhanced the value oof the servicce. The Interrnal Audit seervice is noww, in the oppinion of 
the Corpoorate Assurrance andd Improvemment Manager, opeerating in general 
conformannce to the SStandards. AAn external quality as sessment o of the Internnal Audit 
service is sscheduled to take plaace in Sepptember 20017; followinng this the Quality 
Assurance and Improvvement Plann will again be update d. 
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77. SUMMARY OF AUDIT FINDDINGS 


AAudit Area Assurance 
Opinion 

Risk Exposure 
Opinion 

Summary of KKey Findings 

FFinancial System Key Controls Substantial Medium For 2016/17 o 
controls revie 
most significa 
systems or a 
review. it wa 
reviewed for 2 
 Sundry De 

recently b 
changed 

 NDR – On 
business ra 
there wer 
charities w 
their inco 
purposes. 

 Cash hand 
arising at t 

onwards, it was a 
ew would be ba 

nt areas of risk – 
reas which hav 

as agreed that 
2016/17: 
ebtors – On th 

been reviewed b 
systems two yea
 the basis that t 
ate calculations 
e concerns that 
without sufficien 
ome is used w 

dling, banking a 
the Benn Hall. 

agreed that the 
ased upon an a 
– for example, ch 
ve not been su 

the following 

e basis that th 
by internal audit 
ars ago. 
here were signif
 from April 1st, 20 
t exemptions ma 
t evidence bein 

wholly or mainl 

and security – du

e annual financi 
assessment of th 
hanges to existin 
ubject to rece 
areas would b 

his area had no 
t and the Counc 

ficant changes t 
017 and becaus 
ay be granted t 
ng obtained tha 
ly for charitab 

ue to recent issue 

al 
he 
ng 
nt 

be 

ot 
cil 

to 
se 
to 
at 
le 

es 

The audit c 
operated con 
reviewed. The 
 There are 

that all 
processed 

confirmed that 
ntrols were gene 
e key issues ident 

no formal contr 
sundry debtor 

d. 

 appropriately 
erally in place co 
tified were as fo 
rols in place to p 

invoice reque 

designed an 
overing the area 
llows: 

provide assuranc 
ests are actua 

nd 
as 

ce 
lly 
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AAudit Area Assurance 
Opinion 

Risk Exposure 
Opinion 

Summary of KKey Findings 

FFinancial System Key Controls (coontinued)  The onus 
difficulty t 
approach 
overdue d 

 Testing co 
the sundry 
expected 
not doing 

 Owing to 
access to 
camera, t 

is currently on 
to contact the 
h might lead t 
debts. 
onfirmed that, w 
y debt recovery 
, in 6 out of 15 c 
all it could to re 
the number of 

o the RAGM sa 
there is an increa 

customers who 
Council and a 

to more effect 

whilst the autom 
y procedures w 
cases examined 

ecover overdue 
officers and cas 

afe, and the la 
ased risk of theft 

o are in financi 
a more proactiv 
tive recovery o 

mated aspects o 
were operating a 
d the Council wa 
debts. 
sual staff grante 

ack of a securi 
. 

al 
ve 
of 

of 
as 
as 

ed 
ty 

FFees and Chargees Substantial Medium The annual fe 
appropriately 
identified: 
 The forma 

currently 
departme 
services. 

 The review 
annual bu 

The annual re 
managers. Th 
exercise to un 
and pertinen 

ees and charges 
y designed, alth 

al review did no 
charge for se 

ents which do 

w is not currently 
udget setting pro 

eview meetings 
he finance offic 
ndertake, and a 
t questions. As 

s review process 
hough the follow 

ot include all de 
ervices, nor di 

not currently 

y aligned with th 
ocess. 

s were well rec 
cers also found 
all asked reason 
a result of the 

s was found to b 
wing issues wer 

epartments whic 
d it include a 
charge for the 

he initiation of th 

ceived by servic 
it to be a usef 

nably challengin 
discussions held 

be 
re 

ch 
all 
eir 

he 

ce 
ful 
ng 
d, 
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AAudit Area Assurance 
Opinion 

Risk Exposure 
Opinion 

Summary of KKey Findings 

FFees and Chargees (continued) managers ha 
areas which, 
fees and char 

ave agreed to 
in turn, may lea 
rges. 

conduct further 
ad to amendme 

r research in fiv 
ents in the level o 

ve 
of 

Innfrastructure Ressilience Substantial Medium As part of th 
Recovery pla 
Council’s mov 
a project h 
infrastructure 
minimise the 
event” occu 
traditional dis 
include a hot 
Crematorium 
Cloud”. 

This was an 
infrastructure 
configuration 
to consider th 
otherwise. The 
 The Coun 

project w 
outbound 
any chan 
within th 
arrangem 

 The vulne 
device is n 

he continuing 
anning process 
ve from Exchang 
has been initia 

fit for busines 
time taken to re 

ur. The Counci 
k to offsite replic 
t backup to virt 
and critical serv 

n interim repo 
design con 

is complete a s 
he strength of th 
e review identifie 
ncil’s chosen im 

will be managin 
d firewall. Once 
nges to the out 
e partner’s ch 

ments for this are 
rability / security 
not covered with 

improvement o 
ses and to c 
ge to an Office 
ated to make 
ss continuity p 
ecover systems 
il’s current ba 
cation; the new 
ual servers bein 
vices replication 

ort covering 
nfiguration. On 
econd review w 

he stress testing a 
ed the following 
mplementation 
ng the cloud s 

the new firewa 
tbound rules wi 
hange control 
not yet defined; 
y patching of th 
hin the current p 

of the IT Disaste 
complement th 
365 environmen 

e the technic 
purposes and t 

should a “trigge 
ckup solution 

w infrastructure w 
ng located at th 
n to servers “in th 

aspects of th 
nce the ne 

will be undertake 
and its success o 
issues: 
partner for th 

solution and th 
all is operationa 
ll be undertake 

process.
 T

h 
; and 
he hosted firewa 
partner SLA. 

er 
he 
nt, 
al 
to 
er 
is 

will 
he 
he 

he 
ew 
en 
or 

he 
he 
al, 
en 
he 

all 
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AAudit Area Assurance 
Opinion 

Risk Exposure 
Opinion 

Summary of KKey Findings 

SSystems Administtration Substantial Medium The review co 
 The passw 
 There is a 

access to 
 There are 

in place. 

The review a 
records takes 
contractors w 
Testing identif 
not match wit 
been underta 

onfirmed that: 
word policy meet 

regular review 
systems is remov 
appropriate sys 

lso highlighted 
s place, this d  

who may have b 
fied approximate 
th HR records. A 

aken by the IT de 

ts with general g 
of HR records to 
ved where nece 
stem change req 

that, whilst regu 
id not include 
been granted a 
ely 50 active ac 

A full review of su 
epartment. 

good practice; 
o ensure that use 
essary; and 
quest procedure 

ular review of H 
agency staff o 

access to system 
ccounts which d 
uch accounts ha 

er 

es 

HR 
or 

ms. 
id 
as 

ICCT Helpdesk Substantial Low The service d 
bedding in p 
raise a reques 
are being de 
also be drawn 
which accom 
indicates user 
in the upper 
element of tra 
of detail ava 
information is 

desk is relatively 
period to gauge 
st 24/7 through t 

eveloped for sta 
n from the early 

mpanies each clo 
r satisfaction with 

quartile. Repor 
ansparency on s 
ailable. Howeve 

still in its early sta 

y new and req 
e its full effectiv 
the user portal a 
ff to use. Positiv 

y stages of the s 
osed call: the su 
h the service de 
rting is satisfacto 
service delivery w 

er, the collation 
ages and is yet t 

quires reasonab 
veness. Users ca 
and self-help FAQ 
ve assurance ca 
satisfaction surve 
ummary of return 
sk performance 
ory to deliver a 
with a good lev 

of performanc 
to be published. 

le 
an 
Qs 
an 
ey 
ns 
is 

an 
vel 
ce 

PPayment Card Inndustry Data Seccurity Standards Substantial Medium This audit eva 
within three 
payments (To 

luated how the 
key Council de 

own Hall Custo 

PCI DSS complia 
epartments wh 
mer Services, R 

ance is manage 
ich handle car 

RAGM and Ben 

ed 
rd 
nn 
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AAudit Area Assurance 
Opinion 

Risk Exposure 
Opinion 

Summary of KKey Findings 

P 
(c 
Payment Card In 
continued) 

ndustry Data Seecurity Standardss Hall). 

The Corporate 
wider PCI co 
self-assessmen 
sale processin 

The review hig 
a “procedu 
document to 
taking payme 
system. It wo 
Customer Ser 
as a centralis 
Council servic 

Officers rece 
card payme 
present’ paym 
an element o 
which cover 
requirements. 

e ICT Manager i 
mpliance review 
nt questionnaire 
ng card paymen 

ghlighted that C 
re for taking 
ensure staff foll 

ents through th 
ould benefit the 
rvices guidance 
sed PCI payme 

ce taking card p 

eive training in 
nts and where 

ments. It would b 
of consistent cen 
rs the Counci 

is in the process 
w to ensure tha 
e is completed f 
nts. 

Customer Service 
and reconc 

low the correct 
e Capita incom 

e overall contro 
e to be expande 
ent card proces 
payments. 

payments proc 
e applicable, ‘ 
benefit the PCI c 
ntralised training 
il’s payment 

of undertaking 
at an appropriat 
for each point o 

es has develope 
ciling payment 

procedure whe 
me manageme 
ol process for th 
ed and adopte 
ss for use at an 

cessing includin 
card holder no 

control process fo 
to be introduce 
card processin 

a 
te 
of 

ed 
s” 

en 
nt 

he 
ed 
ny 

ng 
ot 
or 

ed 
ng 

FFraud Risk Revieww Substantial Medium A detailed re 
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AAudit Area Assurance 
Opinion 

Risk Exposure 
Opinion 

Summary of KKey Findings 
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Risk Exposure 
Opinion 

Summary of KKey Findings 
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Risk Exposure 
Opinion 

Summary of KKey Findings 
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AAudit Area Assurance 
Opinion 

Risk Exposure 
Opinion 

Summary of KKey Findings 
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Opinion 

Risk Exposure 
Opinion 

Summary of KKey Findings 
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Limitatioons and Ressponsibilitie s 

Limitatioons inherent to the Inteernal Auditorr’s work 

Internall Audit is un dertaking aa programmme of work agreed by the counci l’s senior m anagers 
and appproved by the Audit && Ethics Commmittee subbject to the limitations ooutlined below. 

Opinionn 

Each aaudit assignnment unddertaken adddresses thhe control objectives agreed wwith the 
relevannt responsib le managers. There m ight be we aknesses in  the systemm of internal control 
that Int ernal Auditt are not awware of be cause theyy did not form part of the programme of 
work, wwere excludded from thhe scope oof individua l internal audit assignmments, or wwere not 
brought to the atteention of Innternal Audiit. As a con sequence, the Audit && Ethics Commmittee 
should be aware that the AAudit Opinioon for eachh assignment might have differeed if the 
scope oof individuaal assignmeents was exxtended or other relevvant matterrs were broought to 
Internall Audit’s atteention. 

Internall Control 

Internall control sysstems identtified duringg audit ass ignments, nno matter hhow well ddesigned 
and opperated, arre affectedd by inhere ent limitations. These innclude the  possibility of poor 
judgemment in deecision maaking, humman error, control pprocesses bbeing deli berately 
circumvvented byy employeees and others managemen t overridinng controls, and 
unfores eeable circcumstances. 

Future PPeriods 

The asseessment of each auditt area is releevant to thee time that tthe audit w was completted in. In 
other wwords, it is a snapshott of the coontrol enviroonment at that time. This evaluation of 
effectivveness may not be relevant to futuure periods due to the risk that: 

 The design of controlss may becoome inadeqquate becaause of chaanges in opperating 
environmennt, law, reguulatory requuirements o r other factors; or 

 The degreee of compliaance with ppolicies and procedures may deteeriorate. 

Responsibilities of MManagemeent and Interrnal Auditorrs 

It is mmanagemennt’s responnsibility to develop and mainntain soundd systems of risk 
management, inteernal control and govvernance, and for thee preventioon or detection of 
irregulaarities and fraud. Inteernal auditt work shoould not bbe seen aas a substitute for 
management’s ressponsibilitiess for the dessign and opperation of tthese systemms. 

Internall Audit enddeavours too plan its wwork so thatt there is a reasonablee expectattion that 
significaant control wweaknessess will be dettected. If wweaknesses are detecteed, additionnal work 
is undeertaken to identify any consequ uent fraud or irregularrities. Howeever, Intern al Audit 
proceddures alone,  even whenn carried ouut with due professionaal care, do nnot guarantee that 
fraud wwill be deteccted, and its work sho ould not be relied uponn to disclos e all fraud or other 
irregulaarities that mmight exist. 
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Agenda No 8 

AGENDA MANAGEMENT SHEET  

Report Title: 


Name of Committee: 


Date: 


Report Director: 


Portfolio: 


Ward Relevance: 


Prior Consultation: 


Contact Officer: 


Public or Private: 


Report subject to Call-In:  


Report En-Bloc: 


Forward Plan:  


Corporate Priorities: 


Statutory / Policy Background:
 

Summary:
 

Financial Implications:  


Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 

Audit and Ethics Committee 

27th June 2017 

Head of Corporate Resources and Chief 
Financial Officer 

Corporate Resources 

None 

Head of Corporate Resources and Chief 
Financial Officer, Executive Director, Senior 
Management Team, Monitoring Officer, 
Legal Services Manager 

Chris Green - Corporate Assurance and 
Improvement Manager 

Public 

No 

No 

No 

Ensure that the Council works efficiently and 
effectively 

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 
require the Council to publish an Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS) 

The report describes how the Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS) for 2016/17 
was produced. The AGS itself forms an 
appendix to the report. 

There are no financial implications arising 
directly from this report.  



 

 

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Risk Management Implications: 	 There are no risk management implications 
arising directly from this report.  

Environmental Implications: 	 There are no environmental implications 
arising from this report. 

Legal Implications: 	 There are no legal implications arising from 
this report. 

Equality and Diversity:  	 There are no equalities and diversity 
implications arising from this report. 

Options: 	 Not applicable  

Recommendation: 
The Committee recommends to Council that 
the AGS be approved. 

Reasons for Recommendation:  	 To comply with the requirements of the 
terms of reference of the Audit and Ethics 
Committee, and to discharge the 
Committee’s responsibilities under the 
Constitution. 
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Agenda No 8 

Audit and Ethics Committee – 27 June 2017 

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 

Report of the Head of Corporate Resources and Chief Finance Officer   

Recommendation 

The Committee recommends to Council that the AGS be approved. 

1. 	 Introduction 

1.1 	 The purpose of this report is to set out an Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for 
2016/17, describing the governance arrangements that were in place during the 
financial year. 

1.2 	 The AGS is formally approved by Council and signed by the Executive Director and 
Leader of the Council, who take personal responsibility for the control framework 
described and for the delivery of the identified improvements to the framework. 

1.3 	 The AGS for 2016/17 was drafted by the Corporate Assurance and Improvement 
Manager and considered by the Executive Director and Head of Corporate 
Resources. 

1.4 	 A copy of the AGS for 2016/17 is appended. 

2. 	 Report Details 

2.1 	 Corporate governance is defined as the systems and processes, and cultures and 
values, by which local government bodies are directed and controlled and through 
which they account to, engage with and where appropriate lead their communities.  

2.2 	 There is a strong correlation between effective governance and effective service 
delivery and achievement of corporate objectives. To deliver the Council’s vision 
and support the drive for continuous improvement strong governance arrangements 
need to be in place. 

2.3 	 A new framework for delivering good governance in Local Government was 
published in 2016, and this year’s AGS has been prepared in accordance with the 
new framework. The key changes required under the new framework are: 

	 To move the focus of the AGS beyond stating what the Council’s governance 
arrangements are, by considering how effective those arrangements are and 
focussing on the outcomes achieved; 

	 To introduce two new governance principles which were not present under the 
previous framework; these new principles being “Determining the interventions 
necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes”, and 
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“implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver 
effective accountability”; 

 To require the inclusion of an action plan within the AGS (the Council 
implemented this last year); and 

 To require the inclusion of an assessment of progress against the previous 
year’s action plan within the AGS 

2.4 	 Best practice guidance received by the Council highlighted that the AGS should 
also be a shorter document. Previous AGS documents published by some 
authorities have been as much as 50 pages long. Given the changes to the 
framework for good governance, the opportunity was taken to fully review and 
update the presentation of the AGS. The result is a more concise document. 

2.5 	 A number of evidence sources were utilised for the purpose of drafting the AGS, 
including: 

	 Consultation with, and assurances provided by, key officers. Meetings were 
held with each Head of Service, the Executive Director, the Democratic 
Services Manager and the Legal Services Manager. Governance 
arrangements were reviewed with each officer and examples of effectiveness 
and outcomes were also discussed at the meetings. 

	 Work undertaken during the year by Internal Audit and other inspection 
bodies. 

	 Key corporate documents including the Corporate Strategy, Committee 
reports, the Annual Audit Letter, the Constitution, the draft financial statements 
for 2016/17, the Annual Report of the Corporate Assurance and Improvement 
Manager, the Learning and Development Strategy, and the officer and 
member training programmes. 

2.6 	 The Council is satisfied that its overall governance framework provides a substantial 
level of assurance of effectiveness, although a number of further development 
areas have been highlighted. Delivery of the Action Plan will be monitored during 
2017/18. The full AGS is set out at Appendix A. 
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Name of Meeting: Audit and Ethics Committee 

Date of Meeting: 27 June 2017 

Subject Matter: Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 

Originating Department: Corporate Assurance and Improvement 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS
 

Document Description of Officer’s File 
No. Date Document Reference Reference 
Appendix A 27/06/2017 Annual Governance Statement 
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ANNNUAAL GOOVERRNANNCE SSTATEEMENNT 


20016-117 
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Annnual GGovernaance Staatemennt 2016//17 


1.	 SCOPE OFF RESPONSSIBILITY 

1.1	 Rugby Boroough Counncil is respoonsible for ensuring thhat it cond ducts its bu siness in 
accordancce with thee law andd proper sttandards. PPublic monney must bbe used 
economicaally, efficienntly and eff ectively, saafeguarded and propeerly accounnted for. 
The Counccil must hav e in place proper govvernance a rrangemen nts and carrry out its 
functions e ffectively, inncluding suiitable risk mmanagemennt arrangemments. 

1.2	 The Counccil must con duct a reviiew, at leasst once a yyear, of the effectiveneess of its 
system of innternal conttrol and repport the find ings in an aannual goveernance staatement. 
The statemment must be prepareed in accoordance wwith proper practices and be 
reported too a Commmittee of CCouncillors. This documment compprises the CCouncil’s 
annual govvernance st atement foor 2016/17. 

2.	 WHO IS REESPONSIBLE FOR ENNSURING GGOOD GOOVERNANCCE? 

2.1	 The Counccil’s governnance arraangements are oversseen by thhe Audit && Ethics 
Committeee. The Execuutive Directoor has overaall responsibbility for ens suring that eeffective 
controls annd processees are impleemented accross the Coouncil and these are rregularly 
reviewed and upda ted. Regular reports are submitted to thhe Audit && Ethics 
Committeee highlightinng any identified ennhancemennts. The Heead of Coorporate 
Resources and Chief Finance OOfficer (s151  Officer) is responsiblee for ensuring that
effective finnancial conntrols are in place, for the mainte nance of aan effective  internal 
audit funcction and for reviewing the ovverall effecctiveness off the goveernance 
framework.. The overvview and cco-ordinatioon of this pprocess is uundertaken  by the 
Corporate Assurance and Improvvement Mannager. 

3.	 WHAT THISS STATEMEENT TELLS YYOU 

3.1	 This Statemment providees a summaarised accoount of howw the Counncil’s manaagement 
arrangemeents are set up to meeet the princciples of goood governaance set ouut in the 
Constitutionn and howw assurancee is obtainned that thhese are bboth effect ive and 
appropriatee. It is writteen to providde the read er with a cl ear, simple assessmentt of how 
the govern ance frameework has ooperated ovver the past financial yyear, how eeffective 
that framewwork has beeen in enabbling the C ouncil to acchieve its inntended outcomes, 
and to iddentify anyy improvemments madde and aany weakn nesses or ggaps in 
arrangemeents that neeed to be aaddressed. I ts main aimm is to proviide the rea der with 
confidencee that the CCouncil is mmanaged efffectively annd efficientlly; that servvices are 
delivered inn accordannce with currrent legisla tion, the coorporate straategy and in a way 
that optimisses value foor money. 
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4.	 THE PRINCCIPLES OF GOOD GOOVERNANNCE 

4.1	 The principples of goood governaance are seet out in thhe new CIPPFA Framewwork for 
Delivering Good Govvernance inn Local Goovernment 2016. The new frameework is 
different inn a number of ways, in particular the positioning of the attainmment of 
sustainablee economicc, societal, and environmental ooutcomes aas a key ffocus of 
governancce processees and strucctures. This statement explains hoow the Couuncil has 
complied wwith the neww framework and also meets the requiremennts of the AAccounts 
and Audit RRegulations  2015 (Englaand). 

4.2	 Good govvernance iss dynamic,  and the Council is committedd to improoving its 
governancce on a conntinuing bassis through a process oof evaluatioon and rev iew. The 
diagram beelow, takenn from the Innternationa l Framewor k for Good Governancce in the 
Public Sector, illustrat es the variious principples of goood governaance in thee public 
sector and how they reelate to eacch other. 

Principlles A and B permeate implementaation of prinnciples C to o G 
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5. THE GOVEERNANCE FRAMEWOORK 

5.1	 The governnance framework commprises the ppolicies, plans, systems,, processes , culture 
and values  (the systemm of ‘internaal control’) tthat the Coouncil has inn place to eensure its 
intended ooutcomes foor stakeholdders and thee communiity are definned and deelivered. 
To deliver ggood goveernance ob jectives muust be achieved whilstt also acting in the 
public interrest. The fra mework ennables the CCouncil to mmonitor the achievemeent of its 
strategic oobjectives aand to connsider wheether those objectivess have ledd to the 
delivery of appropriatee, cost effecctive servicees. 

5.2	 The governnance arrangements are designed to ensuure that  ann appropriaate and 
proportionaate approach is taken  to manag ing risk whilst ensuring that objecttives are 
achieved. TThe governance frameework has bbeen in place for the yyear to the date of 
approval oof this annuaal governannce statemment. The arrangement ts are not ddesigned 
to eliminatte all risks but ratherr provide a reasonabble degreee of assuraance of 
effectiveneess. 

5.3	 The governnance frameework and an assessmment of its efffectivenesss are set ouut on the 
following seeven pagess. 
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PRIN 
valu 

NCIPLE A: Be 
ues, and res 

ehaving wit 
specting the 

th integrity, 
e rule of law 

demonstrat 
w 

ting strong ccommitmennt to ethicall 

Arraangements inn place Effectiveeness and fuuture develoopments 
 Member aand officer codes oof A revise d Counter Fraud Strattegy and FFraud 

conduct Responsee Plan were implemente d during 20116/17 
 
 

Confidentia 
Counter 

l Reporting C 
Fraud, Br 

Code 
ribery andd 

which ha 
investigat 

as led to a m 
tion of irreg 

more consiste 
gularities acr 

tent approac 
ross the Co 

ch to 
ouncil 

Corruption SStrategy and immproved aawareness amongst staff. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fraud Respo 
Contract Sta 
Declaration 
Register of in 
Register of g 
Customer fe 

onse Plan 
anding Orde 
of interests p 

nterests 
gifts and hosp 
eedback and 

rs 
procedure 

pitality 
d complaintss 

Furthermo 
within the 
resources 
any alleg 
testing to 

ore, dedicat 
e internal au 
s are availab 

gations and to 
o be conduct 

ted time has 
udit work pla 
ble to thoro 
o enable pro 
ted during th 

s been set a 
an to ensure 
ughly investi 

oactive risk b 
he year. 

aside
 that 
igate 

based 

procedure New corrporate valuues were ddeveloped inn full 
 Equalities & Diver sity policyy consultattion with almost 200 empl loyees involvved in 

statement their dev elopment. Thhere is a highh commitmeent to 
 Information security poolicies and aa embeddiing the valuees across thee organisatioon. A 

Chief Informmation Office r in post behaviouurs documennt will be issuued to all of ficers 
 Newly upddated corpoorate valuess and compliance wwill be maandatory. Rolling 

which all eemployees a re expectedd licensing committee ttraining has bbeen provideed to 
to act in acccordance wiith memberss leading  to a cleareer evaluation of 

 Recruitmentt/ selection proceduress prosecutiion cases. RRegulatory trraining has bbeen 
aligned withh corporate vvalues provided to planning committee mmembers leaading 

 A new stan dard templaate has beenn to a greaater awaren ess and undderstanding wwhen 
developed for 1 to 1 meetingss making decisions, leading to a reductioon in 
between managers and stafff, appeals. 
ensuring thaat corporatee values aree 
embedded and adhere d to The feed back and coomplaints proocedure is roobust, 

 An internal audit review has beenn however at present there is foormal analyssis of 
scheduled in 2017/18 to providee feedbac k undertakenn to identify common theemes 
assurance t hat corporatte values aree or issues for which lesssons may n need to be leearnt 
embedded across the organisation across tthe organisaation. Furtheermore, poositive 

 The Counccil participaates in thee feedbac k is not always ccelebrated and 
National Frraud Initiativve and thee recogniseed in a consisstent manne er. See Actionn 1. 
County widee Counter Fraaud Initiativee 

 Delivery of fraud andd corruptionn The Counncil’s informaation securityy procedure s are 
awareness ttraining comprehhensive but the new General Data 

 Any planninng applicatioons submittedd Protection Regulationns take effectt in May 20188 and 
by staff are reviewed in ppublic steps neeed to be tak en to implemment and emmbed 

 Agenda mmanagementt sheets oof the regulaations acrosss the Councill. See Action 2. 
Council reports include aa 
requirementt to highlighht the legaal The Couuncil’s volunttary and coommunity ggrants 
implications of decisions working pparty has issuued approximmately £250,0000 in 

 Records oof regulatoory trainingg funds to benefit our citizens and communnities. 
required aand undertaken aree Applications are subjeect to a con sistent evaluation 
retained on the Council’’s HR system process. Outcomes aare clearly d defined in Seervice 

 The Council has a Heaalth & Safetyy Level Agrreements andd delivery is mmonitored. 
members woorking party 
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PRINNCIPLE B: Ennsuring openness and ccomprehennsive stakehholder engaagement 
Arraangements in place Effectiven ess and futuure developpments 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

The Counci 
information 
agendas an 
procuremen 
tender, sen 
contracts 
governance 
financial s 
performanc 
applications 
section 106 
The strate 
scrutinised 
Committee 
Cabinet. 
The Counc 
comprehen 
on its 
engagemen 
West Midlan 
and the 
Partnership. 
There is a Sc 
programme 
members o 
recommend 
annual work 
A Forward 
out what 
undertaken 
decisions b 
whom. 
The Counc 
Equality & 
accreditatio 
Assessments 
Council dec 
Communica 
Customer 
complaints p 
Active 
employees 
number of w 
a bi-annu 
employee 
and the co 
forum and t 
Consultation 

il publishes a 
including 

nd reports, fin 
nt data, inv 
ior officer s 

register, 
e stateme 
statements, 
e informatio 
s and dec 
agreements. 

egic risk 
by the Aud 
with open r 

il consults w 
sively with st 

proposals 
nt takes pla 
nds Combine 

Local 

crutiny Comm 
e in pla 

f the public 
d topics a 
k planning m 
Plan is in pla 

consultatio 
in adv 

being made, 

cil has rec 
Diversity 

on and Equa 
s are com 
cisions. 
ations strateg 

feedbac 
procedure 
engagemen 

takes pla 
ways includi 
ual survey 
briefings, c 

orporate ma 
through the 
n Forum. 

a range of 
meeting 

nancial and 
vitations to 
alaries, the 

annual 
ent and 

corporate 
n, planning 

cisions and 
. 
register is 

dit & Ethics 
eporting to 

widely and 
takeholders 
. Wider 
ce via the 

ed Authority 
Enterprise 

mittee work 
ace, with 
c invited to 
nd attend 
eetings. 
ace setting 
n will be 
vance of 
, and with 

ceived an 
“excellent” 

ality Impact 
pleted for 

gy in place 
ck and 

nt with 
ace in a 
ng through 

y, regular 
core briefs, 
anagement 
Joint Union 

On May 24 
“excellent” 
governmen 
have achie 

The Counc 
with comm 
forums, lea 
Facebook, 
There is a c 
face to fac 
accesses 
interpretati 
written do 
Warwickshi 
information 
and its peo 
to inform th 
and to inf 
Strategy fo 
staff when 
which help 
due cons 
community 

There is an 
which ena 
statutory p 
progress on 
amend the 
which is un 

Consultatio 
unions in d 
2016/17 t 
changes t 
kept inform 
made to th 

Cross part 
additional 
all membe 

As part of 
for the fut 
changes to 
delivered. 
and consis 
greater e 
Furthermor 
association 
involvemen 
concern th 

4th 2017 the 
” under the e 
nt, the first 
eved the rea 

cil uses a rang 
munities inc 
afletting, par
 our website 

contract with 
ce communi 

the Warw 
ion and tra 

ocuments. Th 
ire Obser 
n and intel 
ople. The inf 
he Council’s 
orm the dev 

or 2017-20. Th 
completing 

ps to ensure t 
ideration o 

y. 

n annual ‘O 
bles voluntar 
partners to 
n the Regen 
em as appro 

ndertaken wit 

on is also und 
developing 
here was 
o staff term 

med of prog 
he proposals 

ty working p 
measure wh 
rs on key Co 

the strategy 
ture, residen 
o the way th 
This resulted 
stency of se 
efficiency 
e, the resi 

n champions 
nt and sh 

hem. 

Council was 
equalities fra 
and only d 
ccreditation 

ge of approa 
luding throu 
rish councils, 
e, surveys, an
 language lin 
cation issues 
wickshire C 
nslation serv 
he Council 
vatory, w 
ligence abo 
formation pro 
vision for Ru 

velopment o 
he informatio 

Equality Imp 
that decision 
f the impa 

ur Rugby, O 
ry and comm 

contribute 
eration Strate 
opriate. This 
th community 

dertaken wit 
employment 
consultation 
s and cond 

gress and am 
as a result. 

parties are 
ich ensures e 
uncil decisio 

y of ensuring 
ts were used 
he housing w 
in improved 
rvice quality 
and value 
dents’ pane 
s provide gre 
aping of 

s reaccredite 
amework for 
district Counc 
n. 

aches to eng 
ugh associa 
, drop in ev 
nd face to f 
ne to suppor 
s and the Co 
County Co 
vice to tran 
is a partne 

which pro 
out Warwick 
ovided was 
gby Town C 

of the Corpo 
on is also use 
pact Assessm 
ns are taken 
acts across 

Our Future’ e 
munity sector 

their views 
egy priorities 
informs the 

ty partners. 

th staff and t 
t policies. D 
n on prop 
ditions; staff 
mendments 

operated a 
engagement 
ns.

 the Counci 
d to help sh 
warden serv 
service resili 

y whilst deliv 
e for mo 
el and ho 
eater comm 
decisions w 

ed as 
local 

cil to 

gage 
tions, 

vents, 
face. 
rt any 
ouncil 
ouncil 
nslate 
er of 
vides 
kshire 
used 
entre 
orate 

ed by 
ments, 

after 
the 

event 
r and 
s on 
s and 
work 

trade 
During 
posed 

were 
were 

as an 
t with 

l is fit 
hape 
ice is 
ence 

vering 
oney. 
using 

munity 
which 
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PRIN 
env 

NCIPLE C: D 
vironmental 

Defining outc
 benefits 

comes in teerms of sustaainable ecoonomic, soccial, and 

Arraangements in place Effeectiveness aand future ddevelopmennts 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A new Co 
was appro 
subject 
consultation 
The Medium 
Strategy is 
Corporate S 
Cabinet 
reports set 
changes on 
Strategic an 
register are 
register of c 
be develop 
A “clean” 
opinion was 
external aud 
As part of p 
Council is 
decisions ar 
the long 
implementa 
waste cha 
of service 
processes, a 
the Rugby 
Museum, a 
commercial 
The Council 
its proposa 
economic, 
environmen 
plans, polici 
There is a 
Rugby Town 
an action p 
plan. 

orporate St 
oved which 
to a 

n exercise 
m Term Fin 
aligned wit 

Strategy 
and Com 
out the imp
 stakeholder 
nd operation
 in place, a 
corporate ris 
ed in 2017. 
Value for M 

s received fro 
ditors in 2016 
plans to ensu 
fit for the 
re being tak 

term inc 
ation of 
rges, digital 

es and in 
a forward p 

Art Gallery 
and throug 
lisation agen
 consults wid 
ls considerin 

social 
tal impac 
es and decis
 clear visio 
n Centre inc 

plan and mar 

rategy 
h was 

public 

nancial 
th the 

mittee 
act of 

rs 
nal risk 
and a 
sks will 

Money 
om the 
. 

ure the 
future, 

ken for 
cluding 

green 
lisation 
nternal 
lan for 
y and 
h the 

nda. 
dely on 
ng the 

and 
ts of 
sions. 
on for 
cluding 
rketing 

It w 
spa 
Hea 
Bloo 
Par 
rec 
the 
Wo 
Cou 
on i 

As 
hav 
acc 
to 
bre 
act 
fam 
the 
des 
for c 

In th 
take 
taki 
Ma 
cra 
tipp 

The 
enh 
rep 
imp 
tow 

Thro 
initi 
dom 
sup 
in th 

In J 
pro 
cyc 
Hillm 

The 
free 
com 
resid 

was a success 
aces; Rugby g 
art of Engla 
om campaig 
rk received G 
ognised as t
 Fields in 
odland Trus 
uncil support 
its green spa 

an indicator 
ve been 
commodate 
deliver thei 

eakfast club 
tivity are en 

milies to enco
 local area a 
sign of play f 
children. 

he Benn Wa 
e responsibil 
ing the lead 
rch 2017 the 
ckdown on f 

ping incident 

e Council de 
hance the p 

placement a 
provements t 
wn centre ca 

ough the C 
atives seriou 
mestic burgla 

pported victim 
heir vulnerab 

January 2017 
one stretch o 
cle way be 
morton’s Pytc 

e Rugby Mul 
e advice a 
mmunity. The 
dents with ne 

sful year for t 
gained a go 
nd in Bloom 
gns. Both Ca 
Green Flag a 
the most imp 
Trust. Fundi 

st to plant 
ted over 8,0 

aces. 

r of its succ 
significantly 
demand. Th 

ir healthy s 
s where he 
ncouraged. 
ourage them 
and young p 
facilities. The 

rd area loca 
ity for their o 
d in ensuring 
e Council lau 
fly tippling an 
ts were dealt 

elivered a n 
ublic realm o 

and refurbis 
to car park 
r park pay an 

Council’s on 
us violent cr 
ary was redu 
m of anti-soc 
bility. 

7 work comm 
of the Great 
etween the 
chley Road. 

tilink project 
and suppo 
e project link 
ew residents 

he borough’ 
ld award in b 

m and the N 
aldecott Park 
awards, with 

proved park 
ng was sec 
over 28,000 
00 hours of v 

ess the Play 
increased 

he service he 
chools age 

ealthy eatin 
Park session 

m to use the 
people are st 

service also 

al residents w 
own waste; r 
g the area 
unched a ne 
nd in 2016 m 
with. 

number of i 
of the Town 
hment of t 
lighting, and 
nd display m 

n-going crim 
rime was re 
ced by 9% a 
ial behaviou 

menced to i 
t Central Wa 

Clifton Ro 

was also la 
rt to the 
ks established 
in need of he 

s parks and o 
both the reg 

National Brita 
k and Cente 

h the latter b 
in the count 
cured from 

0 trees and 
volunteer ac 

y Team resou
 in order 
elps local sc 

enda by run 
ng and phy 
ns are run 
green spac 

takeholders i 
o runs youth 

were educate 
residents are 
is kept clea 
ew campaig 

more than 1,4 

improvemen 
Centre inclu 

timber benc 
d replaceme 

machines. 

me and diso 
educed by 
and every Co 

r saw a redu 

improve a f 
ay footpath 

oad bridge 

aunched, off 
Polish spea 

d Polish spea 
elp and supp 

open 
gional 
ain in 
enary 
being 
try by 

the 
d the 
ctivity 

urces 
r to 
hools 
nning 
ysical 

with 
ces in 
n the 
clubs 

ed to 
now 

an. In 
gn to 
00 fly 

nts to 
uding 
ches, 

ent of 

order 
7.5%, 

ouncil 
ction 

lood-
and 
and 

fering 
aking 
aking 
port. 
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PRIN 
inte 

NCIPLE D: D 
ended outco 

etermining 
omes 

the intervenntions neceessary to opttimise the aachievemennt of 

Arraangements in place Efffectivenesss and future developmeents 
 We manaage perfoormance Toogether witth the Newbold-on-Avvon Commmunity 

through local and Paartnership thee Council traansformed a former allot ment 
managemeent perfoormance sitte on Parkfieeld Road intoo a flagship ggreen spacee with 
indicators; this enables a sensory gardden, wildlife zzones, a buttterfly bank, ppicnic 
intervention to be targeted arrea and natuure trail. 
where it is neeeded. 

 The service planning  prrocess is Thhe Council leed a partnership bid from  the Warwickkshire 
designed to ensure that we Toogether Hommelessness EEarly Interveention Projecct to 
target the aactions neceessary to seecure a £8555,000 grant from the Departmennt for 
deliver our CCorporate Strrategy. Communities and Local Governmen nt’s Homelesssness 

 The corpoorate perfoormance Prrevention Traailblazers fundd. 
managemeent system (RRPMS) is 
used to moonitor the deelivery of Ass part of the corporate strategy the CCouncil conti nued 
action planss. too facilitate investment aand growth in Rugby. TThis is 

 Following aa restructure of the evvidenced bby the coommencemeent of a new 
senior mannagement team in coommunity deevelopment at the site oof the old R ugby 
2016 there aare now fourr distinct Raadio Station,, the grantinng of planninng permissioon for 
service areaas and a deedicated phhase 2 of thee Elliott’s Fieldd retail park aand the laun ch of 
member pportfolio holder for neew promotioonal brandinng for the toown centre . The 
each servicee. Council rece ived the b est ‘Small BBusiness Frieendly’ 

 Committee and Cabine t reports awward at the Federation oof Small Businness’ annual LLocal 
set out thee risks and options Authority awa rds. 
associated wwith decisionns. 

 A “clean” Value for Money Diifficult decisions were ta ken during 22016/17 to e nsure 
opinion wass received f rom the thhat the Counncil is financiaally fit for thee future, incluuding 
external auuditors in 20016 and thhe introductiion of green waste co ollection chaarges. 
the Contra ct Standing Orders Thhese decisioons enabledd the Counncil to conntinue 
and financcial instructioons are prresenting a sustainable balanced budget andd will 
designed too ensure best value. ennable highlyy valued loccal services to be preseerved 

 Quarterly finance and wwhilst deliverinng the outcoomes set out in the corpoorate 
performanc e reportss are strrategy. 
submitted t o and reviewed by 
Cabinet. WWhilst service planning is embedded  in the Council’s 

 An annual budget reeport is appproach to achieving itss corporate strategy, delivery 
submitted and there is an off associated action planss is not close ely monitoredd and 
established budget setting thhere is scoppe to directly link our kkey performaance 
process. mmeasures bacck to the outccomes set ouut in the stra tegy. 

 The Mediuum Term FFinancial Seee Action 3. 
Strategy is regularly reeviewed 
and updateed. Thhe Council ccontinued too implement t systems thinnking 

 The Council consults wiidely on reeviews. Thes e reviews involve chaallenging  exxisting 
its proposaals consideriing the internal proceesses and aree focussed oon improvingg the 
economic, social and cuustomer expperience. Ann example of a successful 
environmen tal impacts oof plans, ouutcome wa s the housing review which led to a
policies andd decisions. reeduction in tthe number of customerr complaints  and 

 There is a FForward Plann of key ann increase in  the number of complimeents. 
decisions and a scrutiny 
committee arrangement in Thhe Council bbrokered agreeements withh key commmunity 
place. grroups in the ffive most de prived neighhbourhoods in the 

 A customeer feedbacck and Boorough. This enabled thhe provision of core funnding 
complaints procedure is in toowards the ruunning of community cenntres and delivery 
place. off other commmunity priorities. 
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PRIN 
lead 

NCIPLE E: De 
dership and 

eveloping th 
d the individ 

he entity’s c 
duals within 

capacity, in 
it 

ncluding thee capabilityy of its 

Arraangements in place EEffectivenes s & future deevelopmennts 
 Each membber of the senior manaagement DDue to the cchallenging ffinancial climmate, 

team unde rtakes profe ssional deveelopment thhere was aa restructuree of the ssenior 
appropriatee to their role.. mmanagemen t team in 20116. As a resu lt the 

 The respectiive roles of thhe Executivee Director CCouncil now has four porttfolio holderss who 
and Leader are clearly ddefined. foorm the Cabbinet along with the Leaader. 

 The seniorr managemment teamm meets FFollowing thee restructure the Council now 
formally evvery two weeeks and innformally hhas one Executive Directoor and four Heads 
every week and Cabineet meets on aa regular oof Service aligned with thhe portfolioss. The 
basis. reestructure pprovided saavings of circa 

 Section 151 (Chief Finance) and MMonitoring ££200,000 per yyear. 
Officers are in post. 

 The Consttitution setss out rolees and The Counccil has a Corpoorate 
responsibilities and thee Council’s decision AApprenticeship scheme and there have 
making proocess. An appproved schheme of bbeen 24 ap prentices sinnce the schheme 
delegation is in place . Contract SStanding sttarted. The aapprentices provide a raange 
Orders and associated toolkits are ddesigned oof valuable support to various Coouncil 
to ensure procureme nt activity is cost services whil st undergoing a structtured 
effective annd ethical. pprogramme oof self-develoopment. 

 Registers of gifts, hospitality and coonflicts of 
interest in place. OOver 100 maanagers havee completedd the 

 Protocol in pplace settingg out the relaationship CCouncil’s “WWay We Mannage” corpoorate 
between annd roles of meembers and officers. trraining proggramme. Thiss is a significant 

 Member training aand deveelopment innvestment inn the workfoorce. The traaining 
programmee in place iincluding  deedicated inncludes goovernance issues suchh as 
training  foor planninng and licensing fiinancial mmanagementt, performaance 
committee mmembers. mmanagemen t, health aand safety and 

 Thorough innduction proocesses are in place pprocurement procedures. . 
for all new eemployees annd members . 

 Job profiles clearly set oout the respoonsibilities AA more coonsistent forrmat has bbeen 
of officers thhroughout thee organisatioon. ddeveloped for one too one meeetings 

 Learning  and Developpment Strateegy and bbetween ma nagers and staff. A stanndard 
Corporate LLearning Group in place. foormal agendda will be iissued whichh will 

 There is a s ystem of reggular team mmeetings eenable staff developmeent needs too be 
and one to one meetings bbetween iddentified an d addressedd throughout the 
managers aand staff. yyear rather thhan at six monnthly intervalls. 

 Employee hhealth and wellbeing ddays are 
arranged and conffidential employee AAs part of a wider review of the 
counselling support is available at all  times. CConstitution and given that there is no 

 A comprehhensive suitte of trainiing and loonger a Staandards Boaard, in 20177 the 
developme nt courses is offered to all CCouncil wi ll review, update and 
employees. ccommunicatee our protoccol for memmber/ 

 All managers are expeccted to compplete the oofficer relatio ns. See Actioon 4. 
“Way We M anage” trainning programmme. 

 Corporate MManagement Forum in plaace. AAn employeee health and wellbeing day 
 The Council  has a compprehensive suuite of HR wwas held in MMarch 2017 att which staff were 

policies coovering  emmployee caapability, ooffered free mini health checks incluuding 
disciplinary, recruitme nt and sselection, bblood pressuure and chholesterol, ttaster 
disciplinary and griev ance, and flexible mmassage aand reflexxology sessions, 
working. fi 

h 
inancial advi 

health inform 
ice and acce 
ation. 

ess to a weaalth of 
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PRIN 
stro 

NCIPLE F: M 
ong public fi 

anaging ris 
inancial ma 

ks and perf 
anagement 

formance thhrough robuust internal ccontrol and 

Arraangements in place Effectiven ess and futuure developpments 
 The Cou ncil has a risk The Counccil realised a General Funnd underspennd of 

managemeent strategy in place £266,140 ffor the year. A furtherr £5 million was 
which is reeviewed andd refreshed invested in the boroughh’s housing sttock by replaacing 
annually. Strrategic and ooperational windows and doors in over 11,350 propeerties, 
risk registerss are in plaace. Senior replacing 126 gas central heating systems andd 123 
managemeent, Audit & Ethics kitchens. TThe time takken to fill ann empty ho using 
Committee,  Cabinet, St rategic Risk property wwas reducedd from 39 days to 26.. This 
Managemeent Group, and the reduction equated to increased rrental incomme of 
Health & Saafety Membeers Working circa £50,0000. 
Party, all oversee the risk 
managemeent arrangemments. The annuaal report of thhe Corporatee Assurancee and 

 A regular rrisk assessmeent of the Improvemeent Manager provides a a Substantial level 
Council’s financial resserves and of assurancce that the CCouncil has aan adequatee and 
balances iss conductedd. Key risks effective ccontrol enviroonment in pplace. An intternal 
are identified and thee financial audit review of corporaate Health &  Safety, howwever, 
impacts aree quantifiedd. Reserves resulted in only Limited assurance. AA full action plan 
are reviewwed annuallly in the was agree d with manaagement andd delivery is bbeing 
context of thhe risk assessments. monitored by internal audit, senioor managemment, 

 Financial innformation iss published and the hhealth & saf ety memberrs’ working party 
on a regulaar basis and established and by thee Audit & Ethi cs Committeee. 
and embeedded budgget setting 
and monitooring proceddures are in An internaal audit servvice improveement plan was 
place. delivered during  20016/17. Thiss included full 

 Cabinet an d Committee system in implementation of Risk Based Intern nal Auditing (RBIA) 
place inccluding twoo scrutiny which is reecognised a s best practtice. The woork of 
committees and an Au dit & Ethics internal auudit has beeen aligned mmore closely with 
Committee with independent the aims a nd risk profilee of the orgaanisation andd the 
Chair and VVice Chairs. service is responsive to emerging issues and risks. 

 Counter frraud strateegy, fraud Linkages bbetween the results of intternal auditss, the 
response pplan and cconfidential associatedd risks and actions have b been enhanced. 
reporting coode in place.. 

 The internal  audit servicce provides A full revieww and update of corporarate performaance 
an indepe ndent and objective indicators wwas completted during thhe year to e nsure 
annual repoort and opinioon. that meassures are reelevant to the needs and 

 In 2017 worrk will be co mpleted to objectives of the organnisation. 
align servicee planning aand KPIs to 
the new Co rporate Strategy. Cabinet approved a new Anti-Fraaud, Bribery and 

 A corporatte system is used to Corruption Strategy in 22016/17 in adddition to a FFraud 
monitor, mmanage and report Response PPlan. Trainingg was providded to manaagers 
performanc e and conduct in April 2017 and in sup port of the sttrategy fraudd risks 
verification cchecks on thhe quality of were assesssed by interrnal audit wiwith actions pput in 
our data. Performance data is place where necessaryy. 
reported quuarterly to C abinet and 
is revieweed by aa scrutiny A review oof operational risk registeers highlighted a 
committee. number of risks which cut across seervice areass and 

 Data sharingg protocols aare in place which nee d to be connsidered at aa corporate level. 
covering, foor example, the HEART Officers willl develop a corporate rissk register in 2017 
service, Trai lblazer and the County to ensure these riskss are effecctively manaaged 
Counter Fra ud Initiative. through ou 

Action 5. 
ur Strategic RRisk Managemment Group . See 
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PRIN 
deli 

NCIPLE G: Im 
iver effectiv 

mplementin 
ve accounta 

ng good pra 
ability 

actices in traansparencyy, reporting, , and audit tto 

Arraangements in place Effectiven ess and futuure developpments 
 A range of information iis published As outlinedd in the actioon plan arisinng from last yyear’s 

including aan annual report of annual governance statement, the conttracts 
internal aaudit, the financial register waas updatedd and publi ished. Deta ils of 
statements, the annual report of senior officer salaries weere also publlished. 
external auuditor and tthis annual 
governancee statemennt, which The Annu al Audit Leetter for 20015/16 provvided
contains an acti on plan assurance over the Coouncil’s finanncial control  and 
demonstratiing a commmitment to overall govvernance arr angements. 
continuous iimprovemen t. 

 All reports aare subject tto a robust The preseentation off the Couuncil’s finaancial 
internal rev iew process to ensure statementss was redesigned for 22016/17 to mmake 
they are presentedd in an them easier to readd and for stakeholderrs to 
understandaable style. understandd. The design of this annnual governaance 

 The performmance information set statement has also beeen updated to make it eeasier 
out in the financial staatements is to read, annd it has beeen prepared in line with ggood 
prepared inn considerattion of the practice gguidelines ppublished byy the Charttered 
presentationnal approacch adopted Institute of Public Finannce & Accouuntability (CIPFA). 
by other simmilar authoritiees. Furthermore, the drafft financial statements and 

 There is an open data section on annual govvernance staatement are e being published 
the Council’s website. one monthh earlier thann previous yeears; this pro vides 

 Implementaation of exteernal audit stakeholdeers with moree timely inforrmation and new 
recommenddations is moonitored by publicationn timetabless have beeen met a year 
the Financcial Services  Manager ahead of schedule. 
and Deputyy Section 151 officer. 

 Implementaation of inteernal audit In May 20017 the Couuncil welcommed an extternal 
recommenddations is moonitored by review whiich resulted in it being tthe first and only 
the Corpoorate Assuraance and district autthority to be reaccrediteed as “excellent” 
Improvemennt Managger and under thhe equalitiees framewwork for local 
reported too senior maanagement governmennt. 
and the Auddit & Ethics CCommittee. 

 The Corpoorate Assuraance and An internnal audit review of the Council’s 
Improvemennt Manager is provided governancce arrangemments for jjointly manaaged 
with direct unfettered access to organisatioons and part nerships has been schedduled 
the Chair aand Vice Chhairs of the for 2017. In line with recommendded practicee the 
Audit & Ethiccs Committee. results of thhis review will be publishedd. See Actionn 6. 

 The Counccil submits itself to 
external pe er reviews inncluding by Whilst thee Council’ss corporatee performaance 
the Local GGovernment AAssociation, informationn is publishedd within Cabbinet and scrrutiny 
and in Maay 2017 welcomed an committeee reports and in the financcial statemennts, in 
equalities annd diversity ppeer review 2017 this information will be mmade easie r for 
and challennge. Action pplans arising stakeholdeers to access  because it will be addeed to 
from these reviews are monitored the open ddata section of the websitte. See Actioon 7. 
by the senioor managemeent team. 

 An internaal audit review of In September 2017 thhe internal aaudit servicee will 
governancee arrangemments for partake iin an ind ependent external quality 
jointly manaaged organissations and assessmentt. The result s will be re eported to ssenior 
partnershipss is scheduledd for 2017. management and thee Audit & EEthics Commmittee 

 Invitations too tender are published. and the se 
to reflect th 

ervice improv 
he results of t 

vement plan 
the review. Se 

n will be upd 
ee Action 8. 

dated 
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6. PROGRESSS ON DELIVERY OF LLAST YEARR’S ACTION PLAN 


Immprovemeent Actionn Assessmeent of Proggress 
1 Pr 

M 
(M 

roduction o 
edium Term 

MTFP) for 201 

f the detaile 
m Financial P 
17-21 

ed 
Plan T 

Completed 
The MTFP w 
budget for 

d 
was presente 

2017/18. 
ed alongsid e the propoosed 

2 De 
Co 
se 

evelopmen 
ontinuity Pla 

ervices 

nt of Busines 
ans for critic 

s 
cal T 

Not comple 
This action 
the structur 
resilience se 
2017. See A 

eted 
has been o 
re of corpor 
ervice. Expe 

Action 9 

n hold pend 
rate health 
ected comp 

ding a revie 
and safety 
pletion Sept 

ew of 
and 
tember 

3 Co 
ag 
fo 

ompletion o 
gainst the E 

or Local Gov 

of self-asses 
qualities Fra 
vernment 

sment 
amework 

Completed 
Following a 
reaccredite 

d 
an external r 
ed as “exce 

review the C 
ellent” unde 

Council was 
er the frame 

s 
ework. 

4 Re 
Co 
re 
se 

eview and u 
onstitution t 

estructure of 
enior manag 

update of th 
to reflect th 
f the Counc 
gement tea 

he 
e 

cil’s 
am 

T 
In progress 
This has now 
update of t 
complete b 

w formed p 
the Constitu 
by Novemb 

art of a wid 
ution expec 
er 2017. See 

der review a 
cted to be 
e Action 10 

and 

5 Int 
go 

troduction o 
overnance 

of a dedica 
forum 

ated 
T 
S 

In progress 
The format 
Strategic Ri 
following co 
be introduc 

of the forum 
isk Manage 
onsideration 
ced by Dec 

m was discu 
ment Group 
n by senior 
ember 2017 

ussed at the 
p in April 20 
manageme 
7. See Actio 

e 
017 and 
ent it will 
on 11 

6 Re 
of 

eview and u 
f Conduct fo 

update of th 
or Officers 

he Code 
T 
In progress 
This is being 
the Constitu 

g aligned wi 
ution. See A 

ith the revie 
Action 10 

ew and upddate of 

7 Fu 
ne 
Co 

ully impleme 
ew Anti-Frau 
orruption St 

ent and em 
ud, Bribery a 
trategy 

bed the 
and S 

In progress 
Significant p 
have been 
developed 
Further train 
individual te 

progress ha
 assessed, a
 and trainin 

ning will be 
eams. See A 

as been mad 
a response p 
ng provided 
provided to 
Action 12 

de. Risk exp 
plan has be 

d to manage 
o members 

posures 
een 
ers. 
and 

8 Re 
of 
Co 

eview, upda 
f the Confid 
ode 

ate and pub 
dential Repo 

blication 
orting 

Completed 
Will be pub 
Constitution 

d 
blished along 
n. 

gside the uppdated 

9 Co 
an 
Co 

omplete the 
nd publicat 
ontracts Re 

e review, up 
tion of the 

egister 

pdate Completed 
Updated re 

d 
egister published in Febbruary 2017. 

10 Up 
se 
Co 

pdate the p 
enior officer 
ouncil’s we 

published de 
salaries on 
bsite 

etails of 
the 

Completed 
Updated d 

d 
etails publisshed in Deccember 20166. 

11 Fu 
Au 
inc 
Au 

ully impleme 
udit service 
cluding Risk 
uditing (RBIA 

ent the Inter 
improveme 

k Based Inte 
A) 

rnal 
ent plan, 

ernal 

Completed 
Progress wa 
Corporate 
and Audit & 

d 
as regularly 
Resources a 
& Ethics Com 

reported to 
and Chief F 
mmittee du 

o the Head 
Finance Offi 
uring 2016. 

of 
cer, 

12 Co 
str 
su 

omplete the 
reamlining o 

uite of perfo 

e review an 
of the Coun 

ormance ind 

nd 
ncil’s 
dicators 

w 

Completed 
Review com 
planned in 
with the ne 

d 
mpleted in M 
2017 to alig 
w corporat 

March 2017 
gn key perfo 
e strategy. 

7. Further wo 
ormance m 

ork 
easures 

12
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7. UPDATED ACTION PPLAN 


Action LLead officeer Ta 
c 
arget 

completion date 
1 Up 

pr 
 

 

pdate the fe 
rocedure, e 

Common 
which less 
across the 
There is a 
recognisin 
feedback 

eedback a 
ensuring tha 
n themes are 
sons may ne 
e Council; a
 common a 
ng and cele 
k from custo 

nd compla 
t: 
e identified 
eed to be a 
and 
approach to 
ebrating po 
omers. 

ints

 for 
applied 

o 
ositive 

EExecutive Diirector DDecember 22017 

2 Im 
th 
Re 

mplement a 
he new Gen 
egulations. 

nd embed 
neral Data P 

compliance 
Protection 

e with H 
C 
H 

Head of 
Communitie 
Homes 

es and 
MMay 2018 

3 Re 
pr 
pl 
lin 
m 
th 

eview and u 
rocess, ensu 
ans is monit 

nkages betw 
easures and 

he corporate 

update the 
uring that de 
tored and t 
ween key pe 
d the outco 
e strategy. 

service pla 
elivery of ac 
hat there a 
erformance 
omes envisa 

anning 
ction 
re clear 

e 
aged in 

H 
R 
O 

Head of Cor 
Resources a 
Officer 

rporate 
nd s151 

Seeptember 22017 

4 Re 
pr 

eview, upda 
rotocol for m 

ate and com 
member/ of 

mmunicate 
fficer relatio 

e the 
ons 

EExecutive Diirector NNovember 22017 

5 De 
ris 
St 

evelop a co 
ks are effec 
rategic Risk 

orporate risk 
ctively mana 
k Managem 

k register; en 
aged throu 

ment Group. 

nsuring 
gh the 

H 
R 
O 

Head of Cor 
Resources a 
Officer 

rporate 
nd s151 

DDecember 22017 

6 Co 
go 
m 

omplete an 
overnance 
anaged org 

nd publish th 
arrangeme 
ganisations 

he review o 
ents for joint 

and partne 

of 
ly 
erships. 

H 
R 
O 

Head of Cor 
Resources a 
Officer 

rporate 
nd s151 

MMarch 2018 

7 Ad 
to 
we 

dd corpora 
o the open d 
ebsite 

te performa 
data sectio 

ance inform 
n of the Co 

mation 
ouncil 

H 
R 
O 

Head of Cor 
Resources a 
Officer 

rporate 
nd s151 

DDecember 22017 

8 Re 
ex 
Et 
im 
th 

eport the re 
xternal qual 
hics Comm 

mprovement 
he assessme 

esults of the 
lity assessme 

mittee and u 
t plan to ref 

ent. 

internal aud 
ent to the A 
pdate the s 
flect the res 

dit 
Audit & 
service 
sults of 

H 
R 
O 

Head of Cor 
Resources a 
Officer 

rporate 
nd s151 

NNovember 22017 

9 De 
cr 

evelop Busi 
ritical servic 

ness Contin 
es 

nuity Plans foor H 
E 
P 

Head of 
Environment 
Public Realm 

t and 
m 

Seeptember 22017 

10 Re 
inc 

eview and u 
cluding the 

update of th 
e Code of C 

he Constitu 
Conduct for 

tion, 
Officers 

EExecutive Diirector NNovember 22017 

11 Int 
en 
iss 
th 

troduce a d 
nsuring that 
sues are rev 
he year. 

dedicated g 
t any emerg 
viewed and 

governance 
ging govern 

addressed 

e forum, 
nance 

during 

EExecutive Diirector DDecember 22017 

12 Fu 
Fra 
inc 
m 

ully impleme 
aud, Bribery 
cluding pro 
embers and 

ent and em 
y and Corru 

ovision of fur 
d individual 

bed the ne 
uption Strate 
rther training
 teams 

ew Anti-
egy, 
g to 

H 
R 
O 

Head of Cor 
Resources a 
Officer 

rporate 
nd s151 

MMarch 2018 
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8.	 SUMMARYY, CONCLLUSION ANND CERTIFICATION 

8.1	 Good goveernance is about runnning things properly. IIt is the meeans by whhich the 
Council shoows it is takking decisions for the ggood of thee people in the area, iin a fair, 
equitable aand open wway. It also requires staandards of behaviour that suppoort good 
decision making – collective andd individual integrity, openness annd honesty.. It is the 
foundation for the deelivery of ggood qualitty services that meet all local ppeople’s 
needs. It is fundameental to shoowing public money is well speent. Withouut good 
governancce that Coouncil will sstruggle too deliver thhe outcom mes set outt in the 
corporate sstrategy. 

8.2	 This statemment has beeen consideered by thee Audit & Ethics Commmittee, whhich was 
satisfied thaat it is an accurate refflection of tthe governaance frameework and that the 
arrangemeents continuue to be reegarded ass fit for purppose in acccordance wwith the 
governancce framewoork. A numbber of futurre developmments havee been hig hlighted 
and these aare specificcally addressed within tthe Action PPlan. 

8.3	 The Counccil is satisfiedd that its ovverall goverrnance frammework proovides a subbstantial 
level of ass urance of eeffectivenesss, althoughh a number of further ddevelopme nt areas 
have been highlightedd. Delivery oof the Action Plan will bbe monitoreed during 20017/18. 

8.4	 Our overal l assessmennt is that t the Annual Governan ce Statemeent is a baalanced 
reflection oof the goveernance ennvironment and that aan adequatte framewoork exists 
within the CCouncil to eensure an eeffective intternal contrrol environmment is mai ntained. 
We are also satisfied  that theree are apprropriate plaans in placce to addrress any 
significant ggovernancee issues andd will monitoor their impleementationn and operaations. 

Adam Norbburn - Execuutive Directoor 

Date: 

Councillor MM Stokes - LLeader of Ruugby Borou gh Council 

Date: 
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